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We Create, We Contribute.
Directors’ Report

To The Members of Praj Industries Limited,

Your Directors are pleased to present the 32nd Annual Report and the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018.

Financial Results

During the year under review, your Company has recorded total income of ` 7283 Mn (previous year ` 7787 Mn), 7% reduction in total 
income. ro t efore a  declined y 1% to ` 399Mn (previous year ` 7 Mn). he performance summary is presented herewith

(` Mn.)
Particulars 2017-18 2016-17

urnover 7020 7592
Other Income 263 195

otal Income 7283 7787
otal penses 6884 7113

P  399 67
PA  315 69
Other Comprehensive Income 7 1

otal Comprehensive Income 322 70
( ) alance in Pro t  oss account 5067 580
( ) I DAS Ad ustments ( SOPs) 2 17
Pro t Availa le for Appropriations 5391 5067
Appropriations
Dividend
- Final 291 -
- Dividend a  ( nal Dividend) 59 -

ransfer to Special conomic one Re-investment Reserve 72 -
alance in Statement of Pro t  oss 4969 5067

State of Company’s Affairs

Please refer Management Discussion  Analysis report anne ed to this report dealing with the state of Company s affairs at length.  
(Refer Anne ure 1). 

Summary of Consolidated Results

During the year, the otal Income stood at ` 9502 Mn which is lower y 3% over last year (`977 Mn). Pro t efore ta  at ` 530 Mn is lower 
y 21% over last year (` 675 Mn). he performance summary is presented herewith

 (` in Mn)
Particulars 2017-18 2016-17

urnover 9235 9552
Other income 267 222

otal income 9502 977
otal e penses 8972 9099

P 530 675
PA  (after Minority Interest) 395 6
(+) Other Comprehensive Income 8 (6)

otal Comprehensive Income 403 0

Dividend

he oard of Directors of your Company has recommended a nal dividend of ̀  1.62/-(81%) per equity share of Face Value of ̀  2/- for the 
Financial Year ended 31st March, 2018. he dividend is paya le su ect to shareholders  approval at the ensuing Annual eneral meeting 
(A M). he nal dividend pay-out, if approved y the shareholders in the ensuing A M, will e around ` 353Mn (Dividend  ` 293 million 
and Dividend Distri ution a  ` 60 Mn).
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Dividend Distribution Policy 

In accordance with the Regulation 3A of S I ( isting O ligations  Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company has 
formulated a Dividend Distri ution Policy and the same is anne ed herewith as Annexure 11. he Policy is also hosted on the we site of 
the Company and can e viewed at www.praj.net 

Reserves

he Company is not proposing any transfer to the eneral Reserve for the year 2017-18.

Credit Rating

a) CRISI  has re-af rmed A1+  rating to the Company s short-term an ing facilities which signi es that the degree of safety 
regarding timely payment of instruments is very strong.

) CRISI  has also re-af rmed its rating of the Company s long-term an  facilities to AA/stable”.

 he AA” rating signi es high safety with regard to timely payment of long-term nancial o ligations.

Subsidiaries

During the scal, in view of project completion, your Company has closed down its project speci c step down su sidiary y name Praj 
Industries ( an ania) imited with effect from 23rd Octo er, 2017. In view of this, it ceased to e the step down su sidiary of the Company.

Praj ngineering  Infra td. (Formerly, Pacecon ngineering Projects td.), India, Praj iPurity Systems td., India, Praj Americas Inc., 
.S.A., Praj Far ast Co. td., hailand, Praj Industries (Africa) (Pty.) td, South Africa, Praj Far ast Philippines td. Inc., he Philippines, 

and Praj Industries ( ami ia) Pty. td., ami ia continue to e su sidiaries of your Company.

Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company, which include the results of the said Su sidiary Companies, are included in this 
Annual Report. Further, a statement containing the particulars for each of the Company s su sidiaries is also enclosed. Copies of Annual 
Accounts and related detailed information of all the su sidiaries can also e sought y any mem er of the Company or its Su sidiaries 

y ma ing a written request to the Company Secretary at the Registered Of ce of the Company in this regard. he Annual Accounts of the 
Su sidiary Companies are also availa le for inspection at the Company s and/or the concerned Su sidiary s Registered Of ce.

he Company has formulated a policy for determining material  su sidiaries and such policy is hosted on the Company s we site i.e. 
www.praj.net 

Further, a statement containing salient features of the nancial statements of su sidiaries in the prescri ed format AOC-1 is appended 
as Annexure 7 to this Report. he statement also provides the details of performance, nancial position of each of the su sidiaries.

Corporate Governance

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 3  (2)  (3) and 53(f), read with Schedule V of S I ( isting O ligations  Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Management Discussion and Analysis Report (Annexure 1), Report on Corporate overnance and 
Compliance Certi cate on Corporate overnance (Annexure 3), usiness Responsi ility Report (Annexure 10), Dividend Distri ution 
Policy (Annexure 11) are anne ed to this report.

Directors

Ms. Parimal Chaudhari, Director (DI  0072 911) will retire y rotation at the ensuing Annual eneral Meeting and eing eligi le offers 
herself for re-appointment.

During the year, Mr. Pra ash ul arni (DI   00019652) and Mr. ishor Chau ar (DI   00033830) Independent Directors of the Company 
retired with effect from 11th August, 2017.

Mr. Daljit Mirchandani (DI   00022951) retired y rotation as Director of the Company on 11th August, 2017 and eing willing and eligi le, 
was  re-appointed as Director of the Company. 

Ms. Mrunalini Joshi (DIN 00957617) was appointed as Additional Director of the Company under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 
2013 and also as Independent Director under Sections 1 9 and 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 with effect from 11th August, 2017 till the 
conclusion of Annual eneral Meeting to e held for adoption of accounts for the nancial year 2019-20 or 10th August, 2020 whichever 
occurs earlier, su ject to the approval of shareholders at ensuing Annual eneral Meeting of the Company. 

Mr. Shishir Joshipura (DIN  0057 970) was appointed as Additional Director under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 with effect 
from 2nd April, 2018. Further, Mr. Shishir Joshipura was appointed as Chief ecutive Of cer and Managing Director of the Company for 
a period of Five (5) years with effect from 2nd April, 2018, su ject to the approval of shareholders at ensuing Annual eneral Meeting of 
the Company. 
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Dr. Shridhar Shu la (DIN 00007607) was appointed as Additional Director of the Company under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 
and also as an Independent Director under Sections 1 9 and 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 for a period of Five (5) years with effect from 
12th April, 2018, su ject to the approval of shareholders at ensuring Annual eneral meeting.

Composition of Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

The Company has the following KMP :

Name of the KMP Designation Date of Appointment Date of Resignation
Mr. Pramod Chaudhari ecutive Chairman 08.11.1985 N.A.
Mr. Shishir Joshipura* Chief ecutive Of cer and Managing Director 02.0 .2018 N.A.
Mr. Sachin Raole CFO and Director- Finance  Commercial 13.07.2016 N.A.
Mr. Dattatraya Nim ol ar Chief Internal Auditor  Company Secretary 22.07.2011 N.A.

* Mr. Shishir Joshipura was appointed as C O and Managing Director for a period of Five (5) years with effect from 2nd April, 2018. 

Composition of Audit, Nomination & Remuneration Committee

For details, indly refer the Corporate overnance Report anne ed to this Report (Annexure 3).

Declaration from Independent Directors

he Independent Directors have su mitted their annual declaration to the oard that they ful ll all the requirements as stipulated in 
Section 1 9(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules framed there under. 

Auditors

a)  Internal Auditors

 he Internal Auditors, hare Deshmu h  Co., Chartered Accountants, Pune have conducted internal audits periodically and 
su mitted their reports to the Audit Committee. heir reports have een reviewed y the Statutory Auditors and the Audit Committee.

b)  Statutory Auditors

 he mem ers, in the 29th Annual eneral Meeting held on 6th August, 2015, appointed M/s P. . hagwat, Chartered Accountants, 
Pune as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of ve years with effect from the conclusion of 29th Annual eneral Meeting 
held on 6th August 2015.

c)  Cost Auditors

 Your Company has appointed Dhananjay V. Joshi  Associates, Cost Accountants as Cost Auditors of the Company for the nancial 
year 2018-19 at the remuneration as set out in item No.  of the e planatory statement which is su ject to the rati cation of 
mem ers in the ensuing Annual eneral Meeting.

d)  Secretarial Auditors

 M/s ANJ  Associates, Pune, were appointed to conduct the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the nancial year 2017-18, as 
required under Section 20  of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules framed thereunder. he Secretarial Audit Report (MR-3) for 
F.Y. 2017-18 forms part of the Annual Report as Annexure 6.

 he oard has appointed ANJ  Co. . .P. (formerly ANJ  Associates) Pune, as Secretarial Auditors of the Company for the 
nancial year 2018-19. 

No material changes and commitments affecting the nancial position of the Company occurred from the end of the nancial year  
2017-18 till the date of this report. Further there was no change in the nature of usiness of the Company.

Statement concerning development and implementation of risk management policy of the Company

In accordance with the provisions of S I ( isting O ligations  Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the oard adopted Ris  
Management Policy and initiated necessary steps for framing, implementing and monitoring the ris  management plan for the Company.

he main o jective of this policy is to ensure sustaina le usiness growth and to promote a pro-active approach in identifying, reporting, 
evaluating and mitigating ris s associated with the usiness. 
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he policy esta lishes a structured and disciplined approach to Ris  Management, in order to guide decisions on ris  related issues.

In today s challenging and competitive environment, strategies for mitigating inherent ris s associated with usiness and for 
accomplishing the growth plans of the Company are imperative. he common ris s inter alia are ris s emanating from  Regulations, 
Competition, usiness, echnology o solescence, Investments, Retention of talent, Finance, Politics and Fidelity.

As a matter of policy, these ris s are assessed and steps as appropriate are ta en to mitigate the same.

he Ris  Management Policy is also hosted on the Company s we site i.e. www.praj.net

he Company has instituted adequate Internal Controls and processes to have a cohesive view of ris s, optimal ris  mitigation responses 
and ef cient management of internal control and assurance activities. 

In the opinion of the oard, there are no ris s which may threaten the e istence of the Company.

he Company has in place, adequate internal nancial controls with reference to nancial statements. During the year, such controls 
were tested and no reporta le material wea nesses in the design or operation were o served.

Remuneration Policy for Directors and KMP

he Company s remuneration policy for Directors/ MP is directed towards rewarding performance ased on review of achievements 
periodically. he remuneration policy is in consonance with the e isting industry practice.

he said policy is availa le on Company s we site i.e. www.praj.net and is also attached as Annexure 8 to this report.

ESOP 

During the year, your Company allotted 1 ,88,227 shares on e ercise of options under the mployee Stoc  Option Plan 2011. Consequent 
to the a ove, the Issued, Su scri ed and Paid up Share Capital of your Company increased from 179, ,188 shares (` 358.888 Mn.) to 
180,932, 15 shares (` 361.865 Mn.) as of 31st March, 2018.

During the year, your Company has granted the following options under mployees Stoc  Option Plan 2011

Sr. No. No. of Options Exercise Price/Option
rant VII 19,69,700 ` 50/-

Please refer Annexure 4 to this report for the particulars required to e disclosed pursuant to Rule 12 (2) of the Companies (Share Capital 
and De entures) Rules, 201  and Clause 1  of S I (Share ased mployee ene ts) Regulations, 201 .

Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy

In order to ensure that the activities of the Company and its employees are conducted in a fair and transparent manner y adoption of 
highest standards of professionalism, honesty, integrity and ethical ehaviour, the Company has adopted a Vigil Mechanism/ histle 

lower Policy. his policy is e plained in Corporate overnance Report and is also hosted on the we site of Company at www.praj.net. 

Details of policy developed and implemented by the Company on its Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives

indly refer Annexure 2 to this Report.

Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments made under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013

oans, uarantees and Investments covered under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 form part of the notes to the nancial 
statements provided in this Annual Report. (Please refer Note No.  to the Standalone Financial Statements).

Contracts and arrangements with Related Parties

All contracts / arrangements / transactions entered y the Company during the nancial year with related parties were in the ordinary 
course of usiness and on an arm s length asis. Such transactions form part of the notes to the nancial statements provided in this 
Annual Report. (Please refer Note No. 31 to the Standalone Financial Statements).

During the year, the Company had not entered into any contract / arrangement / transaction with related parties which could e considered 
material in accordance with the policy of the Company on materiality of related party transactions which is availa le on the Company s 
we site at the lin  www.praj.net 
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The information in respect of Related Party transactions is given below;

FORM AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of su -section (3) of section 13  of the Act and  
Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 201 )

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred to in sub-section 
(1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transactions under third proviso thereto 

1.  Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm s length asis

  N.A. as there were no transactions during the year which were not at arm s length.

2.  Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm s length asis

 During the nancial year 2017-18, all the transactions entered into with related parties were at arm s length. owever, these 
transactions were not material.

Performance Evaluation

Regulation  (2) (f) (ii) (9) of the S I ( isting O ligations  Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 mandates that the oard shall 
monitor and review the oard evaluation framewor . Also, the Companies Act, 2013 states that a formal annual evaluation needs to e 
made y the oard of its own performance and that of its Committees and individual Directors. In addition, Schedule IV to the Companies 
Act, 2013 states that the performance evaluation of Independent Directors shall e done y the entire oard of Directors, e cluding the 
Director eing evaluated. he oard wor s with the Nomination  Remuneration Committee to lay down the evaluation criteria for the 
performance of ecutive/ Non- ecutive/ Independent Directors. 

Independent Directors have three ey roles  overnance, Control and uidance. Some of the performance indicators ased on which 
the Independent Directors are evaluated include

a) A ility to contri ute to and monitor the Company s corporate governance practices.

) A ility to contri ute y introducing international est practices to address top-management issues.

c) Active participation in long-term strategic planning.

d) Commitment to the ful llment of a Directors  o ligations and duciary responsi ilities  these include participation in the oard and 
the Committee Meetings.

In pursuance of a ove, the Company has devised a policy for performance evaluation of Independent Directors, oard, Committees and 
other individual Directors.

he evaluation of all the Directors, Committees and the oard as a whole was conducted ased on the criteria and framewor  adopted y 
the oard. he oard approved the evaluation results as collated y the Nomination  Remuneration Committee.

and the Secretarial Auditors in their reports

here were no quali cations, reservations or adverse remar s or disclaimers made y the Statutory Auditors in their report.

he Secretarial Auditors in their report have mentioned that an enquiry of the matter of rading of Shares y insider during the window 
closure is under process. 

he oard of Directors su mits that Company has reported the a ove mentioned transaction made y an Insider to the S  and NS  
on 7th Novem er, 2017 under Regulation 7(2) read with Regulation 6(2) of S I (Prohi ition of Insider rading) Regulations, 2015. he 
Company has since concluded the enquiry ased on which appropriate action will e ta en y the Company. 

Extract of Annual Return

he e tract of Annual Return pursuant to the provisions of Section 92 read with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) 
Rules, 201  in prescri ed Form M -9 for the year ended 31st March, 2018 is as per Annexure 5 to this report. 

Number of Board Meetings conducted during the year under review

he oard met si  times during the nancial year, the details of which are given in the Corporate overnance Report that forms part of 
this Annual Report. he intervening gap etween any two meetings was within the period prescri ed y the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
S I ( isting O ligations  Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
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Directors’ Responsibility Statement

In accordance with the provisions of Section 13 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the oard here y su mits its responsi ility Statement

(a)  in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applica le accounting standards have een followed along with proper e planation 
relating to material departures

( )  the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are 
reasona le and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the nancial year and 
of the pro t of the Company for that period

(c)  the Directors have ta en proper and suf cient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities

(d)  the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern asis  

(e)  the Directors have laid down internal nancial controls to e followed y the Company and that such internal nancial controls are 
adequate and were operating effectively  and

(f)  the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applica le laws and that such systems 
were adequate and operating effectively.

Details in respect of frauds reported by auditors under sub-section (12) of Section 143 other than those which are 
reportable to the Central Government.

During the year under consideration, there were no such instances.

Deposits

he Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits during the year under review and also did not have any outstanding 
deposits at the end of the year.

Remuneration ratio of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) / Employees

he information required pursuant to Section 197 read with Rule 5 of he Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 201 , in respect of employees of the Company and Directors is furnished hereunder

Sr. 
No.

Name Designation Remuneration 
paid FY 2017-18

` Mn.

% increase/ 
(Decrease) in 
remuneration 

over FY 2016-17

Ratio of the 
remuneration of each 

Director to median 
remuneration of 

employees
1 Mr. Pramod Chaudhari ecutive Chairman 3.175 (16.8) 8.3
2 Mr. Berjis Desai Non- ecutive Independent Director 1.350 Nil 1.5
3 Ms. Parimal Chaudhari Non- ecutive Director 1.000 Nil 1.1

Mr. Rajiv Maliwal Non- ecutive Independent Director 0. 50 Nil 0.5
5 Mr. Sivarama rishnan Iyer Non- ecutive Independent Director 1.350 Nil 1.5
6 Mr. Daljit Mirchandani Non- ecutive Non-Independent 

Director
10.900 0.9 12.2

7 Mr. Sachin Raole CFO and Director- Finance  
Commercial

6.220 (19.9) 7.0

8 Ms. Mrunalini Joshi* Non- ecutive Independent Director 0.350 N.A. 0.
9 Mr. Dattatraya Nim ol ar Chief Internal Auditor  Company 

Secretary
6.756 (26.0) 7.6

 * appointed as Independent Director with effect from 11th August, 2017.

he median remuneration of employees of the Company during the nancial year was ` 0.893 Million. In the nancial year, there was an 
increase of 5% in the median remuneration of employees.

here were 88  permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on 31st March, 2018.

Average percentage increase made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last nancial year i.e. 2017-18 
was around 5% whereas the managerial remuneration for the same nancial year reduced y around 27%.
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he ey parameters for the varia le component of remuneration paid to the Directors are considered y the Board of Directors ased 

on the recommendations of Nomination and Remuneration Committee as per the Remuneration Policy for Directors, ey Managerial 
Personnel and other mployees.

It is here y af rmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy for Directors, ey Managerial Personnel and other 
mployees.

Particulars of employees

he information required pursuant to Section 197 read with rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 201  in respect of employees of the Company is given in Anne ure 9 to this Report. 

Details of signi cant and material orders passed y the Regulators or Courts or ri unals impacting the going concern status and 
Company s operations in future.

No such events occurred during the nancial year 2017-18.

Prevention of Sexual Harassment Policy

he Company has in place Prevention of Se ual arassment Policy in line with the requirements of he Se ual arassment of omen at 
the or place (Prevention, Prohi ition  Redressal) Act, 2013. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered 
under this policy.

Your Directors state that during the year under review, there was no case led pursuant to he Se ual arassment of omen at or place 
(Prevention, Prohi ition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption, Adaptation, Innovation:

Praj has always endeavoured to minimi e its energy and water usage. Deployment of Solar power systems, water recycle and reuse 
systems. Sustaina ility remains at the core of all solutions offered y your Company. During the year, Your Company has 

1.  Filed 21 new patents. 

2.  Firmed up its front runner position in the 2nd generation cellulosic ethanol technology with the launch of its and India s rst 
integrated 2nd generation io-re nery. he plant was inaugurated in May 2017, at the hands of Mr Nitin ad ari, on le Minister 
for Road ransport  ighways, Shipping and ater Resources, River Development  anga Rejuvenation. his is a landmar  
development in India s journey toward energy independence and relates to many of the nationally relevant agendas. he advanced  

io-re nery technology demonstrates integrated production capa ility of 1 million litre per annum (M PA) of ethanol from variety 
of iomass and paves the way for stepping up India s am itious ethanol lending programme. 

Foreign Exchange Earnings & Outgo

(` Mn.)

Particulars 31.3.2018 31.3.2017
arnings 3404 1 0

Outgo 600 706
Net Foreign change arnings 2804 73

Your Company has retained its status as a net fore  earner consecutively for past 21 years. 

Acknowledgements

Your Directors wish to place on record their appreciation towards all associates including Customers, Colla orators, overnment 
Agencies, Ban ers, Suppliers, Shareholders, Auditors, mployees and others who have reposed their con dence in the Company.

For and on ehalf of the Board of Directors

Place  Pune  Pramod Chaudhari 
Date  12th June, 2018 ecutive Chairman 
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ANNEXURE 1

Management Discussion & Analysis 

Overview 

Your Company addresses process and project engineering segment and operates in glo al space where the need for sustaina ility and 
care for environment is more pronounced. As a developer and supplier of sustaina le and eco-friendly solutions, sustaina ility is an 
innate element of Your Company s usiness verticals, operations and CSR initiatives.

For each usiness vertical, Your Company has identi ed the opportunity-ris  matri  to respond to the mar et needs. Bioenergy usiness 
which constitutes a out 60% of the Company s revenues, is driven y mandate intensity, industrial growth and consumption patterns. 

hile India s ethanol lending program has caught momentum and glo al attention, many other countries are en route to implementation 
and increasing the portion of renewa les in their energy matri . Focus on innovation, glo al reference ase and a strong rand equity 
place Your Company in a pole position to participate in the opportunities. 

Consolidation in the pharmaceutical industry, stringent FDA norms and focus on pharma e ports y emerging mar ets are the drivers for 
Praj ipurity usiness. In the engineering usiness, Critical Process quipment and S ids is showing traction with enquiries from some 
of the glo ally leading PC and chemical companies. Your Company remains focused on s ids which command a higher component 
of multidisciplinary engineering. Your Company has carved out a Special Projects, Processes and Systems division to carry out 
commerciali ation of new chemicals for prospective clients and also, technologies developed in-house. Brewery usiness continues to 
contri ute to the overall performance of the Company with improved mar et share. ater and waste water is showing opportunities in 
the wider industry spectrum. he focus continues on high comple ity ero liquid discharge systems for industrial effluents. 

Business Snapshot 

Bioenergy 

Commerciali ation of 2nd generation ethanol technology mar s the highpoint of FY 2017-18 for Your Company. Praj s own and India s 
rst integrated 2nd generation demonstration iore nery was inaugurated in May 2017. his landmar  development is a step closer 

to enhanced energy self-suf ciency for India. he iore nery has the capacity to produce 1 mn liter per annum of fuel ethanol from a 
variety of agri residue vi . rice and wheat straw, cotton stal , agasse, cane trash, corn co s and stover etc. he plant has een operating 
successfully for over a year and serves as technology platform to develop a horde of renewa le fuels and chemicals. he techno-socio-
economic model of 2nd gen ethanol addresses many pressing issues that India is facing today. It is a de nite means to stri e a alance 

etween India s growth aspirations and environment conservation, with the potential to oost rural economy and generate employment.

After thorough technical due diligence of the demonstration plant, Indian oil mar eting companies have chosen Praj as technology 
partner for their projects. his reaf rms the position of Your Company as frontrunner in the 2nd gen ethanol technology. Recently, Bharat 
Petroleum Corporation imited gave a formal con rmation to Praj s offer y way of etter of Acceptance for its proprietary technology, 

asic engineering and design pac age for a value of ` 16.75 cr. his is a major milestone towards commencement of wor  on the  
2nd gen ethanol iore nery with production capacity of 100 iloliter per day to e set up at Bargarh, Odisha. he iomass feedstoc  will 

e sourced from the local farming community. 

his was followed y another OI from Indian Oil Corporation imited (IOC ) for 2nd gen iore nery project to e set up in Panipat, 
aryana. Praj s scope for the said project comprises license of proprietary technology, design pac age and project management services 

( PCM) for a value of ` 38.7 cr. his is further to the MO  entered etween Praj and IOC  in Sept 2016.

Your Company has also participated in tender process issued y industan Petroleum Corporation imited, the outcome of which is due 
shortly. hese are among the rst atch of multiple 2nd gen projects to e underta en y oil mar eting companies of India. 

FY 2017-18 also witnessed several forums that facilitated constructive dialogue among various sta eholders vi . technology suppliers, 
academia, government and other industry participants. hese include Bioenergy rja tsav organi ed y MOPN  in association with 
Mahratta Cham er of Commerce, Industries and Agriculture in Pune, orld Biofuels Day cele ration in Delhi and over 100 districts across 
India. 

On the policy front, the much awaited National Biofuel Policy 2018 and its implementation is approved y the nion Ca inet. Progressive 
in its approach, it is e pected to usher in a new age for the Biofuels industry in India, eeping pace with similar developments at the glo al 
level. 2nd gen thanol, an advanced iofuel has een accorded more prominence in the policy. 

India has also joined hands with international counterparts. New Delhi hosted the -India conference on Advanced Biofuels in March, 
2018. his conference aimed at facilitation of the development and deployment of advanced renewa le fuels in the two regions and was 
followed y a technical visit to the demonstration plant of Your Company. 
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he recently released sugar ailout pac age approved a slew of measures to help the liquidity of Indian sugar industry. hese include 

interest su vention of ` 1332 crore on soft loans worth ` 0 crore to e sanctioned y an s to the sugar mills for augmenting ethanol 
production capacity. Measures li e this clu ed with additional 1st gen feedstoc  as identi ed in the National Policy on Biofuels 2018, 
open opportunities for Your Company in the 1st gen ethanol space. 

ith focus on international mar ets, moderni ation of e isting plants is a ey growth area for the 1st gen ethanol usiness. Bene ts of 
moderni ation to the customer include yield improvement, energy reduction and product fle i ility. Bac ed y innovative technology 
solutions and proven e pertise on a variety of feedstoc , Your Company commands a formida le position in the glo al 1st gen ethanol 
mar et. 

Praj HiPurity Systems (PHS)

Praj ipurity Systems reported the highest ever sales in FY 2017-18. hile the mar et share in the ater Systems segment was steady, 
it was a remar a le year for the Modular Process Systems mar ing a rise in recognition and mar et share, oth. ith diligent focus 
on creating customer value and streamlining internal processes, P S continues to focus on enhancing the wallet share with relevant 
products and solutions for the customers. It is geared up to address growing opportunities in the sterile and iopharma applications. 

Domestic usiness remains the mainstay. merging pharma mar ets li e Middle ast, North Africa, ur ey etc are showing growth 
potential along with opportunities for S ased facilities of Indian clients.

Process solutions is the focus area for growth, particularly in liquid sterile processes, iopharmaceuticals and iosimilars. P S will 
continue its endeavor in certain strategic application ases li e ophthalmic, microsphere and fermenters. 

ith more than 300 installations, P S enjoys strong relationship with clients resulting in repeat orders. Value added services vi . annual 
maintenance and operations  management help P S strengthen the relationship. Digital platforms li e IO  are eing leveraged to 
provide more value to clients for data management and analytics.

Engineering Businesses

Critical Process Equipment & Skids

everaging India s strengths as an ef cient sourcing hu , Your Company serves an array of process industries with critical engineered 
equipment and s ids vi . columns, reactors, static equipment, storage vessels and plug-n-play systems. he customers of these products 
are vital sectors li e oil  gas, petrochemicals, fertili ers and chemicals, within and outside India. Your Company has uilt capa ilities to 
handle comple  metallurgy and process solutions that need higher engineering inputs. 

Special Projects, Processes & Systems 

his usiness vertical is an amalgamation of process nowhow, engineering and manufacturing capa ilities of Your Company. Com ined 
with e ecution e pertise, it provides Your Company a unique competency to serve customers to commerciali e ne t gen molecules 
and chemicals. In FY 2017-18, Your Company partnered a North American company to provide such services for their technology. 
Your Company is now the preferred engineering partner for further commerciali ation of the technology. In addition, the vertical is also 
responsi le for project delivery of the in-house technologies developed at Praj Matri .

Brewery Plants & Equipment 

his usiness vertical reported the highest ever order oo  in FY 2017-18 on account of orders won in the Indian su -continent and also 
increased share in the home mar et  India. 

Annual consumption of eer in India touched a out 2  mn hectoliter in FY 2017-18. ith per capita eer consumption at 2 liter, India 
possesses tremendous potential for glo al rewers and continues to offer e citing opportunities owing to the rising income levels and 
young population. Despite the regulatory challenges in various states, rewers are eager to enter the Indian mar et. Consolidation in the 
glo al industry ena les them to loo  for strategic partnerships. Strengthening portfolios, launch of premium rands, introducing flavored 

eers for women consumers are some of the strategies adapted y the rewers to address the dynamic Indian mar et. 

Craft eer has ecome popular especially among the rising class of young consumers. In the year gone y, Your Company won an order 
for a craft rewery to e set up in India. he plant will e commissioned y Decem er 2018. 

Water & Waste Water Treatment Solutions

As one of the topmost users of water  industry output and investment plans get adversely impacted y the depleting water ta les, 
unpredicta le monsoon patterns and water scarcity. his ma es reduce, reuse, recycle principles all the more important. Your Company 
maintains a selective focus in this segment pertaining to the challenging industrial waste water with high comple ity. Your Company s 

ero liquid discharge systems and evaporation technologies are deployed y many clients in various process industries. 

Innovation and R&D

Praj Matri   Innovation Center employs quali ed professionals in the faculties of iotechnology, micro iology etc. It conducts research 
in the emerging areas of industrial iotechnology vi . 2nd generation iofuels, advanced iochemicals and health  wellness products. 
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Matri  is the common innovation engine for all usiness verticals of Your Company. 2nd gen integrated iore nery demonstration plant of 
Your Company serves as a R D platform for the development of a horde of renewa le fuels and chemicals.

In the year gone y, Your Company was granted 3 and led for 29 num er of patents. In total, Your Company has 17 num er of patents 
to its name. 

he Innovation and Applied echnology Center of Your Company is engaged in the development of technological solutions. Couple of the 
solutions introduced in FY 2017-18 are -

1. Biogas to BioCNG

 Biogas is a y-product of ethanol industry and industrial effluent treatment process. For compliance with the fuel norms, it needs 
to e devoid of 2S and CO2. Praj s proprietary technology helps clients meet these norms for BioCN , which is increasingly nding 
application as gaseous vehicular fuel. 

2. Conversion of cassava puff to ethanol

 Cassava puff is an industrial waste stream generated in the starch manufacturing industry. ith residual starch content, it can e 
converted to various grades of ethanol.

Manufacturing Capability 

Your Company s manufacturing capa ility is su stantiated y a multi-disciplinary engineering team, four world class manufacturing 
facilities with e cellent connectivity to ports and highways. hese are located at Sanaswadi, Pune (Maharashtra), andla ( ujarat) and 

ada, hane (Maharashtra). 

wo of the facilities located near the port in Special conomic one (S ) of andla in ujarat, India have een approved y glo al 
multinational and PC companies for supply of equipment and s ids for projects in various mar ets. he facilities are accredited with 
ASM    2, R Stamps and NB Registrations. 

he ASM  BP  compliant facility located at ada, hane serves clients in the pharmaceutical industry. 

Human Capital 

ith the e citing and challenging times ahead in the Indian economy, quest for attracting, retaining and nurturing talent is critical for 
success. Your Company has ta en several initiatives to identify and hone the s illsets of promising employees. 

In the year gone y, Your Company has conducted 1 50 num er of training mandays imparting various s ills to the employees. he focus 
of these trainings is on functional s ills, nancial management and ehavioral programs. 

Awards & Recognition

In FY 2017-18, Your Company was estowed with the following awards, certi cation and accolades 

• Ran ed 3 th in the op 50 ottest Companies in Advanced Bioeconomy” 2018 list released y S ased Biofuels Digest. he list 
consists of companies from different parts of the world ma ing noteworthy contri ution to the glo al renewa le energy space. 

• Best Biotechnology R D Specialists - Asia Award y P News conferred to Praj Matri  

• Corporate Social Responsi ility (CSR) Award 2018 instituted y Amity lo al Business School in association with Rotary Clu   
Business standard

• Corporate Social Responsi ility Award in the ater Saving Category conferred y Bureaucracy oday

• Best Supply Chain Management Practices award y Indian Institute of Material Management (IIMM)

• cellence in Sustaina le Supply Chain Award y orld Sustaina ility Organi ation

• cellence in Supply Chain Management award in the engineering category for pioneering effort in green SCM initiatives and for 
inclusive approach towards MSM  sector 

• Best reen Procurement Initiative award y ami a e Media

• Sanaswadi factory re-certi ed with AD2000 - Mer latt P0, ASM -R, ASM - , ASM - 2, ISO 383 -2, ISO 9001-2015, O SAS 
18001-2007 

• ater  waste water treatment vertical received appreciation from a glo al customer in the food  everage sector for the ero 
iquid Discharge solution deployed at their multiple manufacturing locations 
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Praj iPurity Systems imited, a wholly owned su sidiary of Your Company earned following accolades during the year - 

• Apart from numerous appreciation certi cates from customers, a prominent customer in the glo al pharmaceutical and life sciences 
industry ac nowledged Praj ipurity with the Most Valua le Partner Award during its annual suppliers gathering

• It has een certi ed with Management System as per BS O SAS 18001 2007, ISO 9001 2015 and ISO 1 001 200

Future Outlook 

Praj s strategic growth levers help capitali e upon a slew of high potential opportunities across newer mar etplaces. Company has 
growth plans y accelerating innovation, ramping up usiness capa ilities and penetrating newer mar ets and geographies, tapping a 

ouquet of customer categories across the glo e. 

Risks & Concerns

Your Company has well documented Ris  Management Policy. he policy is reviewed periodically y Management and Audit Committee 
and appropriately modi ed, as and when necessary. Based on the operations of the Company, ris s are identi ed and steps are ta en to 
mitigate them.

conomic and Political situation in ey mar ets of Your Company is seen as an essential ris  element. Your Company has no current 
e posure to any high ris  mar ets.

Between 20-50% of the Company s usiness comes from overseas mar ets  the Company has put in place a fore  ris  management 
system.

he Company is also e posed to raw material ris  which shows considera le volatility. A suita le purchase and stoc ing policy is 
followed.

Apart from the a ove speci c ris s, the Company recogni es various ris s inherent in the performance of a contract which may relate to 
commercial terms. he Company has a ro ust policy in place to counter these ris s to the e tent possi le.

he Company is also e posed to ris s on account of the sector it serves. Biofuels/distillery and rewery usinesses are governed y the 
legislations of different geographies served y the Company. he Company has adequate geographical spread.

he Company is ma ing its planning and review more stringent so as to ring greater granularity and predicta ility.

Internal Control Systems

he Company has instituted adequate internal control procedure(s) commensurate with the nature of its usiness and the si e of its 
operations for the smooth conduct of its usiness. Internal audit is conducted continually and covers the ey areas of operations. It is 
an independent, o jective and assurance function, responsi le for evaluating and improving the control and governance processes. he 
Internal Auditors do not have any adverse comments on the internal control systems of the Company. 

he Company has in place RP system and suita le we  ased usiness process systems to ensure adequate controls on ey areas of 
operations. All these systems are audited periodically y the Internal Auditors. 

Forward looking statements

Statements in this report, particularly those which relate to Management Discussion and Analysis, descri ing the Company s future 
plans, projections, estimates and e pectations may constitute Forward oo ing” statements, within the meaning of applica le laws and 
regulations. Actual results might differ materially from those either e pressed or implied.
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ANNEXURE 2

CSR Report

1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy including overview of projects or programmes proposed to be undertaken and reference 
to the weblink to the CSR Policy :- 

 Praj Industries imited PI ”is a socially responsi le corporate citi en. PI  recogni es trusteeship as a critical function of an 
organi ation in discharging its responsi ility towards the society, environment and its resultant ecosystem. 

 he early start on CSR activities has given PI  a tremendous learning and understanding of how CSR projects should e selected, 
implemented and sustained.  PI  has a separate team dedicated to CSR activities.  Along with Praj Foundation (CSR arm of PI ), PI  
is engaged in various projects.  Many of the themes selected also resonate well with the overall national agenda li e ealth, ater, 
Clean India (Swacch Bharat).

 PI  is committed to supporting sustaina le development through effective interventions at various levels.

 o ensure this, PI  underta es the following activities

 Promotion of ducation, Capacity Building, mployment and ender equality

 Assistance to Orphanage, Old Age omes and Differently A led

 raining to promote nationally recogni ed Sports

 nvironment sustaina ility and Rural development

 ealthcare including Preventive health and radication of Malnutrition

 Protecting art and culture

 PI  has esta lished CSR Committee as per the provision of the Companies Act, 2013. CSR Committee recommends CSR activities 
to e underta en y the Company, to the Board as speci ed in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 (here in after referred to as 
the Schedule VII”).

 In every nancial year, Praj spends at least 2 per cent of the average net pro ts of the Company made during the 3 immediately 
preceding nancial years, in pursuance of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed there under for the purposes speci ed in 
Schedule VII and also in pursuance of this CSR Policy. 

 PI  underta es CSR activities primarily in and around the areas of operation of the Company. PI  e ecutes the CSR activities 
directly or through Praj Foundation or appropriate N Os. 

 PI  monitors the progress of the CSR project and activities regularly with respect to quality of its implementation, cost and schedule 
with the same vigor as its usiness activities. he impact assessment of its projects at suita le intervals are conducted diligently.

 PI  also encourages Personal Social Responsi ility (PSR) amongst PRAJites to enhance their social sensitivity y voluntary self-
engagement in social activities recogni ed under Schedule VII. PI  endeavors to underta e activities, not speci cally mentioned 
a ove, ut covered under Schedule VII.

 e  lin  to CSR policy  www.praj.net

2.  The Composition of the CSR Committee:-

Name of Director Chairperson /Member Date of Joining
Ms. Parimal Chaudhari Chairperson 25.10.2013
Mr. ishor Chau ar * Mem er 25.10.2013
Mr. Sivarama rishnan S. Iyer Mem er 25.10.2013
Mr. Daljit Mirchandani Mem er 10.02.2017
Ms. Mrunalini Joshi ** Mem er 11.08.2017

 * Mr. ishore Chau ar retired as Independent Director and as a Mem er of Committee with effect from 11th August, 2017. 

 **Ms. Mrunalini Joshi was appointed as Mem er of Committee with effect from 11th August, 2017.
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 ` 838.6 9 Mn.

4.  Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of the amount as in item 3 above) :-

 ` 16.773 Mn.

 (a)  otal amount to e spent for the nancial year

  ` 16.773 Mn.

 ( )  Amount unspent, if any

  Nil

 (c)  Manner in which the amount spent during the nancial year is detailed elow.

(Amount in `)
Sr. 
No

CSR Project or Activity Sector in 
which the 
project is 
covered

Projects or 
Programmes 1) Local 

Area or other  
2) Specify the state and 
district where projects 

or programme was 
undertaken

Amount 
outlay 

(budget) 
project or 

programme 
wise for  
2017-18

Amount spent on the 
projects or programmes 

Sub heads:  
1) Direct Expenditure on 

projects or programs  
2) Overheads during 

the year  
(1st Apr 2017 - 
31st Mar 2018)

Cumulative 
Expenditure 

upto the 
reporting 

period

Amount spent Direct or 
through implementing 

agency

1 Preventive health care 
among women

Clause I
Schedule VII

omen ene ciaries in 
Velhe alu a

500,000 96,5 0 1,827,625 hrough Rachana 
Society for Social 

Reconstruction
2 Preventive health care 

among women
Clause I
Schedule VII

omen ene ciaries in 
Velhe alu a

00,000 367,873 1,232,500 hrough Samaj Vi as 
Sanstha

3 Safe sanitation facility 
at  secondary school in 
Shi rapur

Clause I
Schedule VII

Students in std VIII- X 
in Velhe alu a

560,000 98,773 98,773 hrough al airavnath 
Madhyami  Vidyalaya, 

Post Shi rapur. Dist. 
Pune

Supporting M D 
Patients

Clause I
Schedule VII

Needy patients who 
require dialysis 

180,000 180,000 60,800 hrough M ospital, 
Renal Unit

5 Science Outreach 
Program in Municipal 
Schools

Clause II
Schedule VII

Std VII-Xth students 
from Pune Municipal 
Schools

250,000 250,000 950,000 hrough IIS R.

6 Provide life s ills  
vocational training to 
mentally challenged 
persons

Clause II
Schedule VII

Mentally challenged 
adults

100,000 100,000 00,000 hrough Nav shitij

7 ducational 
scholarship to 
deserving girl

Clause II
Schedule VII

One girl for pursuing 
her ngineering

95,000 89,155 2 6,887 Directly through Praj 
Foundation

8 o implement 
Introduction to Basic 

echnology (IB ) 
in schools to ma e 
them model for other 
schools

Clause II
Schedule VII

School children from 
std VIII-X

2,050,000 1,961,186 7,672,036 hrough Vigyan 
Ashram

9 S ills upgradation of 
children with special 
needs

Clause II
Schedule VII

Special children in and 
around Bangalore

200,000 200,000 00,000 hrough amahar 
rust

10 Upgrading s ills of I I 
Students

Clause II
Schedule VII

I I Students at Anjar, 
andla

200,000 156,0 5 156,0 5 Directly through Praj 
Foundation

11 it Bug Festival Clause II
Schedule VII

Children in Pune 100,000 100,000 3 0,000 hrough he Story 
Station
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(Amount in `)
Sr. 
No

CSR Project or Activity Sector in 
which the 
project is 
covered

Projects or 
Programmes 1) Local 

Area or other  
2) Specify the state and 
district where projects 

or programme was 
undertaken

Amount 
outlay 

(budget) 
project or 

programme 
wise for  
2017-18

Amount spent on the 
projects or programmes 

Sub heads:  
1) Direct Expenditure on 

projects or programs  
2) Overheads during 

the year  
(1st Apr 2017 - 
31st Mar 2018)

Cumulative 
Expenditure 

upto the 
reporting 

period

Amount spent Direct or 
through implementing 

agency

12 Operation of  
S R VA SA  (A 
C I D CAR  C N R 
OF SOFOS )

Clause III
Schedule VII

Orphans and family 
deprived children

00,000 00,000 1,600,000 hrough
Society of Friends 

of Sasoon ospitals 
(SOFOS )

13 Decentralised Solid 
waste management

Clause IV
Schedule VII

Citi ens of Pune 10,000 9,953 1,626,185 hrough now ow 
Foundation

1 Desilting percolation 
an

Clause IV
Schedule VII

Villagers in Jejuri 25,000 20,000 20,000 hrough Jejuri 
Industrial 

Manufacturer s 
Association (JIMA)

15 ree plantation around 
andla S

Clause IV
Schedule VII

or  force in andla 
S  area

265,000 260,308 260,308 Directly through Praj 
Foundation

16 raf c warden at 
hotawade Phata 

for improving traf c 
flow and reducing fuel 
wastage

Clause IV
Schedule VII

Commuters from 
Urawade, Paud

252,000 250,110 5 5,119 hrough Sumeet 
nterprises.

17 ater Resource 
Development at 
Auranjpur Phase II

Clause IV
Schedule VII

Villagers of Auranjpur 232,000 229,821 229,821 hrough Jan alyan 
Samiti

18 ater Resource 
Development at 

oradgaon Phase III

Clause IV
Schedule VII

Villagers of oradgaon 1,650,000 1,627,000 1,627,000 hrough Jan alyan 
Samiti

19 ater Resource 
Development at 

arihareshwar

Clause IV
Schedule VII

Villagers of 
arihareshwar

253,000 2 8,730 2 8,730 hrough Jan alyan 
Samiti

20 ater Resource 
Development at She te

Clause IV
Schedule VII

Villagers of She te 3,000,000 2,822,000 2,822,000 hrough Jan alyan 
Samiti

21 ater Resource 
Development at 

haradgaon

Clause IV
Schedule VII

Villagers of haradgaon 2,300,000 2,100,000 2,100,000 hrough Jan alyan 
Samiti

22 ater Resource 
Development at ivara 

Clause IV
Schedule VII

Villagers of ivara 3,700,000 3, 22,9 0 3, 22,9 0 hrough Savitri ai 
Phule Mahila atma 

Samaj Mandal
23 II  Bom ay Clause IX

Schedule VII
Students of II  Bom ay 1,000,000 1,000,000 ,000,000 hrough II  Bom ay

Total 17,722,000 16,790,434 32,686,769

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

he Responsi ility Statement of the Corporate Social Responsi ility (CSR) Committee of the Board of Directors of the PI  is reproduced 
elow

he implementation and monitoring of Corporate Social Responsi ility (CSR) Policy, is in compliance with CSR o jectives and policy of 
the PI .

Sachin Raole Parimal Chaudhari
CFO and Director- Finance  Commercial Chairperson - CSR Committee
(DIN  00 31 38) (DIN  0072 911) 

Place  Pune
Date  12th June, 2018
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ANNEXURE 3

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

1.  Company’s philosophy on Code of Governance

 Corporate overnance sets forth guidelines for managing and sustaining a transparent, information-oriented culture wherein 
authority and responsi ilities are co-e istent and co-e tensive. It also provides guidelines on accounta ility of various positions 
within the organi ation. hese values govern not only the Board of Directors, ut also the management and the employees of the 
Company. his overnance protects and alances the interests of all sta eholders there y enhancing shareholder value.

2.  Board of Directors (the Board):

  a)  Composition and Category of Directors:

  he Composition of the Board of your Company is a fair mi  of ecutive, Non- ecutive, and Independent Directors, which 
is appropriate for the si e and operations of your Company and is compliant with the applica le rules and guidelines. he 
strength of the Board was nine Directors as on 31stMarch, 2018, comprising of two hole-time Directors, si  Non- ecutive 
Directors. Four of the Non- ecutive Directors are Independent Directors. As on the date of this report, all Directors of the 
Company meet the criteria of ma imum num er of Directorship as laid down in Section 165 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
S BI ( isting O ligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

  )  Attendance of Directors at Board Meetings, last Annual eneral Meeting (A M) and num er of other Directorships and 
Chairmanships / Mem erships of Committees of each Director

Name of Director Nature of 
Directorship

Board Meetings 
attended during 

the year

Whether 
attended 
last AGM

No. of Directorships 
in other Public 

Limited Companies 2

No. of Committee 
Memberships 3

Chairman Member
Mr. Pramod Chaudhari PD, D 5 Yes 2 Nil Nil
Mr. Berjis Desai ID, N D 6 Yes 9 2 6
Ms. Parimal Chaudhari1 PD, N D 3 No Nil Nil 1
Mr. Rajiv Maliwal ID, N D 5 Yes Nil Nil Nil
Mr. Sivarama rishnan S. Iyer ID, N D 6 Yes 2
Mr. Daljit Mirchandani N D, NID No 2 1 2
Mr. Sachin Raole D 6 Yes Nil Nil 2
Ms. Mrunalini Joshi ID, N D 3 N.A. 2 Nil 1
Mr. ishor Chau ar5 ID, N D 1 Yes 6 2 5
Mr. Pra ash ul arni5 ID, N D 1 Yes Nil Nil Nil

  PD  Promoter Director, D  ecutive Director, ID  Independent Director, NID  Non Independent Director, N D - Non 
ecutive Director

  1 Ms. Parimal Chaudhari is wife of the ecutive Chairman, Mr. Pramod Chaudhari. None of the other Directors is related to 
any other director.

  2 cludes private (which are not holding or su sidiary of Pu lic Companies), foreign Companies  Section 8 Companies
  3 Mem erships / Chairmanship of Audit Committee and Sta eholders  Relationship Committee only have een considered for 

this purpose.
    Ms. Mrunalini Joshi has een appointed as Independent Director of the Company with effect from 11th August, 2017.
  5 Mr. ishor Chau ar and Mr. Pra ash ul arni retired as Independent Directors on 11th August, 2017. 

  Information as required under S BI ( isting O ligations  Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is furnished to the 
Board from time to time.

  c)  Number of Board Meetings and Dates :

  Si  (6) Board Meetings were held during the year ended 31st March, 2018. he dates are  2 th May, 30th June, 11th August,  
1st Novem er in the calendar year 2017 and 6th Fe ruary and 1 th March in the calendar year 2018. 

  Pursuant to Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 the Independent Directors met on 6th Fe ruary, 2018 without the presence 
of Non-Independent Directors and the Mem ers of the Management. he Independent Directors inter alia evaluated the 
performance Non-Independent Directors and the Board of Directors of whole.
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 d)  Number of shares and convertible instruments held by Non-Executive Directors as on 31/03/2018:

Name of Director Number of Equity 
Shares held 

Stock Options 
outstanding 

Grant Price per 
option (`)

Last date for 
conversion of 

options 

Mr. Berjis Desai  1, 81, 50 Nil N. A. N. A.
Ms. Parimal Chaudhari 1 , 00,000 Nil N. A. N. A.
Mr. Rajiv Maliwal Nil Nil N. A. N. A.
Mr. Sivarama rishnan S. Iyer  180,000 Nil N. A. N. A.
Mr. Daljit Mirchandani 1,200 Nil N. A. N. A.
Ms. Mrunalini Joshi Nil Nil N. A. N. A.

 e)  Familiarization programme for Independent Directors:

  he Board of Directors of the Company has adopted familiari ation program for Independent Directors. he details of such 
program are posted on the Company s we site at https //www.praj.net/wp-content/uploads/2018/01/familiari ation-
program-for-independent-directors-of-Praj-industries.pdf his program aims to provide insights into the Company to 
ena le the Independent Directors to understand its usiness in depth and contri ute signi cantly to the Company.

3.  Audit Committee:

 a.  Terms of Reference:

  he terms of reference of Audit Committee include overseeing the Company s nancial reporting process and disclosure of 
nancial information, reviewing with the management, the quarterly and annual nancial statements efore su mission to 

the Board for approval  reviewing with the management, the performance of Statutory and Internal Auditors and adequacy of 
internal control systems and all other matters speci ed under Regulation 18 read with Part C of Schedule II of S BI ( isting 
O ligations  Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and as per Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules 
framed there under.

  b.  Composition: 

   As on 31st March, 2018, the Audit Committee of the Company comprises of two Independent Non- ecutive Directors 
namely Mr. Berjis Desai (Chairman of the Committee), Mr. Sivarama rishnan S. Iyer and one ecutive Director namely 
Mr. Sachin Raole. Ms. Mrunalini Joshi, Non- ecutive Director in the category of Independent Director was appointed as 
Mem er of the Audit Committee only for the meeting held on 1st Novem er, 2017. Composition of the Audit Committee meets 
the requirements of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of S BI ( isting O ligations  Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 c.  Meetings: 

  his Committee met ve times during the year i.e. 2 th May, 11th August, 29th Septem er and 1st Novem er in the calendar year 
2017 and 6th Fe ruary in the calendar year 2018. 

  Attendance of each Member at the Audit Committee meetings held during the year:

Name of Director No. of Meetings entitled to attend Meetings attended
Mr. Berjis Desai 5 5
Mr. Sivarama rishnan S. Iyer 5 5
Mr. Sachin Raole 5 5
Ms. Mrunalini Joshi1 1 1

  1 only for the meeting held on 1st Novem er, 2017. 

  In addition to the mem ers of Audit Committee, ecutives of Accounts Department, Secretarial Department and 
Representatives of the Statutory, Cost and Internal Auditors attended the Audit Committee Meetings. Senior Functional 

ecutives are also invited as and when required, to provide necessary inputs to the Committee. he Company Secretary 
acts as the Secretary of the Audit Committee. 

4.  Nomination & Remuneration Committee:

 a. Terms of Reference: 

  he Nomination  Remuneration Committee has een constituted to recommend / review the remuneration of ecutive 
Directors of the Company, to identify persons who are quali ed to ecome Directors and who may e appointed in Senior 



23

Annual Report
2017-18

We Create, We Contribute.
Management and to carry out such other duties and functions as stipulated in Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with rules framed thereunder and Regulation 19 read with Part D of Schedule II of S BI ( isting O ligations  Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. he Nomination  Remuneration Policy of the Company is attached as Anne ure 8 to the 
Directors  Report.

 b.  Composition:

  As on 31st March, 2018, the Nomination  Remuneration Committee of the Company comprises of three Non- ecutive 
Directors namely Mr. Berjis Desai (Non- ecutive Independent Director, Chairman of the Committee), Mr. Rajiv Maliwal (Non-

ecutive Independent Director) and Mr. Sivarama rishnan S. Iyer (Non- ecutive Independent Director) and one ecutive 
Director, Mr. Pramod Chaudhari.

 c.  Meetings: 

  his Committee met four times during the year i.e. on 2 th May, 30th June, 11th August in the calendar year 2017 and  
1 th March in the calendar year 2018.

  Attendance of each Member at the Nomination & Remuneration Committee meetings held during the year:

Name of Director No. of Meetings entitled to attend Meetings attended
Mr. Berjis Desai
Mr. Rajiv Maliwal 3
Mr. Sivarama rishnan S. Iyer
Mr. Pramod Chaudhari 3

5. Performance Evaluation Criteria for Independent Directors :

 Reference please e made to the Directors  Report wherein information regarding Performance valuation has een provided. 

 Remuneration Policy: 

 he Remuneration Policy of the Company ta es into account the individual performance and contri ution of the Director, the 
pro ta ility of the Company, prevalent industry standards and government policy in this regard. 

 he Policy is displayed on Company s we site i.e. https //www.praj.net/wp-content/uploads/2018/01/nomination-and-
remuneration-policy.pdf 

 (i) Remuneration of Executive Directors: 

  he aggregate value of Salary  Perquisites including commission for the year ended 31st March, 2018 to the ecutive 
Directors is as follows

  Mr. Pramod Chaudhari, ecutive Chairman ` 5.767 Mn. (Salary ` 5.232 Mn., Perquisites ` 0.535Mn., Commission ` Nil and 
Varia le pay `-Nil), Mr. Sachin Raole, CFO and Director  Finance  Commercial ` 6.759 Mn. (Salary ` 6.369 Mn., Varia le pay 
` 0.390 Mn.). Besides this, the ecutive Directors are also entitled to gratuity and encashment of leave, as per the rules of 
the Company. 

  he current tenure of of ce of the ecutive Chairman is for a period of 2 years from the date of appointment i.e. up to  
31st July, 2019. As per agreement, Severance Fee is restricted to 2  months  salary. Notice period is not applica le.

  he tenure of of ce of the CFO and Director  Finance  Commercial is for a period from 16th January, 2017 till 31st July, 2019. 
As per agreement, notice period is 3 months.

  Under SOP 2011 rant VI, 100,000 Options have een granted to Mr. Sachin Raole at Fair Mar et Value (not issued at 
discount). Out of a ove mentioned 100000 options, 66660 options are vested till 31/01/2018 and the same are e ercisa le 

y him on or efore 30/07/2019 as per the terms of the Scheme.

  Also under SOP 2011 rant VII, 75,000 Options have een granted to Mr. Sachin Raole at Fair Mar et Value (issued at 
30% discount over average mar et price). All 75,000 options, will vest on 27/09/2018 in one instalment and the same are 
e ercisa le y him on or efore 30/09/2019 as per the terms of the Scheme.

 (ii)  Compensation to Non – Executive Directors: 

  As a policy, the Company does not pay any sitting fees to Directors for attendance of the Meetings. he commission on pro t 
is paya le to Non- ecutive Directors on the asis of their time and contri ution. he criteria of ma ing payments to Non-

ecutive Directors are disclosed in the Nomination  Remuneration Policy which forms part of this report.
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  he shareholders of the Company had, in the 28th Annual eneral Meeting held on 28th July, 201 , approved payment 
of commission on pro ts to Non  ecutive Directors up to a limit of 3% of the net pro t of the Company calculated in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. he Board of Directors is authori ed, within this limit, to decide 
the quantum and the recipients for such payment. 

  he Commission to Non- ecutive Directors for 2017-18 is ` .500 Mn. he details are as follows

  Mr. Berjis Desai ` 1.350 Mn., Ms. Parimal Chaudhari ` 1.000 Mn., Mr. Rajiv Maliwal ` 0. 50 Mn., Mr. Sivarama rishnan S. Iyer 
` 1.350 Mn. and Ms. Mrunalini Joshi ` 0.350 Mn. 

  he Non- ecutive Directors have no pecuniary relationship or transaction with the Company other than commission paid 
to them e cept the professional fees paid to Mr. Daljit Mirchandani, Non- ecutive, Non-Independent Director. owever, the 
amount is not material in nature.

6.  Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee:

 a.  Composition:

  As on 31st March, 2018, the Sta eholders  Relationship Committee of the Board comprises of three Directors namely  
Mr. Sivarama rishnan S. Iyer, Non- ecutive Independent Director (Chairman of the Committee), Mr. Sachin Raole, ecutive 
Director and Ms. Parimal Chaudhari, Non- ecutive Non-Independent Director. 

  Mr. Dattatraya Nim ol ar, Chief Internal Auditor  Company Secretary acts as a Compliance Of cer.

 c.  Number of Complaints:

  During the year the Company received 32 complaints which were duly attended to. No investors  complaint is pending as on 
31st March, 2018. All the complaints were solved to the satisfaction of shareholders.

  d.  Meetings:

  his Committee met four times during the year ended 31st March, 2018. he dates are  2 th May, 11th August,  
1st Novem er in the calendar year 2017 and 6th Fe ruary in the calendar year 2018. 

  Attendance of each Member at the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee meetings held during the year:

Name of Director No. of Meetings entitled to attend Meetings attended
Ms. Parimal Chaudhari 3
Mr. Sivarama rishnan S. Iyer
Mr. Sachin Raole

7.  Corporate Social Responsibility Committee:

 a.  Terms of Reference:

  he Committee was constituted vide the Board Meeting held on 25th Octo er, 2013 to

  i. Formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsi ility Policy indicating the activities to e 
underta en y the Company as speci ed in Schedule VII.

  ii. Recommend the amount of e penditure to e incurred on the activities referred to in clause (i).

  iii. Monitor the Corporate Social Responsi ility Policy of the Company from time to time.

 b.  Composition:

  As on 31st March, 2018, the Corporate Social Responsi ility Committee of the Board comprises of ve Directors namely 
Ms. Parimal Chaudhari (Non- ecutive Non-Independent Director, Chairperson of the Committee), Mr.Sivarama rishnan Iyer 
(Non- ecutive, Independent Director), Mr. Daljit Mirchandani (Non ecutive  Non Independent Director) and Ms. Mrunalini 
Joshi (Non- ecutive  Independent Director) 

 c.  Meetings:

  he Committee met three times i.e. on 2 th May, 1st Novem er in the Calendar year 2017 and 6th Fe ruary in the calendar year 
2018. 
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  Attendance of each Member at the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee Meetings held during the year:

Name of Director No. of Meetings entitled to attend Meetings attended
Ms. Parimal Chaudhari  3 3
Mr. ishor Chau ar1 1 0
Mr. Sivarama rishnan S. Iyer 3 3
Mr. Daljit Mirchandani 3 3
Ms. Mrunalini Joshi 2 2 2

  1Mr. ishor Chau ar ceased to e Mem er of the Committee with effect from 11th August, 2017. 
  2Ms. Mrunalini Joshi was appointed as a Mem er of the Committee with effect from 11th August, 2017. 

8. Share Transfer Committee:

 a.  Composition:

  As on 31st March, 2018, the Share ransfer committee of the Board comprises of three Directors namely Mr. Sachin Raole 
( ecutive Director, Chairman of the Committee), Ms. Parimal Chaudhari (Non- ecutive Non-Independent Director) and  
Mr. Sivarama rishnan Iyer (Non- ecutive, Independent Director)

 b.  Meetings:

  his Committee met four times during the year ended 31st March, 2018. he dates are- 2 th May, 27th Novem er in the 
calendar year 2017 and 2 th January and 19th March in the calendar year 2018. 

  Attendance of each Member at the Share Transfer Committee meetings held during the year:

Name of Director No. of Meetings entitled to attend Meetings attended
Mr. Sachin Raole
Ms. Parimal Chaudhari
Mr. Pra ash ul arni 1 1 1
Mr. Sivarama rishnan S. Iyer 2 3 0

  1 Mr. Pra ash ul arni ceased to e mem er of the Committee with effect from 11th August, 2017.
  2 Mr. Sivarama rishnan Iyer was inducted as a Mem er of the Committee effect from 11th August, 2017. 

9. Compensation & Share Allotment Committee :-

 a.  Composition:

  As on 31st March, 2018, the Compensation  Share Allotment Committee of the Board comprises of ve Directors, namely  
Mr. Sivarama rishnan Iyer (Non- ecutive Independent Director, Chairman of the Committee), Mr. Berjis Desai (Non-

ecutive Independent Director), Mr. Pramod Chaudhari ( ecutive Chairman) , Mr. Daljit Mirchandani (Non- ecutive Non-
Independent Director) and Ms. Mrunailini Joshi (Non- ecutive -Independent Director)

 b.  Meetings:

  his Committee met twelve times during the year ended 31st March, 2018. he dates are  26th April, 2 th May, 30th June, 1 th 
July, 11th August, 27th Septem er, 1st Novem er, 27th Novem er, 27th Decem er in the calendar year 2017 and 2 th January, 20th 
Fe ruary and 19th March in the calendar year 2018.

  Attendance of each Member at the Compensation and Share Allotment Committee meetings held during the year:

Name of Director No. of Meetings entitled to attend Meetings attended
Mr. Sivarama rishnan S. Iyer 12
Mr. Berjis Desai 12
Mr. Pramod Chaudhari 12 12
Mr. Par ash ul arni 1 0 03
Mr. ishor Chau ar 2 0 03
Mr. Daljit Mirchandani 12 08
Ms. Mrunalini Joshi 3 07 07

  1 Mr. Pra ash ul arni ceased to e mem er of Committee with effect from 11th August, 2017.
  2 Mr. ishor Chau ar ceased to e mem er of Committee with effect from 11th August, 2017.
  3 Ms. Mrunalini Joshi was appointed as mem er of Committee with effect from 11th August, 2017. 



26

10. General Body Meetings:

 Details of last three Annual eneral Meetings (A Ms) are given in ta le elow

Year Venue Date & Time Special Resolutions passed 
201 -15 Praj ower”, S.No. 27   275/2, Bhum ar Chow - injewadi 

Road, injewadi, Pune  11 057
6th August, 2015
10.00 a.m.

Nil

2015-16 Praj ower”, S.No. 27   275/2, Bhum ar Chow - injewadi 
Road, injewadi, Pune  11 057

22nd July, 2016  
10.00 a.m. 

Nil

2016-17 Praj ower”, S.No. 27   275/2, Bhum ar Chow - injewadi 
Road, injewadi, Pune  11 057

11th August, 2017  
10.00 a.m. 

Nil

 No Special Resolution was passed through postal allot in the year 2017-18.

11.  Means of Communication:

 he quarterly / half  yearly nancial results  uarterly / half yearly nancial results are pu lished in widely circulating dailies 
such as o satta, he conomic imes, Financial press, Business Standard, Indian press and he indu Business ine.

 News Release, Presentations etc.  Of cial news release, detailed presentations made to media, analysts etc. are displayed 
on the Company s we site www.praj.net. Of cial Media Releases are sent to the Stoc  changes.

 e site  he Company s we site www.praj.net contains a dedicated section Investor ounge” where information for 
shareholders is availa le. he Annual Reports of the Company are also availa le on the we site in a downloada le form.

 Annual Report  Annual Report containing, inter alia, Audited Financial Statements, Consolidated Financial Statements, 
Directors  Report, Auditors  Report and other important information is circulated to mem ers and others entitled thereto. he 
Management Discussion and Analysis (MDA) Report forms part of the Annual Report. he quarterly / half  yearly un-audited 

nancial results and of cial news releases are displayed on the Company s we site.

12. General Shareholder Information:

 Annual General Meeting:

  Date & Time : 6th August, 2018 at 10.00 a.m .(proposed date and time) 

 Venue  : Praj ower, S. No. 27   275/2, Bhum ar Chow - injewadi Road,
      injewadi, Pune 11 057

  Financial Year :  1st April to 31st March 

 Dividend Payment Date :  By 31st August 2018

 Stock / Scrip Code / ISIN / CIN/Address of Stock Exchanges

National Stoc  change of India td. (NS )
Stoc  Code PRAJIND

Address 
Plot no. C/1,  Bloc ,
Bandra- urla Comple ,
Bandra ( ast), 
Mum ai  00 051

BS  td. 
Stoc  Code 522205

Address
Phiro e Jeejee hoy owers,
25th Floor, Dalal Street,
Mum ai  00 001

ISIN with NSD   CDS IN 07 A01025
Company Identi cation Num er (CIN) 27101PN1985P C038031

 he Annual isting Fees for 2017-2018 have een paid to oth the Stoc  changes.
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 Financial Calendar

 For the year ended 31st March, 2018 quarterly results were announced on

Results for the quarter ended June 2017 11th August, 2017
Results for the quarter ended Septem er 2017 1st Novem er, 2017
Results for the quarter ended Decem er 2017 6th Fe ruary, 2018
Results for nancial year ended March 2018 16th May, 2018

  For the year ended 31st March, 2019, the tentative announcement dates are

Results for the quarter ending June 2018 First wee  of August 2018
Results for the quarter ending Septem er 2018 Third wee  of Octo er 2018
Results for the quarter ending Decem er 2018 Fourth wee  of January 2019
Results for last quarter ending March 2019 Third wee  of May 2019

 Stock Market Price Data

 Monthly high / low during the year 2017– 2018 on BSE & NSE: 

Month BSE NSE
High (`) Low (`) High (`) Low (`)

 April 2017 89.90 76.60 90.35 76.00
 May 2017 87.25 75. 5 87. 0 75. 5
 June 2017 81.00 75.15 80.95 75.10
 July 2017 8 .90 7 .20 8 .95 65.00
 August 2017 77.80 65.20 77.50 65.55
 Septem er 2017 7 .10 63.00 7 .15 65.30
 Octo er 2017 80. 0 61.00 80.50 65.05
 Novem er 2017 12 .50 75.00 12 . 0 75.55
 Decem er 2017 119.20 101.10 119.15 101.15
 January 2018 131.50 10 .50 131.50 10 .30
 Fe ruary 2018 109.15 87.00 109.25  87.10
 March 2018 92.50 76.55 92.25 76. 5

 (Source  his information is compiled from the data availa le from the we sites of BS  and NS )

 PERFORMANCE AND COMPARISON TO BROAD BASED INDICES SUCH AS BSE SENSEX, NSE INDEX. 
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 Investor Services:

 Share Transfer Agent

 in  Intime India Private imited. 
 Bloc  No. 202, 2nd Floor, A shay Comple , 
 Off  Dhole Patil Road, Pune - 11 001.
 el.  (020) - 2616008 , 26161629 elefa  020 - 26163503

 Share Transfer System

 he Company s shares, which are in compulsory demateriali ed (demat) form, are transfera le through the depository system. 
Shares in physical form are processed y R   Agents, in  Intime India Private imited. he share transfers are processed within 
a period of 15 days from the date of receipt of the transfer documents y in  Intime India Private imited at the a ove address.

 he mem ers holding shares in electronic mode should address their correspondence to their respective Depository Participant 
regarding change of address, change of an  account mandate and nomination. 

 Investor Help – desk

 Share transfers and all other investor related activities are attended to and processed at the of ce of our R   Agents vi . in  
Intime India Private imited. 

 In order to facilitate investor servicing, the Company has designated an e-mail id investorsfeed ac praj.net mainly for registering 
complaints y investors. Shareholders are requested to address their complaints, if any, on this designated email id only, for quic  
redressal thereof. 

 Dividend

 Dividend and other related activities are handled jointly y in  house Secretarial Department and R   Agents. 

 Distribution of shareholding as on 31st March, 2018

Shareholding of nominal value Shareholders Percentage Nominal Value of Equity 
Shares in `

Percentage

 1 - 5000 102,6 5 97.72 7,319,220 13.08
 5001 - 10000 1,301 1.2 9,587,37 2.65
 10001 - 20000 578 0.55 8,617,568 2.38
 20001 - 30000 165 0.16 ,15 ,12 1.15
 30001 - 0000 90 0.08 3,315,09 0.91
 0001 - 50000 9 0.05 2,27 ,978 0.63
 50001 - 100000 96 0.09 6,722,95 1.86
100001 and a ove 118 0.11 279,873,518 77.3
Total 105,042 100.00 361,864,830 100.00

 Dematerialisation of Shares and Liquidity:

 As on 31st March, 2018, 99.86% of shareholding was held in demateriali ed form with National Securities Depository td. (NSD ) 
and Central Depository Services (India) td. (CDS ). In terms of the noti cation issued y S BI, trading in the equity shares of the 
Company is permitted only in demateriali ed form w.e.f. 15th March, 2000. 

 Physical and Demat Shares: 

As on  31st March, 2018 %

No. of Shares held y NSD 91,500,204 50.57

No. of Shares held y CDS 89,174,141 9.29

Physical Shares 258,070 0.1

Total 180,932,415 100.00
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 Shareholding Pattern as on 31st March, 2018

Category 31/03/2018 31/03/2017
No. Of shares of ` 2/- each % of holding No. Of shares of ` 2/- each % of holding

Promoters olding 60,300,000 60,300,000
Total (A) 60,300,000 33.33 60,300,000 33.88
Non  Promoter olding
Mutual Funds 28,770,961 15.90 28,982,980 16.28
Alternate Investment Funds 2,585,000 1.43 - -
Foreign Portfolio Investor 23,952,180 13.24 11,0 6,701 6.20
Central overnment/ State overnment 105,596 0.06 - -
Financial Institutions/ Ban s 2,339,198 1.29 6,132,887 3. 5
Individuals 39,391,639 21.77 2,578,3 7 23.92

rusts 5,100 0.003 3,100 0.00
Foreign Nationals - - 300 0.00

indu Undivided Families 1,411,237 0.78 1,379,767 0.78
Non-Resident Indians 1,559,983 0.86 ,885,071 2.75
Clearing Mem ers 989,745 0.55 768,997 0.
Bodies Corporate 18,957,941 10.48 21,89 ,259 12.30

SOP 563,835 0.31 - -
Total (B) 120,632,415 66.67 117,672, 09 66.12
Total (A) + (B) 180,932,415 100.00 177,972, 09 100.00

Foreign Portfolio 
Investor 
13.24%

Bodies Corporate
10.48%

Mutual Funds
15.90%

Financial Institution/
Banks 1.29%

Alternate Investment 
Funds 1.43%

Individuals 
21.77%

Others 
1.70%

Promoters Holding
33.33

NRI
 0.86 %

 Unclaimed Dividend:

 Mem ers may please note that pursuant to Section 12  of the Companies Act, 2013, the dividend remaining unpaid or unclaimed 
for a period of seven years from the date of transfer to Unpaid Dividend Account of the Company will e transferred to the Investor 

ducation and Protection Fund (I PF) set up y overnment of India and no payments shall e made in respect of any such claims. 
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 iven elow are the dates of declaration of dividend and corresponding dates when unpaid/unclaimed dividends are due for 
transfer to the I PF.

Financial Year Type Date of Declaration Due date of transfer to IEPF
2010-11 Dividend 2010-11 22/07/2011 26/08/2018
2011-12 Dividend 2011-12 20/07/2012 25/08/2019
2012-13 Dividend 2012-13 22/07/2013 26/08/2020
2013-1 Interim Dividend 13-1 .

Final Dividend 2013-1
05/02/201
28/07/201

12/03/2021
01/09/2021

201 -15 Dividend 201 -15 06/08/2015 10/09/2022
2015-16 Interim Dividend 2015-16 12/03/2016 17/0 /2023
2016-17 Dividend 2016-17 11/08/2017 15/09/202

 Plant Locations:

 he Company has its manufacturing facilities at the following places

 1. S. No. 7 8, Sanaswadi, Pune- 12 307, Maharashtra, India.

 2. Plot No. -20  -21 additional MIDC area, Jejuri al. Purandar, Pune  12 203, Maharashtra, India.

 3. andla S  Unit I Plot No 307 to 31  and Unit II at Plot No. 282 to 286 and 29  to 298, Sector IV andhidham, utch, 370230, 
ujrat, India.

 Address for correspondence:

 As stated earlier, investors are requested to contact in  Intime India Pvt. td., Bloc  No. 202, 2nd floor, A shay Comple , Near 
anesh emple, Off Dhole Patil Road, Pune 11 001 for queries and share related matters.

13.  Other Disclosures:

  here were no materially signi cant related party transactions which could have had potential conflict with the interests 
of the Company. ransactions with related parties are entered into y the Company in the normal course of usiness and 
at arm s length. he details of transactions are periodically placed efore the Audit Committee for review and approval. 
Mem ers may refer to the notes to the accounts for details of related party transactions.

  he Board of Directors of the Company has, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, adopted a policy to regulate 
transactions etween the Company and its Related Parties, in compliance with the applica le provisions of the Companies Act 
2013 read with the Rules framed there under including the S BI ( isting O ligations  Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015. he policy has een placed on the we site of the Company at https //www.praj.net/wp-content/uploads/2018/01/
praj-policy-on-related-party-transactions.pdf 

 b. Statutory compliance, Penalties and Strictures:

  here has not een any non  compliance, penalties or strictures imposed on the Company y the Stoc  changes, or any 
other statutory authority on any matter relating to the Capital Mar et during the last three years.

 c. Vigil mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy :-

  In accordance with requirement of Companies Act,2013 as well as S BI ( isting O ligations  Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 a vigil mechanism/ histle Blower Policy has een adopted y the Board of Directors and accordingly a 
whistle lower policy has een formulated with a view to provide a mechanism for employees of the Company to approach 
the Audit Committee of the Company to report any grievance. No person has een denied access to the Audit Committee. 

 d. Details of Compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of Non-Mandatory Requirements:

  he Company has complied with the applica le mandatory requirements of the S BI ( isting O ligations  Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

  he Company has adopted following non-mandatory requirements as speci ed in Part  of Schedule II of the S BI ( isting 
O ligations  Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

  i.  Shareholders’ Rights:

   he nancial results are pu lished in the o satta, he conomic imes, Financial press, Business Standard, Indian 
press and he indu Business ine and are also displayed on the Company s we site as well as the we sites of the 
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Stoc  changes on which the Company s shares are listed and therefore, have not een separately circulated to the 
shareholders.

   During the year under review, there was no audit quali cation in the Auditors  Report on the Company s Financial 
Statements.

   Mr. Pramod Chaudhari is ecutive Chairman. Mr. Shishir Joshipura has een appointed as Chief ecutive Of cer and 
Managing Director with effect from 2nd April, 2018. 

  iv.  Reporting of Internal Auditor:

   Internal Auditor directly reports to the Audit Committee.

   v.  Retirement Guidelines:

   ecutive Directors will retire at the age of 65 years and Non  ecutive Directors at the age of 70 years. 

   owever, the Board is at li erty to grant e tensions according to which, the term of of ce of Mr. Pramod Chaudhari, 
ecutive Chairman is e tended despite his crossing the age of 65 years which is well within the ma imum age limit 

prescri ed under Section 196 (3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013.

 e.  Web link where policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries is disclosed:

  he policy for determining material  su sidiaries is disclosed on at https //www.praj.net/wp-content/uploads/2018/01/
policy-on-material-su sidiary.pdf 

 f. web link where policy on dealing with related party transactions is disclosed:

  he policy on dealing with related party transactions is disclosed on at https //www.praj.net/wp-content/uploads/2018/01/
praj-policy-on-related-party-transactions.pdf

 g.  Disclosure of Commodity price risks and commodity hedging activities:

  he principal raw material of the Company is Steel. It is procured from the domestic as well as overseas suppliers. Some of 
the other raw materials are also procured from the overseas mar ets. he Company has got appropriate mechanism to deal 
with fluctuation in material prices.

14.  Code of Conduct:

 he Board has introduced a Code of Conduct for Directors and mem ers of Senior Management. he Code is posted on Company s 
we site  https //www.praj.net/wp-content/uploads/2018/01/praj-code-of-conduct-for- oard-and-senior-management.pdf 

 he Board mem ers and Senior Management Personnel have af rmed compliance with the Code. A declaration to that effect 
signed y Mr. Shishir Joshipura, C O  Managing Director and Mr. Sachin Raole, CFO  Ditrector-Finance and Commercial forms 
part of this Report.

 As per the requirement of Regulation 17(8) of the S BI ( isting O ligations  Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, read with 
the FA s dtd. January 8, 2016, issued y S BI, a Certi cate, duly signed y C O and CFO of the Company, was placed at the Board 
Meeting of the Company held on 16th May 2018 and the same forms part of this report.

 he Company has o tained a Certi cate from Mr. Vi as hare, Partner, ANJ  Co. P, regarding Compliance of conditions 
of Corporate overnance as stipulated in Regulation 15(2) read with Clause C of Schedule V of the S BI ( isting O ligations  
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the same forms part of this Report. 
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CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REQUIREMENTS

o,
he Board of Directors

Praj Industries imited
Pune

Dear Sirs/Madam,

his is to certify that

A.  e have reviewed nancial statements and the cash flow statement for the year and that to the est of our nowledge and elief

 (1)  these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that might 
e misleading

 (2)  these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company s affairs and are in compliance with e isting 
accounting standards, applica le laws and regulations.

B.  here are, to the est of our nowledge and elief, no transactions entered into y the listed entity during the year which are 
fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company s Code of Conduct.

C.  e accept responsi ility for esta lishing and maintaining internal controls for nancial reporting and that we have evaluated the 
effectiveness of internal control systems of the listed entity pertaining to nancial reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors 
and the audit committee, that there were no de ciencies in the design or operation of such internal controls of which we are aware.

D.  e have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee

 (1)  that there were no signi cant changes in internal control over nancial reporting during the year

 (2)  that there were no signi cant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have een disclosed in the 
notes to the nancial statements  and

 (3)  that there were no instances of signi cant fraud of which we have ecome aware and the involvement therein, of the 
management or an employee having a signi cant role in Company s internal control system over nancial reporting.

 
   FOR PRAJ INDUSTRIES LIMITED

  SHISHIR JOSHIPURA  SACHIN RAOLE
  C O and MANA IN  DIR C OR  CFO and DIR C OR  FINANC     
    COMM RCIA

Date 12th June, 2018
Place  Pune

DECLARATION FOR COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CONDUCT

o the mem ers of PRAJ INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Pursuant to Regulation 17 (5) ( ) and Regulation 26(3) read with Schedule V to the S BI ( isting O ligations  Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, we here y declare that all Board mem ers and Senior Management personnel are aware of the provisions of the Code 
of Conduct laid down y the Board (as amended from time to time) and made effective from 28th January, 2006. All Board mem ers and 
Senior Management personnel have af rmed compliance with the Code of Conduct.

   FOR PRAJ INDUSTRIES LIMITED

  SHISHIR JOSHIPURA  SACHIN RAOLE
  C O and MANA IN  DIR C OR  CFO and DIR C OR  FINANC     
    COMM RCIA

Date 12th June, 2018
Place  Pune
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CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REQUIREMENTS

(As per clause C of Schedule V of the Securities change Board of India ( isting O ligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 
2015 read with regulation 3 (3) of the said isting Regulations).

he Mem ers,
Praj Industries imited
Praj ower”,

S. No. 27  and 275/2
Bhum ar Chow - injewadi Road

injewadi, 
Pune 11 057 

e have e amined the compliance of conditions of Corporate overnance y Praj Industries imited ( the Company”) for the year ended 
on 31st March, 2018, as referred to in regulation 15(2) read with clause C of Schedule V read with regulation 3 (3) of the said isting 
Regulations of the Securities change Board of India ( isting O ligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter, 
collectively referred to as the isting Regulations). 

e have e amined the compliance y the Company of the requirements under isting Regulations, for the year ended 31stMarch, 2018.

he compliance of conditions of Corporate overnance is the responsi ility of the Management. Our e amination was limited to 
procedures and implementation thereof adopted y the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate overnance. 

In our opinion, and to the est of our information and according to the e planations given to us, we certify that the Company has complied 
with the conditions of Corporate overnance as stipulated in the isting Regulations. 

e state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future via ility of the Company nor the ef ciency or effectiveness with 
which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

For KANJ & Co., L.L.P.
Company Secretaries 

Vikas Y. Khare
Partner 

Mem ership No  FCS- 35 1
CP No  2107

Pune,12th June, 2018
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Annexure 4

ESOP DISCLOSURE

Statement as on 31st March, 2018 for Employee Stock Option Scheme 2011 as required under Regulation 14 of the Securities and 

Sr. 
No.

Particulars ESOP 2011 

1 Date of Meeting Annual eneral Meeting held on 22/07/2011
2 otal num er of options approved under the Scheme 92,38,936
3 Vesting requirements 1 to  years

ercise price or pricing formula 27th Jan., 2015 ` 55.75
6th Aug., 2015 ` 11 .32
31st Aug., 2015 ` 85.32
1 th Oct., 2015 ` 81.70
17th Nov., 2015 ` 85.37
22nd July, 2016 ` 85.25
27th Sept., 2017 ` 50/-

5 Source of shares Primary
6 Variation in terms of options Nil
7 Options movement during the year

i. Num er of Options outstanding at the eginning of the year 25,02,060
ii. Num er of Options granted during the year 19,69,700
iii. Num er of Options forfeited / cancelled during the year 98,000
iv. Num er of Options e ercised during the year 1 ,88,227
v. Num er of shares arising as a result of e ercise of options 1 ,88,227
vi. Money realised y e ercise of options during the year ` 85.305 Million
vii. Num er of Options outstanding at the end of the year 28,85,533
viii. Num er of Options e ercisa le at the end of the year 8,90, 93

8 mployee wise details of options granted to
i. ey Managerial Personnel
 1.  Mr. Sachin Raole, CFO and Director Finance  Commercial 1,75,000
 2.  Mr. Dattatraya Nim ol ar, Chief Internal Auditor   Company Secretary 1, 5,000
ii.  Any other employee who receives a grant in any one year of option amounting 

to 5% or more of options granted during that year
None

iii.  Identi ed employees who were granted option, during any one year, equal 
to or e ceeding one percent of the issued capital (e cluding outstanding 
warrants and conversions) of the Company at the time of grant

None

9 eighted average fair value of options as on the date of grant 27th Jan., 2015 ` 1 .62
6th Aug., 2015 ` 32.71

31st Aug., 2015 ` 26.22
1 th Oct., 2015 ` 23.80
17th Nov., 2015 ` 26.93
22nd July, 2016 ` 27.75

27th Sept., 2017 ` 2 .18
10 Method used for calculating fair value of options Blac  Scholes Option pricing model
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Signi cant assumptions used in arriving at the fair value of Options under Blac  Scholes model are as stated elow

Particulars 27th January,  
2015 

6th August,  
2015

31st August, 
2015

14th October, 
2015

17th 
November, 

2015

22nd July, 
2016

27th 
September, 

2017 

1) Ris -free interest rate 7.7 % 7.80% 7.80% 7.56% 7.68% 6.90% 6. 5%

2)  pected ife 1-2 years 1-2 years 1-3 years 1-2 years 1-2 years 1-2 years 1.5 years

3)  pected Volatility * 52.53% 57.55% 59.90% 59.08% 58.95% 59. 3% 3.01%

)  pected Dividend Yield 3.08% 3.08% 3.08% 3.08% 3.08% 3.03% 2.96%

5)  Price of the underlying 
share in mar et at 
the time of grant of 
Options

` 55.75 Rs.113.75 ` 8 . 5 ` 81.50 ` 85.30 ` 90.50 ` 68.50

*  pected volatility has een determined ased on closing price of the share of the Company over a period of 1.5 years.
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ANNEXURE 5

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN AS ON THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31.03.2018

Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 201  

I.  REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS  

 i)  CIN:- 27101PN1985P C038031

 ii)  Registration Date:- 08.11.1985

 iii)  Name of the Company: Praj Industries Limited 

 iv)  Category / Sub-Category of the Company : Company imited y Shares/Indian Non- overnment Company.

 v)   Praj ower”, S.No. 27   275/2, Bhum ar Chow - injewadi Road, 
injewadi, Pune  11 057. Ph  +91 2071802000 Fa   +91 20 229 1299, e-mail  info  praj.net

 vi)  Whether listed Company : Yes

 vii)  Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any : in  Intime India Pvt. td., Bloc  No. 
202, 2nd floor, A shay Comple , Near anesh emple, Off Dhole Patil Road, Pune 11 001. Ph  +91 202616008 ,  
e-mail  rnt.helpdes lin intime.co.in. 

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

 All the usiness activities contri uting 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company shall e stated -

Sr. 
No. 

Name and Description of main products / services NIC Code of the Product/ 
service 

% to total turnover of the 
Company

1 Manufacture of other Special- Purpose Machinery n.e.c. 28299 100
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III.  PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

Sr. 
No.

Name and Address of the Company CIN/GLN Holding/ 
subsidiary/ 
associate 

% of shares 
held 

Applicable 
Section 

1 Praj ngineering  Infra td.
 Praj ower”, S. No. 27   275/2, Bhum ar 

Chow - injewadi Road, injewadi, 
Pune  11 057.

U 520 PN1993P C073239 Su sidiary 99.65 2(87)(ii)

2 Praj iPurity Systems td.
1211, Solitaire Corporate Par , 1st Floor, 
Building 12, Andheri- hat opar in  Road, 
Andheri ( ast), 
Mum ai  00 093

U 1000M 2007P C175261 Su sidiary 100.00 2(87)(ii)

3 Praj Far ast Philippines td. Inc.
17th Floor, i erty Center, 10  .V. Dela Costa 
Street, Salcedo Village, Ma ati City, Metro 
Manila, Philippines 

N.A. Su sidiary 100.00 2(87)(ii)

Praj Far ast Co. td.
15, Su humvit Soi 31, 
Su humvit Road, longtoeyNua, 

attana, Bang o  10110, hailand.

N.A. Su sidiary 100.00 2(87)(ii)

5 Praj Americas Inc,
1 511 Old aty Road, Suite 370, 

ouston, e as 77079, USA

N.A. Su sidiary 100.00 2(87)(ii)

6 Praj Industries (Africa) (Pty.) td.
7, est Street, oughton, 2198, PO o  157 , 
Johannes urg, South Africa 

N.A. Su sidiary 100.00 2(87)(ii)

7 Praj Industries (Nami ia) Pty. td.
Shop 8, Second Floor, Old Power Station 
Comple , Armstrong, PO Bo  90757 

indhoe , Nami ia

N.A. Su sidiary 100.00 2(87)(ii)

8 Praj Industries (Sierra eone) td. N.A. Step Su sidiary 
(Su sidiary of 
Praj Industries 
(Africa) (Pty.) 

td.)

N.A. N.A.
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(g) Shareholding of Promoters

Sr. 
No. 

Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning of 
the year

Share holding at the end of the year 

No. of 
Shares 

% of total 
Shares 

of the 
Company 

%of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered 
to total 
shares 

No. of 
Shares 

% of total 
Shares 

of the 
Company 

%of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered 
to total 
shares 

% change in 
share holding 

during the 
year 

1 Mr. Pramod Madhu ar Chaudhari 3,87,00,000 21.57 Nil 3,87,00,000 21.39 Nil -0.18
2 Ms. Parimal Pramod Chaudhari 1, ,00,000 8.02 Nil 1, ,00,000 7.96 Nil -0.06
3 Ms. Parimal Praomd Chaudhari 

(A/c Moriyaset rust)
72,00,000 .01 Nil 72,00,000 3.98 Nil -0.03

Total 6,03,00,000 33.60 Nil 6,03,00,000 33.33 Nil -0.27

(h) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding 

Sr. 
No. 

 Name Shareholding Date Increase/
Decrease in 

shareholding

Reason Cumulative 
Shareholding during 
the year (01.04.2017 

to 31.03.2018)
No. of 

shares at the 
beginning 

(01.04.2017)/ 
end of the year 
(31.03.2018) 

% of total 
shares 
of the 

Company

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
shares 
of the 

Company

1 Mr. Pramod Madhu ar Chaudhari 3,87,00,000
3,87,00,000

21.57
21.39

01.0 .2017
31.03.2018

Nil No Change 
during the year.

3,87,00,000 21.39

2 Ms. Parimal Pramod Chaudhari 1, ,00,000
1, ,00,000

8.02
7.96

01.0 .2017
31.03.2018

Nil No Change 
during the year.

1, ,00,000 7.96

3 Ms. Parimal Pramod Chaudhari 
(A/c Moriyaset rust)

72,00,000
72,00,000

.01
3.98

01.0 .2017
31.03.2018

Nil No Change 
during the year.

72,00,000 3.98

(i) Shareholding Pattern of Top Ten shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and holders of GDRs and ADRs)

Sr. 
No.

 Name Shareholding Date Increase/
Decrease in 

shareholding

Reason Cumulative 
Shareholding during 

the year (01.04.2017 to 
31.03.2018)

No. of 
shares at the 

beginning 
(01.04.2017)/ 
end of the year 
(31.03.2018) 

% of total 
shares 
of the 

Company

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
shares 
of the 

Company

1 DFC rustee Company imited- DFC quity 
Fund

1,60,10,366
1,59,71,366

8.85
8.83

16.03.2018 -39000 ransfer 1,59,71,366 8.83

2 A A CAPI A  FINANCIA  S RVIC S D 1,3 ,22, 00
1,3 ,22, 00

7. 8
7. 2

01.0 .2017
31.03.2018

Nil No Change 
during the 

year

1,3 ,22, 00 7. 2
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Sr. 
No.

 Name Shareholding Date Increase/
Decrease in 

shareholding

Reason Cumulative 
Shareholding during 

the year (01.04.2017 to 
31.03.2018)

No. of 
shares at the 

beginning 
(01.04.2017)/ 
end of the year 
(31.03.2018) 

% of total 
shares 
of the 

Company

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
shares 
of the 

Company

3 SUNDARAM MU UA  FUND A/c SUDARAM 
SMI  FUND

87,39,173

1,07,73,8 0

.87

5.95

07.0 .2017
1 .0 .2017
28.0 .2017
05.05.2017
12.05.2017
19.05.2017
26.05.2017
02.06.2017
21.07.2017
25.08.2017
08.09.2017
15.09.2017
29.09.2017
27.10.2017
03.11.2017
10.11.2017
01.12.2017
19.01.2018

2,99, 58
96,202
53,771
35,000
88,133

,832
1,69,966

20,996
2,00,000

91,268
86,617

2,00,000
15,73

1,90, 82
55,990
79,680
,07,8 7

-61,309

ransfer
ransfer
ransfer
ransfer
ransfer
ransfer
ransfer
ransfer
ransfer
ransfer
ransfer
ransfer
ransfer
ransfer
ransfer
ransfer
ransfer
ransfer

90,38,631
 91,3 ,833
91,88,60
92,23,60
93,11,737
93,16,569
9 ,86,535
95,07,531
97,07,531
97,98,799
98,85, 16

1,00,85, 16
1,01,01,150
1,02,91,632
1,03, 7,622
1,0 ,27,302
1,08,35,1 9
1,07,73,8 0

.99
5.0
5.07
5.09
5.1
5.1
5.2
5.25
5.36
5. 1
5. 6
5.57
5.58
5.68
5.71
5.76
5.98
5.95

I P D. 26, 3,128
9,8 ,726

1. 7
2.76

29.09.2017
06.10.2017
13.10.2017
10.11.2017
17.11.2017
2 .11.2017
01.12.2017
09.02.2018

76,562
50,000
,00,000

2, 9,9 9
3,75,051
1,82,000
6,00,000

,08,036

ransfer
ransfer
ransfer
ransfer
ransfer
ransfer
ransfer
ransfer

27,19,690
27,69,690
31,69,690
3 ,19,639
37,9 ,690
39,76,690

5,76,690
9,8 ,726

1.50
1.53
1.75
1.89
2.09
2.19
2.52
2.76

5 A YAN  CAPI A  INDIA FUND 20, 7,97
0,21, 98

1.1
2.22

29.09.2017 1,81,000
2,00,000

9 ,906
2,50,000
2,77,000

15,13
,00,000

1,00,000
3,17, 8
1,38,000

ransfer
ransfer
ransfer
ransfer
ransfer
ransfer
ransfer
ransfer
ransfer
ransfer

22,28,97
2 ,28,97
25,23,880
27,73,880
30,50,880
30,66,01
3 ,66,01
35,66,01
33,83, 98

0,21, 98

1.23
1.3
1.39
1.53
1.68
1.69
1.91
1.97
2.1
2.22

6 MA S M R IN  ASIA FUND 35,9 , 97
35,9 , 97

2.00
1.99

01.0 .2017
31.03.2018

Nil No change 
during the 

year

35,9 , 97 1.99

7 VAND RBI  UNIV RSI Y  A YAN  CAPI A  
MANA M N  IMI D 

13,63, 76
20,13,988

0.76
1.11

03.11.2017
10.11.2017
17.11.2017
01.12.2017

82,512
1,1 ,775
1,53,225
3,00,000

ransfer
ransfer
ransfer
ransfer

1 , 5,988
15,60,763
17,13,988
20,13,988

0.79
0.86
0.9
1.11

8 SUNDARAM A RNA IV  OPPOR UNI I S 
FUND  NANO CAP S RI S I 

Nil
19,37,000

Nil
1.07

28.0 .2017
05.05.2017
23.06.2017
1 .07.2017
25.08.2017
15.09.2017

10,00,000
2,50,000
2,00,000
3,00,000

12,000
1,75,000

ransfer
ransfer
ransfer
ransfer
ransfer
ransfer

10,00,000
12,50,000
1 ,50,000
17,50,000
17,62,000
19,37,000

0.55
0.69
0.80
0.96
0.97
1.07

9 I JBD D 10,5 ,192
18,0 ,880

0.59
0.99

13.10.2017
17.11.2017
2 .11.2017
01.12.2017
09.02.2018

19,20,001
1,13,313

56,000
3,25,000

6 ,375

ransfer
ransfer
ransfer
ransfer
ransfer

12, 6,192
13,59,505
1 ,15,505
17, 0,505
18,0 ,880

0.68
0.75
0.78
0.96
0.99
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Sr. 
No.

 Name Shareholding Date Increase/
Decrease in 

shareholding

Reason Cumulative 
Shareholding during 

the year (01.04.2017 to 
31.03.2018)

No. of 
shares at the 

beginning 
(01.04.2017)/ 
end of the year 
(31.03.2018) 

% of total 
shares 
of the 

Company

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
shares 
of the 

Company

10 I SP D 12,25,8
17,85,202

0.68
0.99

01.12.2017
09.02.2018

2,75,000
2,8 ,358

ransfer
ransfer

15,00,8
17,85,202

0.82
0.99

(V) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
Sr. 
No.

 Name Shareholding Date Increase/
Decrease in 

shareholding

Reason Cumulative 
Shareholding during 

the year (01.04.2017 to 
31.03.2018)

No. of shares at 
the beginning 
(01.04.2017)/ 
end of the year 
(31.03.2018) 

% of total 
shares of the 

Company

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
shares of the 

Company

A DIRECTORS :
1 Mr. Pramod Chaudhari

ecutive Chairman
3,87,00,000
3,87,00,000

21.57
21.39

01.0 .2017
31.03.2018

Nil No Change 
during the 

year

3,87,00,000 21.39

2 Mr. Sachin Raole
CFO and Director  Finance 

 Commercial

Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil

01.0 .2017
31.03.2018

Nil No Change 
during the 

year

Nil Nil

3 Mr. Berjis Desai
Non- ecutive, Independent 
Director

1 ,81, 50
1 ,81, 50

0.83
0.82

01.0 .2017
31.03.2018

Nil No Change 
during the 

year
1 ,81, 50 0.82

Ms. Parimal Chaudhari
Non- ecutive Promoter 
Director

1, ,00,000
1, ,00,000

8.02
7.96

01.0 .2017
31.03.2018

Nil No Change 
during the 

year
1, ,00,000 7.96

5 Mr. Rajiv Maliwal
Non- ecutive, Independent 
Director

Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil

01.0 .2017
31.03.2018

Nil No Change 
during the 

year
Nil Nil

6 Mr. Sivarama rishnan Iyer
Non- ecutive, Independent 
Director

1,80,000
1,80,000

0.10
0.09

01.0 .2017
31.03.2018

Nil No Change 
during the 

year
1,80,000 0.09

7 Mr. Daljit Mirchandani
Non- ecutive, Non- 
Independent Director 

1,200
1,200

0.00
0.00

01.0 .2017
31.03.2018

Nil No Change 
during the 

year
1,200 0.00

B Key Managerial personnel 
(KMP’s)

1 Mr. Dattatraya Nim ol ar 
(Chief Internal Auditor  
Company Secretary)

920
920

0.00
0.00

18.07.2017
28.07.2017

33,3 0
-33,3 0

ercise 
of Options 

under 
SOP 2011

ransfer

3 ,260
920

0.02
0.00

Note  he percentile change in the share holding without any change in num er of shares held is due to increase in Paid up Share Capital 
during the year on account of e ercise of Options under SOPs.
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V. INDEBTEDNESS

Inde tedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued ut not due for payment 

Secured Loans 
excluding 
deposits 

Unsecured 
Loans 

Deposits Total 
Indebtedness 

i) Principal Amount 
ii) Interest due ut not paid 
iii) Interest accrued ut not due 

Nil
Nil
Nil

1.229
Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil

1.229
Nil
Nil

Total (i+ii+iii) Nil 1.229 Nil 1.229

i)  Addition 
ii) Reduction 

Nil
Nil

Nil
0. 10

Nil
Nil

Nil
0. 10

Net Change Nil 0. 10 Nil 0. 10

i) Principal Amount 
ii) Interest due ut not paid 
iii) Interest accrued ut not due 

Nil
Nil
Nil

0.819
Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil

0.819
Nil
Nil

Total (i+ii+iii) Nil 0.819 Nil 0.819



VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager: 

Sr. 
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/Manager Total 
AmountPramod Chaudhari

Executive Chairman
Sachin Raole CFO and Director 

– Finance & Commercial*
1 ross Salary

(a)  Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the 
Income- a  Act, 1961 

( )  Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)of the Income- a  Act, 
1961

(c)  Pro ts in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of the Income-
a  Act, 1961.

2.6 0

0.535

0.000

6.220

0.000

0.000

8.860

 0.535

 0.000

2 Stoc  Option 0.000 0.000 0.000
3 Sweat quity 0.000 0.000 0.000

Commission 
- as % of pro t 

0.000 0.000 0.000

5 Others, please specify
Varia le Pay

0.000 0.000 0.000

Total (A) 43.175 6.220 49.395
Ceiling as per the Act 49.499

B. Remuneration to other directors: 

Sr. 
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors
Berjis 
Desai

Parimal 
Chaudhari

Mrunalini
Joshi

Rajiv 
Maliwal

Sivaramakrishnan 
Iyer

Daljit 
Michandni

Total 
Amount

1. Independent Directors
Fee for attending oard / committee 
meetings

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Commission 1.350 Nil 0.350 0. 50 1.350 Nil 3.500
Others, please specify Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total (1) 1.350 Nil 0.350 0. 50 1.350 Nil 3.500

2. Other Non-Executive Directors
Fee for attending oard / committee 
meetings

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Commission Nil 1.000 Nil Nil Nil Nil 1.000
Others, please specify Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total (2) Nil 1.000 Nil Nil Nil Nil 1.000
Total (B)= (1+2) 1.350 1.000 0.350 0. 50 1.350 Nil .500
TOTAL MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION * 53.895

* otal remuneration to Managing Director, hole time Director and other Directors ( eing the total of A and B)
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C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/MANAGER/WTD 

Sr. 
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel *
Dattatraya Nimbolkar

Chief Internal Auditor & 
Company Secretary

1 ross Salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income- a  Act, 1961 
( ) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income- a  Act, 1961
(c) Pro ts in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of the Income- a  Act, 1961.

6.0 3
Nil
Nil

2 Stoc  Option 0.713
3 Sweat quity Nil

Commission 
- as % of pro t 
- others, specify…

Nil 

TOTAL 6.756

*Remuneration to CFO is already covered in Part A i.e. Remuneration to Managing Director, hole-time Directors and/or Manager.

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: 

Type Section of 
the Companies Act 

Brief 
Description 

Details of Penalty / 
Punishment/ 

Compounding fees 
impose 

Authority [RD / 
NCLT /COURT] 

Appeal made, if any 
(give details) 

A. COMPANY 
 Penalty Nil Nil Nil N.A. N.A.
 Punishment Nil Nil Nil N.A. N.A.
 Compounding Nil Nil Nil N.A. N.A.
B. DIRECTORS 
 Penalty Nil Nil Nil N.A. N.A.
 Punishment Nil Nil Nil N.A. N.A.
 Compounding Nil Nil Nil N.A. N.A.
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT 
 Penalty Nil Nil Nil N.A. N.A.
 Punishment Nil Nil Nil N.A. N.A.
 Compounding Nil Nil Nil N.A. N.A.
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ANNEXURE 6
Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2018
Pursuant to section 20 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies  

(Appointment and Remuneration of Personnel) Rules, 201

o,
he Mem ers,

Praj Industries imited,
Praj ower”,

S. No. 27  and 275/2, Bhum ar Chow - injewadi Road
injewadi, 

Pune 11 057

e have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applica le statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate 
practices y Praj Industries imited (hereinafter called the Company”). he Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided 
us a reasona le asis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and e pressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our veri cation of the Company s oo s, papers, minute oo s, forms and returns led and other records maintained y the 
Company and also the information provided y the Company, its of cers, agents and authori ed representatives during the conduct 
of Secretarial Audit, we here y report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the nancial year ended 
31st March, 2018 su stantially complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper oard 
processes and compliance mechanism in place to the e tent, in the manner and su ject to the reporting made hereinafter  

e have e amined the oo s, papers, minute oo s, forms and returns led and other records maintained y the Company for the 
nancial year ended 31st March, 2018 according to the provisions of

i. he Companies Act, 2013 ( the Act”) and the Rules made there under

ii. he Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 and the Rules made thereunder

iii. he Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and ye-laws framed thereunder

iv. Foreign change Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and regulations made thereunder to the e tent of Foreign Direct Investment

v. he following Regulations and uidelines prescri ed under the Securities and change Board of India Act, 1992 ( S BI Act ) -

 a. he Securities and change Board of India (Su stantial Acquisition of Shares and a eovers) Regulations, 2011

 . he Securities and change Board of India (Prohi ition of Insider rading) Regulations, 2015

 c. he Securities and change Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009  (Not Applicable 
during the audit period)

 d. he Securities and change Board of India (Share Based mployee Bene ts) Regulations, 201

 e. he Securities and change Board of India (Issue and isting of De t Securities) Regulations, 2008  (Not Applicable during 
the audit period)

 f. he Securities and change Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share ransfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding 
the Companies Act and dealing with client

 g. he Securities and change Board of India (Delisting of quity Shares) Regulations, 2009  (Not Applicable during the audit 
period)

 h. he Securities and change Board of India (Buy ac  of Securities) Regulations, 1998  (Not Applicable during the audit  
period)

vi. the following other laws as applica le speci cally to the Company

 a. the Narcotic Drugs and Psychotropic Su stances Act, 1985

 . the Atomic nergy Act, 1962
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e have also e amined compliance with the applica le clauses of the following

i. Secretarial Standards issued y the Institute of Company Secretaries of India as are applica le to the Company, 

ii. he isting Agreements entered into y the Company with BS  imited / National Stoc  change of India imited read with S BI 
( isting O ligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

During the period under review the Company has su stantially complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, uidelines, 
Standards, etc. mentioned a ove. owever, a reporting of a case to S BI of trading of shares y the designated employee during the 
window closure was under process on the date of the report.

We further report that:

he Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper alance of ecutive Directors, Non- ecutive Directors and 
Independent Directors. he changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that too  place during the period under review were 
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven 
days in advance and as e plained to us, a system e ists for see ing and o taining further information and clari cations on the agenda 
items efore the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

As per the minutes of the meeting all the decisions were ta en unanimously in as much as there were no dissenting views appearing in 
the minutes of the meetings. 

e further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the si e and operations of the 
Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applica le laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

e further report that during the audit period as per the information provided and to the est of our nowledge there were no speci c 
events / actions having a major earing on the Company s affairs in pursuance of the a ove referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, 
and the Secretarial Standards.

Place  Pune
Date  16th May, 2018

For KANJ & Co. LLP 
Company Secretaries

Vikas Y. Khare
Partner

FCS No. 35 1
C P No.  2107
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o,
he Mem ers,

Praj Industries imited,
Praj ower”, 

S. No. 27  and 275/2,
Bhum ar Chow - injewadi Road,

injewadi, 
Pune 11 057

Our report of even date provided in Form MR-3 to Praj Industries imited ( the Company”) for the year ended 31st March, 2018 is to e 
read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of Secretarial records and complying with the provisions of the various laws as applica le including the laws 
speci cally applica le to the Company is the responsi ility of the management of the Company. Our responsi ility is to e press an 
opinion on these secretarial records and legal compliances ased on our audit. 

2. e have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to o tain responsi le assurance a out the correctness 
of the contents of secretarial records and the records of legal compliances. he veri cation was done on test asis to ensure that 
correct facts are reflected in secretarial and other relevant records. e elieve that the processes and practices, we follow provide 
a responsi le asis for our opinion. 

3. e are not required to verify the correctness and appropriateness of nancial records and oo s of accounts of the Company as it 
is part of nancial audit as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

. herever required, we have o tained the management representation a out the practices followed, compliance of laws, rules and 
regulations and happening of events etc.

5. he compliance of the provision of corporate and other applica le laws, rules, regulations, secretarial standards is the responsi ility 
of Management. Our e amination was limited to veri cation of procedures on test asis.

6. he Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future via ility of the Company nor the ef cacy or effectiveness with 
which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

Place  Pune
Date  16th May, 2018

For KANJ & Co. LLP 
Company Secretaries

Vikas Y. Khare
Partner

FCS No. 35 1
C P No.  2107
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ANNEXURE 8
Nomination & Remuneration Policy

he Board of Directors of Praj Industries imited ( the Company”), in view of enforcement of Companies Act, 2013 read with rules framed 
there under and amendment to Clause 9 of the isting Agreement, re-designated the Remuneration Committee as Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee” at the Meeting held on May 26, 201  with immediate effect.

Further, this policy stands amended pursuant to Regulation 19( ) of the S BI ( isting O ligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 which have came into effect from 1st Decem er, 2015.

he Nomination and Remuneration Committee and this Policy shall e in compliance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
along with the applica le rules thereto and Regulation 19( ) of the S BI ( isting O ligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 (as may e amended from time to time). 

1. DEFINITIONS 

 a) Board means Board of Directors of the Company. 

 b) Key Managerial Personnel shall have the same meaning as given in Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules 
framed there under.

 c) Senior Management” shall mean personnel of the Company (which include persons engaged as retainer or on contractual 
asis) who are mem ers of its core management team e cluding Board of Directors, comprising all mem ers of management 

one level elow the ecutive Directors i.e. evel . Also any appointment or cessation of the functional head, shall e 
placed for noting y the Nomination  Remuneration Committee.

  Explanation 1: In case of any dispute whether a person is mem er of Senior Management or not, decision of concerned 
ecutive Director shall e nal.

  Explanation 2: Considering the criticality of a particular function, even if a person is not covered in the a ove de nition, the 
Chairman will have discretion to treat him/ her as mem er of Senior Management for the purpose of this Policy.

  Explanation 3: he term Functional ead” shall mean the person, other than those in evel  and includes a person who is 
in an independent charge of any function.

 d) he words and de nitions not descri ed herein a ove shall have the respective meanings under the Acts and legislations 
governing the same.

2. TERMS OF REFERENCE/ROLE OF COMMITTEE

 he erms of Reference of the Committee shall e  

 a) o identify persons who are quali ed to ecome Directors and who may e appointed in Senior Management in accordance 
with the criteria laid down, recommend to the Board their appointment and removal and to carry out evaluation of every 
Director s performance.

 ) o ensure that the level and composition of remuneration is reasona le and is suf cient to attract, retain and motivate 
Directors of the quality required to run the Company successfully. 

 c) o ensure that relationship of remuneration to performance in respect of Directors, ey Managerial Personnel and employees 
of Senior Management is clear and meets appropriate performance enchmar s  and

 d) o ensure that remuneration to Directors, ey Managerial Personnel and Senior Management involves a alance etween 
ed and varia le pay reflecting short and long-term performance o jectives appropriate to the wor ing of the Company and 

its goals

 e) o formulate the criteria for determining quali cations of Directors, ey Managerial Personnel and employees of Senior 
Management, and also to determine criteria for positive attri utes and independence of Directors.

 f) o formulate criteria for evaluation of every Director including Independent Director and the Board.

 g) o evaluate the performance of the mem ers of the Board and provide necessary report to the Board for further evaluation 
y the Board. 

 h) o recommend to the Board on Remuneration paya le to the Directors, ey Managerial Personnel and employees of Senior 
Management. 

 i) o provide to ey Managerial Personnel and Senior Management, reward lin ed directly to their efforts, performance, 
dedication and achievement relating to the Company s operations.
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j) o devise a policy on Board diversity from time to time.

) o develop a succession plan for the Board and to regularly review the plan  

3. RETIREMENT AGE OF DIRECTORS, KMP AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL 

 he MP and Senior Management Personnel shall retire as per the prevailing R policy of the Company. 

 As decided y the Board of Directors in its meeting held on 2 .05.2011 the retirement age for ecutive Directors shall e 65 years 
and for Non- ecutive Directors shall e 70 years. he Board of Directors shall e at li erty to grant any e tension as and when 
required on case to case asis. 

4. STATUTORY POWERS OF THE COMMITTEE 

 a) he Committee shall have a power to e press opinion whether the Director possesses the requisite quali cation for the 
practice of the profession, when remuneration is proposed to e paid for the services to e rendered in any other capacity 
and such services to e rendered are of a professional nature.

 ) here in any nancial year during the currency of tenure of a managerial person, Company has no pro ts or its pro ts 
are inadequate, the Committee may approve the payment of remuneration as per Section II of Part II of Schedule V to the 
Companies Act, 2013.

5. COMPOSITION OF COMMITTEE 

 he Committee shall comprise of at least three Non- ecutive Directors, at least half of whom shall e Independent Directors. he 
Board may appoint the Chairperson of the Company whether e ecutive or non-e ecutive as mem er of this Committee. 

6. CHAIRPERSON 

 a) he Chairperson of the Committee shall e an Independent Director. 

 ) In the a sence of the Chairperson, the mem ers of the Committee present at the meeting shall choose one of the Independent 
Directors amongst them to act as Chairperson. 

 c) he Chairperson of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall endeavor to e present at the Annual eneral Meeting. 

7. MISCELLENEOUS

 a) A mem er of the Committee is not entitled to e present when his or her own or his or her relative(s) remuneration is 
discussed at a meeting or when his or her or his or her relative(s) performance is eing evaluated. 

 ) he Committee may invite ecutive Directors, functional heads and outside e perts, as it considers appropriate, to e 
present at the meetings of the Committee. 

 c) he Company Secretary of the Company shall act as Secretary of the Committee. 
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ANNEXURE 10
BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

SECTION A: GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY

1.  Corporate Identity Num er (CIN) of the Company 27101PN1985P C038031

2.  Name of the Company  Praj Industries td.

3. Registered address Praj ower”, S.No. 27   275/2, Bhum ar Chow - injewadi Road, injewadi, Pune  11 057.

.  e site  www.praj.net

5.  -mail id  info praj.net

6.  Financial Year reported  01.0 .2017- 31.03.2018

7.  Sector(s) that the Company is engaged in (industrial activity code-wise) 

 Manufacture of other Special- Purpose Machinery n.e.c.

 NIC Code of the Product/ Service  28299

8. hree ey products/services that the Company manufactures/provides (as in Balance Sheet) 

 a. Bioenergy Plants

 . Critical process quipment and Systems

 c. Brewery Plants 

 d. ater and aste water plants

9. otal num er of locations where usiness activity is underta en y the Company

 a. Num er of International ocations

  Praj Industries imited has usiness activity underta en in 9 international locations.

  he major ones are hailand, USA, South Africa, Philippines and Uganda.

 . Num er of National ocations

  Praj Industries imited has its engineering and manufacturing facilities located at Pune at the following places

  1. S. No. 7 8, Sanaswadi, Pune- 12307, Maharashtra, India 

  2. Plot No. -20  -21, additional MIDC area, Jejuri, al. Purandar, Pune 12203, Maharashtra, India.

 Further, it carries out manufacturing at OU at andla S Z Unit I Plot No. 307 to 31  and Unit II at Plot No. 282 to 286 and 29  to 
298, Sector IV andhidham, utch 370230, ujarat, India. 

10. Mar ets served y the Company  ocal/State/National/International

 he Company serves oth national and international mar ets.

SECTION B: FINANCIAL DETAILS OF THE COMPANY

1. Paid up Capital (INR Mn.)  361.865

2. otal urnover (INR Mn.)  7020

3. otal Pro t After a es and OCI (INR Mn.)  322

. otal Spending on Corporate Social Responsi ility (CSR) as percentage of Pro t After a  (%)  5.21

5. ist of activities in which e penditure in  a ove has een incurred -

 (a) eradicating hunger, poverty, promoting preventive health care etc. 

 ( ) promoting education

 (c) promoting gender equality, setting up old age home etc. 

 (d) ensuring environmental sustaina ility, conservation of natural resources etc. 
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SECTION C: OTHER DETAILS

1. Does the Company have any Su sidiary Company/ Companies  
 Yes. he Company has 7 su sidiaries as on 31st March, 2018
2.  Do the Su sidiary Company/Companies participate in the BR Initiatives of the parent company  If yes, then indicate the num er of 

such su sidiary company(s).
 Praj Industries imited encourages its su sidiaries to participate in its group wide BR initiatives.
3.  Do any other entity/entities (e.g. suppliers, distri utors etc.) that the Company does usiness with, participate in the BR initiatives 

of the Company  If yes, then indicate the percentage of such entity/entities  ess than 30%, 30-60%, More than 60% . 
  Praj Industries td. encourages its other entities/associates to participate in the BR initiatives of the Company. he percentage of 

the same is more than 60. 
 Praj Industries imited encourages its SCM associates to participate in the BR initiatives of the Company. 

 Approvals and Registration - Praj SCM Approves and Registers all vendors e cept those in Category  insisted upon 
customer  vendors. Sustaina ility program is applica le to all others appro . 650  vendors other than Category .

 Sustainability Criteria - Praj has developed sustaina ility assessment criteria in addition to the conventional uality Cost- 
Delivery ase for major Vendors. Praj carries out evaluation of vendors at the time of their approval and re-evaluation every 
three years. hus over a period of 3 years all Catagory1,2 vendors will go through the sustaina ility assessment. All 311 
domestic vendors of Category 1,2 have een assessed as per Sustaina ility Criteria.

 Undertakings - For Category 1,2,3,5 domestic Vendors (650 in num er) an underta ing related to compliances w.r.t. a or, 
uman rights and overnance and where applica le Indian Motor Vehicle Act MVA  is o tained. 

 Green Purchase Initiative - So far, out of 311, categories 1, 2 Vendors, 108 vendors underwent capacity uilding program 
under BSI, a speciali ed International third party agency s guidance leading to green certi cation. arget for FY 2018-19 is 
to provide similar training to encourage another 100 vendors to go through the same e ercise and o tain green certi cation.

 Basic Accreditation  Praj encourages their SCM partners to avail ISO quali cations. Out of appro . 650 Category 1,2,3,5 
domestic Vendors, 263 have ISO 9001, 85 have ISO 1 001 and 70 have OS AS 18001.

SECTION D: BR INFORMATION
1. Details of Director/Directors responsi le for BR 
 (a) Details of the Director/Director responsi le for implementation of the BR policy/policies  
  1. DIN Num er  00 31 38
  2. Name  Mr. Sachin Raole
  3. Designation  CFO and Director  Finance  Commercial 
 ( ) Details of the BR head to con rm the details and change if necessary as per present status.. 

Sr. 
No.

Particulars Details

1 DIN Num er (if applica le) 00 31 38
2 Name Mr. Sachin Raole
3 Designation CFO and Director  Finance  Commercial

elephone num er 020- 71802000
5 e-mail id sachinraole praj.net

Principle-wise (as per National Voluntary Guidelines) BR Policy/policies

he National Voluntary uidelines on Social, nvironmental and conomic Responsi ilities of Business released y the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs has adopted nine areas of Business Responsi ility. hese are as follows
P1 Business should conduct and govern themselves with thics, ransparency and Accounta ility
P2 Business should provide goods and services that are safe and contri ute to sustaina ility throughout their life cycle
P3 Business should promote the well- eing of all employees
P4 Business should respect the interests of and e responsive towards all sta eholders, especially those who are disadvantaged, 

vulnera le and marginalised
P5 Business should respect and promote human rights
P6 Business should respect, protect and ma e efforts to restore the environment
P7 Business, when engaged in influencing pu lic and regulatory policy, should do so in a responsi le manner
P8 Business should support inclusive growth and equita le development
P9 Business should engage with and provide value to their customers and consumers in a responsi le manner
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(a) Details of compliance (Reply in Y/N)

Sr. 
No.

Principle wise polices P 1 P 2 P 3 P 4 P 5 P 6 P 7 P 8 P 9

1 Do you have a policy/ policies for.... Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
2 as the policy eing formulated in

consultation with the relevant sta eholders
Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

3 Does the policy conform to any national / 
international standards  If yes, specify   
(50 words) 

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y 

All applica le national and international regulations as well as International 
Norms of Behaviour and Conventions are captured in the policies articulated 

y Praj. In addition, they reflect the purpose and intent of the international 
standards and guidelines such as ISO 26000, RI , fS ogether for 
Sustaina ility and RSB  Roundta le on Sustaina le Bio Materials. he 
certi cation y Internal Standards Organi ation for ISO 9001, ISO 1 000 and 
O SAS 18001/ ISO 5000 and its updating is satisfactorily carried out over a 
period of decade. his demonstrates the seriousness of purpose ehind the 
formation of the policies. 

as the policy eing approved y the Board  Is 
yes, has it een signed y MD/ owner/ C O/ 
appropriate Board Director

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y 

5 Does the Company have a speci ed
Committee of the Board/ Director/ Of cial to 
oversee the implementation of the policy

N N Y Y N Y Y Y Y

6 Indicate the lin  for the policy to e viewed online. http //www.praj.net/policies
7 as the policy een formally communicated to all 

relevant internal and e ternal sta eholders
Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y 

8 Does the Company have in-house structure to 
implement the policy/policies

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y 

9 Does the Company have a grievance redressal 
mechanism related to the policy/ policies to 
address sta eholders  grievances related to the 
policy/ policies

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y 

10 as the Company carried out independent audit/ 
evaluation of the wor ing of this policy y an 
internal or e ternal agency

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y 

3. Governance related to BR
 (a) Indicate the frequency with which the Board of Directors, Committee of the Board or C O to assess the BR performance of 

the Company. (within 3 months, 3-6 months, Annually, More than 1 year) 
  Annually
 ( ) Does the Company pu lish a BR or a Sustaina ility Report  hat is the hyperlin  for viewing this report  ow frequently it is 

pu lished
  he Company pu lishes Sustaina ility Report every year. he same can e accessed at www.praj.net
SECTION E: PRINCIPLE-WISE PERFORMANCE
Principle 1 - Business should conduct and govern themselves with Ethics, Transparency and Accountability
1. Does the policy relating to ethics, ri ery and corruption cover only the company  ((yes/no) Does it e tend to the roup/Joint 

Ventures/ Suppliers/Contractors/N Os /Others
 Yes. he Code of Conduct availa le on www.praj.net serves as the ethical roadmap for all Praj Companies and Business Associates. 

All suppliers, partners and associates are e pected to adopt and follow Praj Code of Conduct.
 here is a separate compliance certi cate ta en from SCM mem ers. As on 31 March, 2018, 100% of the Category 1,2,3,5 vendors 

have given the underta ing. All ey vendors have een covered. he vendors in Category  are not covered as they are customer 
recommended vendors.

2. ow many sta eholder complaints have een received in the past nancial year and what percentage was satisfactorily resolved 
y the management  If so, provide details thereof, in a out 50 words or so.

 here were no sta e holder complaints during Financial Year 2017/18.
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Principle 2 - Businesses should provide goods and services that are safe and contribute to sustainability throughout their life cycle

1. ist up to 3 of your products or services whose design has incorporated social or environmental concerns, ris s and/or opportunities.

 (a) coSmart  Molecular Sieve Dehydration ased System leading to lower energy and water consumption. 

 ( ) coSmart D  vaporative Distillation System leading to lower energy, water consumption and  emissions.

 (c) Agitated hin Film Dryer leading to Zero iquid Discharge.

2. For each such product, provide the following details in respect of resource use (energy, water, raw material etc.) per unit of product 
(optional)

 1. coSmart  Steam consumption is 2.05 g/litre of product. 

 2. coSmart D  Steam consumption is 2.1 g/litre of product.

 3. Agitated hin Film Dryer ensures Zero iquid Discharge as against 12 liters/litre (in conventional system) of alcohol produced. 

 he a ove technologies have collectively helped in reduction in energy consumption, water consumption, liquid effluents. 

3. Does the Company have procedures in place for sustaina le sourcing (including ransportation)  If yes, what percentage of your 
inputs was sourced sustaina ly  Also provide details thereof in a out 50 words or so. 

 Yes  here is an ela orate program to cover our supply chain mem ers including ransportation Vendors in our sustaina ility drive. 
he main parameters used for ensuring sustaina le sourcing are i) Approvals and Registrations of Vendors, ii) Underta ings from 

Vendors, iii) reen Purchase Initiative and iv) asic accreditations y vendors. In view of these measures rigorously implemented 
y the Company around 35% of inputs were sourced sustaina ly. 

. as the Company ta en any steps to procure goods and services from local  small producers, including communities surrounding 
their place of wor  

 he nature of Company s usiness is such that the sourcing has to e compulsorily done from supply chain partners with speci c 
technical competencies and ma es as speci ed y customers. 

 (a) If yes, what steps have een ta en to improve their capacity and capa ility of local and small vendors  

  N.A 

5. Does the Company have a mechanism to recycle products and waste  If yes, what is the percentage of recycling of products and 
waste (separately as 5%, 5 to 10% and 10%). Also, provide details thereof, in a out 50 words or so. 

 As ul  of the manufacturing activity uses various metals as raw material, % of non-recycla le material is nil. Most of the material 
is converted in to functional shapes. Basic properties of the raw material do not change. In the process, the scrap generation is 
around 5 to 6% which is sold to recycling vendors. he percentage of recycling of scrap is 100. 

Principle 3 -Businesses should promote the well-being of all employees

1. otal num er of permanent employees  88

2. otal num er of employees on temporary/contractual/casual asis  517

3. Num er of permanent women employees  76

. Num er of permanent employees with disa ilities  5

5. Do you have an employee association that is recogni ed y management.  No 

6. Percentage of permanent employees who are mem ers of recogni ed employee association  Not Applica le

7. Num er of complaints relating to child la our, forced la our, involuntary la our, se ual harassment in the last nancial year and 
pending, as on the end of the nancial year.

 During the year, there were no cases of Child la our/forced la our/involuntary la our or Se ual harassment, Discriminatory 
employment reported.

8. Following is the Percentage of under mentioned employees who were given safety  s ill up- gradation training in the last year 

 (a) Permanent mployees Safety  89%  S ill  8 %

 ( ) Permanent omen mployees Safety  92%  S ill  92%

 (c) Casual/ emporary/Contractual mployees  Safety  91%  S ill  87%

 (d) mployees with Disa ilities Safety  96%  S ill  96%
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Principle 4 - Businesses should respect the interests of and be responsive towards all stakeholders, especially those who are 
disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalised

1.  as the Company mapped its internal and e ternal sta eholders  

 Yes, Company has mapped all its signi cant sta eholders

2. Out of the a ove, has the Company identi ed the disadvantaged, vulnera le  marginali ed sta eholders

 Yes - Company has identi ed certain groups of disadvantaged, vulnera le  marginali ed sta eholders with the help of certain 
reputed N Os and conducts CSR activities among them. 

3. Are there any special initiatives ta en y the Company to engage with the disadvantaged, vulnera le and marginali ed sta eholders  
If so, provide details thereof, in a out 50 words or so.

 Praj has een implementing speci c community development initiatives around our manufacturing and R D units. hese 
projects are ased on the needs of the community. he selected interventions are sustaina le, innovative and replica le. Some 
of the initiatives include Preventive ealthcare, ducation and S ills development, ater resources Development  Biodiversity 
conservation.

Principle 5 - Businesses should respect and promote human rights

1. Does the policy of the Company on human rights cover only the Company or e tend to the roup/Joint Ventures/Suppliers/ 
Contractors/ N Os/ Others  

 Yes. he policy e tends to the Company and its Su sidiaries. fforts are e tended to implement the policy with Company s 
Suppliers, Contractors, our own and associated Foundations and others within our sphere of influence. 

2. ow many sta eholder complaints have een received in the past nancial year and what percent was satisfactorily resolved y 
the management  

 here were no complaints received during the year.

Principle 6 - Business should respect, protect and make efforts to restore the environment

1. Does the policy related to Principle 6 cover only the Company or e tends to the roup/Joint Ventures/Suppliers/Contractors/ 
N Os/others  

 Policy related to nvironment applies to the roup and its Su sidiaries. As part of ISO 1 001, it is su jected to rigorous assessment 
at our large engineering units. It is e tended to Contractors wor ing at our premises where we have ISO 1 001 certi cation. 
Indirectly, the Company e tends this policy to its Suppliers through reen Purchase Initiative and evaluation and re-evaluation of 
vendors on sustaina ility Principles. he policy is also e tended to N Os through environment support projects. 

2. Does the Company have strategies/ initiatives to address glo al environmental issues such as climate change, glo al warming, 
etc  Y/N. If yes, please give hyperlin  for we page etc. 

 a) arge part of Company s usiness is related to thanol which is used as additive to petrol thus reducing the CO2 emissions. 
Praj has supplied plants glo ally which are instrumental in reducing CO2 emissions.

 ) Also, water  waste water division of the Company deals with manufacture of systems for water recycling. 

3. Does the Company identify and assess potential environmental ris s  Y/N 

 Yes. Ris s, mitigation strategies and contingency measures are reviewed and revised every year. ealth, Safety and nvironment 
team organi es multiple wor shops for various functions. 

. Does the Company have any project related to Clean Development Mechanism  If so, provide details thereof, in a out 50 words or 
so. Also, if Yes, whether any environmental compliance report is led

 No.

5. as the Company underta en any other initiatives on  clean technology, energy ef ciency, renewa le energy, etc  Y/N. If yes, 
please give hyperlin  for we  page etc. 

 All wor  centers of the Company measure and monitor their own foot print and maintain it around 3%. 

 Car on print produced y supply chain is measured and is maintained at around 5% 

 Car on print produced due to use of air travel is monitored at corporate of ce and a reduction of 20 % is achieved over the last 3 
years. 
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 In addition, the Company constantly endeavors to reduce its car on footprints through advancement in the areas of clean 
technology, energy ef ciency and renewa le energy. his is aptly spelt out in the vision statement of the Company which is as 
follows  o ma e the world a etter place”. 

6. Are the missions/ aste generated y the Company within the permissi le limits given y CPCB/SPCB for the nancial year eing 
reported  

 Yes - he missions/ aste generated y the Company are within the permissi le limits given y State / Central Pollution Control 
Boards for the nancial year eing reported. 

7. Num er of show cause / legal notices received from CPCB/SPCB which are pending (i.e. not resolved to satisfaction) as on end of 
Financial Year. 

 Nil

Principle 7 - Businesses, when engaged in influencing public and regulatory policy, should do so in a responsible manner

1. Is your Company a mem er of any trade and cham er or association  If Yes, Name only those major ones that your usiness deals 
with

 (a) ePure  An association of sta eholders of fuel ethanol industry in uropean Union

 ( ) CII National Bioenergy Committee  Committee of Sta eholders for promotion of Bioenergy in India

 (c) Petrofed  Association of Petroleum Companies

 (d) Association of Bio echnology led nterprises

 (e) Indo- erman Cham er of Commerce

 (f) Distillers  Association of Maharashtra

 (g) All India Biotech Association

 (h) he Sugar echnologists  Association of India

 (i) Federation Of Indian Cham ers Of Commerce And Industry (FICCI)

 (j) National Chemical a oratory

 ( ) Process Plant  Machinery Association of India

 (l) British Business roup

 (m) Indo-American Cham er of Commerce

 (n) Council of U Cham ers of Commerce in India

 (o) Mahratta Cham er of Commerce, Industries  Agriculture 

 (p) Deccan Sugar echnologists  Association

 (q) Petroleum Federation of India

 (r) National Alcohol Producers  Association

2. ave you advocated/lo ied through a ove associations for the advancement or improvement of pu lic good  Yes/No  if yes 
specify the road areas  

 Yes. As mem er of CII National Bioenergy Committee, the Company advocates use of ioenergy to mitigate  emissions. A 
policy document called Report on Bioenergy Sector, was also prepared ena ling Sustaina le nergy Access for India.

 As a mem er of CII Af rmative Action Committee (Pune Zonal council) the Company and other Committee mem ers have ta en 
initiative to create awareness regarding the importance of Af rmative Actions to enhance social sta ility and cohesion, which 
are necessary for usiness. As a result of this, many companies have em edded af rmative actions in their R and usiness 
processes under four heads  mploya ility, ntrepreneurship, ducation and mployment. 

 he CII Af rmative Actions Committee facilitates organising SC/S  vendor meet in colla oration with Dalit Cham er of Commerce 
 Industries (DCCI). Some of the vendors are part of our vendor community.
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Principle 8 - Businesses should support inclusive growth and equitable development

1. Does the Company have speci ed programmes/initiatives/projects in pursuit of the policy related to Principle 8  If yes details 
thereof.

 Yes. Praj has speci c projects which support inclusive growth and equita le development.

 hese projects are ased on the needs of the community. he selected interventions are sustaina le, innovative and replica le. 
In fact many of the projects selected are complimentary to overall national agenda li e Preventive ealthcare, Drin ing ater 

 Sanitation, ducation and S ills development, ater Resources Development, Protection of nvironment and Biodiversity 
conservation. 

2. Are the programmes/projects underta en through in-house team/own foundation/e ternal N O/government structures/any other 
organi ation  

 he projects are underta en through our own foundation as well as local N O s 

3. ave you done any impact assessment of your initiative  

 Yes, the impact assessment is periodically done for the long term projects where su stantial impact on the community can e 
measured. 

. hat is your Company s direct contri ution to community development projects- Amount in INR and the details of the projects 
underta en. 

 16.790 Mn. Refer page No. 20 of Annual Report 2017-18 

5. ave you ta en steps to ensure that this community development initiative is successfully adopted y the community  Please 
e plain in 50 words, or so.

 Yes. Company s project interventions were need ased, cost effective leading to positive results in a short span. tensive 
involvement of community in planning and implementation helped in capacity uilding as well as created ownership of the project. 

hrough regular interaction with the community, positive impact created was shared with them to further enhance adoption level. 

Principle 9 - Businesses should engage with and provide value to their customers and consumers in a responsible manner

1. hat percentage of customer complaints/consumer cases are pending as on the end of nancial year  

 Around 10%

2. Does the Company display product information on the product la el, over and a ove what is mandated as per local laws

 N.A. Majority of your Company s products are customised and hence, it is not possi le. owever, for Bio products, the Company 
displays product information on the product la el as is mandated as per local laws.

3. Is there any case led y any sta eholder against the Company regarding unfair trade practices, irresponsi le advertising and/or 
anti-competitive ehaviour during the last ve years and pending as on end of nancial year  If so, provide details thereof, in a out 
50 words or so. 

 No.

. Did your Company carry out any consumer survey/ consumer satisfaction trends

 he Company does not have a connect with the end users of the product (s) produced in the plants supplied. owever, the Company 
carries out the Customer Satisfaction Survey on an annual asis.
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ANNEXURE 11

DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION POLICY

he equity shares of Praj Industries imited (the Company ) are listed on the BS   td. (BS ) and National Stoc  change of India limited 
(NS ), Mum ai. As per noti cation No. S BI/ AD-NRO/ N/2016-17/008, dtd. 8th July, 2016,  S BI has amended S BI ( isting O ligations 

 Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 y insertion of Regulation 3(A)  which mandates that the top ve hundred listed entities 
ased on mar et capitali ation (calculated as on March 31 of every nancial year) shall formulate a dividend distri ution policy which 

shall e disclosed in their annual reports and on their we sites.

Accordingly, the Board of Directors of the Company ( the Board”), in its meeting held on 20th Octo er, 2016 has approved the Dividend 
Distri ution Policy of the Company ( the Policy”) which endeavors for fairness, consistency and sustaina ility while distri uting pro ts 
to the shareholders. 

he factors considered while arriving at the quantum of dividend(s) are  

 Current year pro ts and outloo  in line with the development of internal and e ternal environment. 

 Operating cash flows and treasury position. 

 Possi ilities of alternate usage of cash, e.g. capital e penditure etc., with potential to create greater value for shareholders. 

 Providing for unforeseen events and contingencies with nancial implications. 

he Board may declare interim dividend(s) as and when they consider it t, and recommend nal dividend to the shareholders for their 
approval in the general meeting of the Company. 

In case the Board proposes not to distri ute the pro t  the grounds thereof and information on utili ation of the undistri uted pro t, if any, 
shall e disclosed to the shareholders in the Annual Report of the Company. 

he dividend distri ution shall e in accordance with the applica le provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Rules framed thereunder, 
S BI ( isting O ligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and other legislations governing dividends and the Articles of 
Association of the Company, as in force and as amended from time to time.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
TO THE MEMBERS OF PRAJ INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

e have audited the accompanying standalone nancial statements of Praj Industries Limited (‘the Company’), which comprise the 
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the Statement of Pro t and oss (including other comprehensive income), the Statement of Changes 
in quity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended and a summary of the signi cant accounting policies and other 
e planatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

he Company’s Board of Directors is responsi le for the matters stated in Section 13 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) with 
respect to the preparation of these standalone nancial statements that give a true and fair view of the nancial position, nancial 
performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescri ed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015, as amended, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. 

his responsi ility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities  selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies  ma ing judgments and estimates that are reasona le and prudent  and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal nancial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone nancial statements that give a true and fair view and 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsi ility is to e press an opinion on these standalone nancial statements ased on our audit.

In conducting our audit, we have ta en into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which 
are required to e included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder and the Order issued under 
Section 1 3(11) of the Act.

e conducted our audit of the standalone nancial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing speci ed under Section 
1 3(10) of the Act. hose Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to o tain reasona le 
assurance a out whether the standalone nancial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to o tain audit evidence a out the amounts and the disclosures in the standalone nancial 
statements. he procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the ris s of material misstatement 
of the standalone nancial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In ma ing those ris  assessments, the auditor considers internal 

nancial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the standalone nancial statements that give a true and fair view in order 
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the 
accounting policies used and the reasona leness of the accounting estimates made y the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating 
the overall presentation of the standalone nancial statements. 

e elieve that the audit evidence o tained y us is suf cient and appropriate to provide a asis for our audit opinion on the standalone 
nancial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the est of our information and according to the e planations given to us, the aforesaid standalone nancial 
statements give the information required y the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2018, and its pro t, total 
comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other egal and Regulatory Requirements

1.  As required y the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (‘the Order’) issued y the Central overnment in terms of Section 
1 3(11) of the Act, we give in ‘Anne ure A’ a statement on the matters speci ed in paragraphs 3 and  of the Order.

2.  As required y Section 1 3(3) of the Act, we report that

 a)  e have sought and o tained all the information and e planations which to the est of our nowledge and elief were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit.
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 )  In our opinion, proper oo s of account as required y law have een ept y the Company so far as it appears from our 
e amination of those oo s.

 c)  he Balance Sheet, the Statement of Pro t and oss (including other comprehensive income), the Cash Flow Statement and 
Statement of Changes in quity dealt with y this Report are in agreement with the oo s of account.

 d)  In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS nancial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards prescri ed 
under section 133 of the Act.

 e)  On the asis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2018 ta en on record y the Board 
of Directors, none of the directors is disquali ed as on March 31, 2018 from eing appointed as a director in terms of 
Section16 (2) of the Act.

 f)  ith respect to the adequacy of the internal nancial controls over nancial reporting of the Company and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in Anne ure B”.

 g)  ith respect to the other matters to e included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 201 , in our opinion and to the est of our information and according to the e planations given to us

  i.  he Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its nancial position in its standalone Ind AS nancial 
statements  Refer Note 28 to the standalone nancial statements.

  ii.  he Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material 
foreseea le losses.

  iii.  here has een no delay in transferring amounts, required to e transferred, to the Investor ducation and Protection 
Fund y the Company.

For M/s P.G.BHAGWAT
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.  101118

Sandeep Rao
Place  Pune  Partner
Date  16th May, 2018  Mem ership No.  7235
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Annexure A
Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading, Report on Other egal and Regulatory Requirements” of our report on even date

i. (a)  he Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of ed 
assets.

 ( )  he ed assets are een physically veri ed y the management at regular intervals ased on the programme of veri cation 
which in our opinion is reasona le. All the major ed assets have een veri ed y the management in the current year and 
discrepancies noticed on such physical veri cation were not material and the same have een properly dealt with in the 

oo s of account. 

 (c)  he title deeds of immova le properties are held in the name of the Company.

ii. Physical veri cation of inventory has een conducted y the management during the current year. In our opinion, the interval of 
such veri cation is reasona le. Discrepancies noticed on physical veri cation were not material and the same have een properly 
dealt with in the oo s of account.

iii. he Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to Companies, Firms, imited ia ility Partnerships or other parties 
covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. herefore, clause (iii) a,  and c of the Order are 
not applica le to the Company.

iv. According to the information and e planations provided to us, in respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security  provisions 
of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 have een complied with wherever applica le. 

v. According to information and e planation provided to us, the Company has not accepted deposits, hence the directives issued y 
the Reserve Ban  of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the 
rules framed there under, are not applica le to the Company. According to information and e planation provided to us, no order has 

een passed y Company aw Board or National Company aw ri unal or Reserve Ban  of India or any court or any other tri unal.

vi. e have roadly reviewed the oo s of account relating to materials, la our and other items of cost maintained y the Company 
pursuant to the rules made y the Central overnment for the maintenance of cost records under su -section (1) of section 1 8 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and we are of the opinion that prima facie the prescri ed accounts and records have een made and 
maintained. e have not however made a detailed e amination of records with a view to determine whether they are accurate and 
complete.

vii. (a)  he Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, 
income-ta , sales-ta , service ta , duty of customs, duty of e cise, value added ta , cess and any other statutory dues with 
the appropriate authorities. According to the information and e planation provided to us, no undisputed amounts paya le in 
respect of statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2018, for a period more than si  months from the date they ecame 
paya le.

 ( )  According to the information and e planation provided to us, there are no dues of income ta , sales ta , service ta , duty 
of customs, duty of e cise, value added ta  or cess which have not een deposited on account of any dispute e cept those 
mentioned elow

Name of Statute Nature of Dues Amount in 
Million (`)

Period to which 
amount relates

Forum where dispute 
is pending

Sales a  aws Demand as per Sales a  Assessment 20.17 F.Y. 2010-11 Joint Commissioner 
(Appeals)

Demand as per Sales a  Assessment 166.62 FY 2006-07, 2007-08, 
2008-09, 2009-10 and 
2011-12

Maharashtra Sales Tax 
Tri unal, Mum ai

Demand for or s Contract Tax 1. FY 2012-13 Commissioner of Sales 
Tax, Pune

viii. Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanation provided to us, the Company has not defaulted in 
repayment of dues to a nancial institution, an  or government. The Company does not have any de enture holders.

ix. According to information and explanation provided to us, the Company has not raised moneys y way of initial pu lic offer or 
further pu lic offer (including de t instruments). The Company has not raised any term loans during the year. 

x. Based upon the audit procedures performed y us and according to the information and explanations provided to us y the 
management, no fraud y the Company or any fraud on the Company y its of cers or employees has een noticed or reported to 
us during the year.
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xi. According to the information and explanation provided to us, the managerial remuneration has een paid and provided in accordance 
with the requisite approvals mandated y the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act.

xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and accordingly, Clause (xii) of the Order is not applica le to the Company.

xiii. According to the information and explanation provided to us, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with 
sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 wherever applica le and the details have een disclosed in the standalone Ind AS 

nancial statements as required y the applica le Indian Accounting Standards.

xiv. According to the information and explanation provided to us, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private 
placement of shares or fully or partly converti le de entures during the year under review.

xv. According to the information and explanation provided to us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with 
directors or persons connected with him.

xvi. According to the information and explanation provided to us, the Company is not required to e registered under section 5-IA of 
the Reserve Ban  of India Act, 193 .

For M/s P.G.BHAGWAT
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.  101118

Sandeep Rao
Place  Pune  Partner
Date  16th May, 2018  Mem ership No.  7235



65

Annual Report
2017-18

We Create, We Contribute.
Annexure B: To the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date on the standalone 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls
Under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

e have audited the internal nancial controls over nancial reporting of Praj Industries Limited ( the Company”) as of 31st March, 2018 
in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS nancial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s management is responsi le for esta lishing and maintaining internal nancial controls ased on the internal control 
over nancial reporting criteria esta lished y the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 

uidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued y the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
These responsi ilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal nancial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and ef cient conduct of its usiness, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of 
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of relia le nancial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsi ility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal nancial controls over nancial reporting ased on our audit. e 
conducted our audit in accordance with the uidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the uidance 
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, to the extent applica le to an audit of internal nancial controls, oth issued y the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the uidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan 
and perform the audit to o tain reasona le assurance a out whether adequate internal nancial controls over nancial reporting was 
esta lished and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to o tain audit evidence a out the adequacy of the internal nancial controls system over nancial 
reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal nancial controls over nancial reporting included o taining an understanding 
of internal nancial controls over nancial reporting, assessing the ris  that a material wea ness exists, and testing and evaluating the design 
and operating effectiveness of internal control ased on the assessed ris . The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, 
including the assessment of the ris s of material misstatement of the nancial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

e elieve that the audit evidence we have o tained is suf cient and appropriate to provide a asis for our audit opinion on the Company’s 
internal nancial controls system over nancial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
A company’s internal nancial control over nancial reporting is a process designed to provide reasona le assurance regarding the 
relia ility of nancial reporting and the preparation of nancial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A Company’s internal nancial control over nancial reporting includes those policies and procedures that,  
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasona le detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the 
assets of the company  (2) provide reasona le assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of nancial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are eing 
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Company  and (3) provide reasona le assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a 
material effect on the nancial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal nancial controls over nancial reporting, including the possi ility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not e detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal nancial controls over nancial reporting to future periods are su ject to the ris  that the internal nancial 
control over nancial reporting may ecome inadequate ecause of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has maintained, in all material respects, adequate internal nancial controls system over nancial reporting and 
such internal nancial controls over nancial reporting were operating effectively as of 31st March 2018, ased on the internal control over 

nancial reporting criteria esta lished y the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the uidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued y the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For M/s P.G.BHAGWAT
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.  101118

Sandeep Rao
Place  Pune  Partner
Date  16th May, 2018  Mem ership No.  7235
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Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2018

(All amounts are in Indian rupees million unless otherwise stated)
Particulars Note no. 31 March 2018 31 March 2017

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 2013.908 1721.110 
Capital wor -in-progress 3 41.699 31 .56  
Investment property 3 136.928 136.928 
Intangi le assets 3 9.683 18.188 
Financial assets
 Investments 1773.194 1669.563 
 oans 5 42.226 37.696 
 Others 6 0.020 100.020 
Deferred tax assets (net) 26 0.236  - 
Other assets 7 22.173 103.251 

4040.067 101.320 
Current assets
Inventories 8 471.712 636.165 
Financial assets
 Investments 1888.740 13 3.289 
 Trade receiva les 9 1852.302 2181.597 
 Cash and cash equivalents 10 676.879 568.91  
 Other an  alances 11 10.359 3.828 
 oans 5 0.706 0.179 
 Others 6 19.788 5. 30 
Current tax asset (net) 23.655 73.086 
Other assets 7 1519.639 1955.953 

6463.780 68 8. 1 
TOTAL ASSETS 10503.847 109 9.761 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital 12 361.865 358.888 
Other equity 13 6870.807 6789.936 
TOTAL EQUITY 7232.672 71 8.82  
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial lia ilities
 Borrowings 1 0.410 0.819 
Provisions 15 152.179 150.826 
Deferred tax lia ilities (net) 26  - 19.913 

152.589 171.558 
Current liabilities
Financial lia ilities
 Trade paya les 16 1339.823 1600.9 6 
 Other nancial lia ilities 17 95.707 53.155 
Other current lia ilities 18 1606.779 1803. 68 
Provisions 15 76.277 171.810 

3118.586 3629.379 
TOTAL LIABILITIES 3271.175 3800.937 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 10503.847 109 9.761 
Corporate Information 1
Summary of signi cant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the nancial statements.
As per our report of even date.
For M/s P.G. Bhagwat               For and on ehalf of the Board of Directors of Praj Industries Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No  101118

Sandeep Rao Pramod Chaudhari Shishir Joshipura Sachin Raole
Partner                          Executive Chairman CEO and Managing Director CFO and Director- Finance  Commercial
Mem ership No.  7235 (DIN  00196 15) (DIN  0057 970) (DIN  00 31 38)

Dattatraya Nimbolkar
Place  Pune Chief Internal Auditor and Company Secretary
Date  16 May 2018 (M. No.  ACS 660)
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As per our report of even date.
For M/s P.G. Bhagwat               For and on ehalf of the Board of Directors of Praj Industries Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No  101118

Sandeep Rao Pramod Chaudhari Shishir Joshipura Sachin Raole
Partner                          Executive Chairman CEO and Managing Director CFO and Director- Finance  Commercial
Mem ership No.  7235 (DIN  00196 15) (DIN  0057 970) (DIN  00 31 38)

Dattatraya Nimbolkar
Place  Pune Chief Internal Auditor and Company Secretary
Date  16 May 2018 (M. No.  ACS 660)

(All amounts are in Indian rupees million unless otherwise stated)
Particulars Note  no. 31 March 2018 31 March 2017

INCOME
Revenue from operations 19 7019.683 7592.191 
Other income 20 263.180 19 . 81 
Total income 7282.863 7786.672 

EXPENSES 
Cost of materials consumed 21 3652.180 3879.351 
Changes in inventories of nished goods and wor -in-progress 22 10.453 (36.9 5)
Employee ene ts expense 23 1217.308 1213.080 
Finance costs 2 8.576 7.303 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 3 212.627 191.303 
Excise duty expense 50.026 297.863 
Other expenses 25 1733.211 1560.39  
Total expenses 6884.381 7112.3 9 

398.482 67 .323 

Tax expense 26
Current tax 106.228 135.68  
Deferred tax (23.833) 66.011 
Adjustments of tax relating to earlier periods 1.289 3.986 
Total tax expense 83.684 205.681 

314.798 68.6 2 

Other comprehensive income 

 Re-measurement of de ned ene t plans 10.644 2.277 
 Income tax effect (3.684) (0.788)
Other comprehensive income 6.960 1. 89 

Total comprehensive income for the year 321.758 70.131 

Earnings per equity share (Nominal value per share INR 2 each) 27
 Basic 1.75 2.63 
 Diluted 1.74 2.62 
Corporate Information 1
Summary of signi cant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the nancial statements.
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(All amounts are in Indian rupees million unless otherwise stated)
Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017

A. Cash flow from operating activities
398.482 67 .323 

Adjustments for
oss / (pro t) on sale of property, plant and equipment 0.466 0.033 
ain on redemption of mutual fund investments (73.739) (8.586)
ain on redemption of onds  - (2.603)

Bad de ts / provision for dou tful de ts and advances 109.559 50.091 
Excess provision / creditors written ac  (including advances) (2.427) (20.777)
Unrealised foreign exchange (gain) / loss (net) (22.161) 3.595 
Depreciation and amortisation 212.627 191.303 
Interest earned (25.162) (22.89 )
Unrealised gain on mutual fund investments 34.288 (56.080)
Dividend from mutual fund investments (30.443) ( 3.366)
Interest expense 1.577 0.118 
Equity-settled share- ased payment transactions 27.318 1 .828 

630.385 779.985 
Changes in wor ing capital
Decrease/ (increase) in trade receiva les 243.344 660.966 
(Increase)/decrease in inventories (including contracts in progress) 580.547 (739.51 )
(Increase)/decrease in non-current loans (4.530) (1.15 )
(Increase)/decrease in other non-current nancial assets 100.000 (100.000)
Decrease/(increase) in other non-current assets 0.005 0.168 
Decrease/(increase) in current loans (0.527) 10.385 
(Increase)/decrease in current nancial assets-others 9.178 (13.319)
Decrease/(increase)  in other current assets 18.689 3 .928 
(Decrease)/increase in trade paya les (261.113) ( 1.367)
(Decrease) in other current nancial lia ilities 41.021 (5.019)
(Decrease)/increase in other current lia ilities (196.687) (293.779)
Increase in long-term provisions 11.999 27.952 
Increase in short-term provisions (95.531) 1 .261 
Cash generated from operations 1076.780 33 . 93 
Direct taxes paid (including taxes deducted at source), net of refunds (58.087) (156.258)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1018.693 178.235 

B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangi le assets (143.748) (35 .018)
Investments
- in su sidiaries (3.672)  - 
- in mutual funds (1556.595) (670. 91)
- in de entures  onds (99.960)  - 
Sale of investments
- in mutual funds 1150.592 608.389 
- in de entures and onds  - 102.633 
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 0.300 0.3 1 
Interest received on investments 22.230 26.729 
Dividend received on investments 30.443 3.366 
Investment /(redemption) in xed deposits (65.000) 108.615 
NET CASH FROM / (USED) IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (665.410) (13 . 36)
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(All amounts are in Indian rupees million unless otherwise stated)
Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017

C.
Proceeds from exercise of employee stoc  options 85.305 89.021 
(Decrease) in long term orrowings  - (0. 10)
Dividend paid including dividend distri ution tax (349.001) (5.122)
(Decrease)/Increase in short term orrowings and an  overdraft (0.410)  - 
Interest paid (1.577) (0.118)
NET CASH FROM / (USED) IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (265.683) 83.371 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 87.600 127.170 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (Refer Note 10) 568.914 37.689 
Add: effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 20.365 .055 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer Note 10) 676.879 568.91  

Notes
The statement of cash flows has een prepared under the ‘Indirect method’ as set out in Ind AS 7
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the cash flow statement

As per our report of even date.
For M/s P.G. Bhagwat               For and on ehalf of the Board of Directors of Praj Industries Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No  101118

Sandeep Rao Pramod Chaudhari Shishir Joshipura Sachin Raole
Partner                          Executive Chairman CEO and Managing Director CFO and Director- Finance  Commercial
Mem ership No.  7235 (DIN  00196 15) (DIN  0057 970) (DIN  00 31 38)

Dattatraya Nimbolkar
Place  Pune Chief Internal Auditor and Company Secretary
Date  16 May 2018 (M. No.  ACS 660)
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

1 The corporate overview

 Praj Industries imited (‘PI ’ or ‘the company’) is a pu lic company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of 
Indian Companies Act. The company’s registered of ce is Praj Tower”, S. No. 27  and 275/2, Bhum ar Chow - injewadi road, 

injewadi, Pune  11057, Maharashtra, India. The company’s ordinary shares are listed on the Bom ay Stoc  Exchange and 
National Stoc  Exchange in India.

 The company is engaged in the usiness of process and project engineering. The company caters to oth domestic and international 
mar ets. Further, the company also provides design and engineering services. 

 This note provides a list of the signi cant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these nancial statements. These 
policies have een consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

 The nancial statements of the company comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) noti ed under 
Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015  and other relevant provisions 
of the Act.

 The nancial statements were authorised for issue y the Board of Directors on 16 May 2018.

2.2 Basis of measurement

 The nancial statements have een prepared on a historical cost asis, except for the following items, which are measured on an 
alternative asis on each reporting date.

Items Measurement basis
Derivative nancial instruments at fair value through pro t or loss Fair value
Certain non-derivative nancial instruments at fair value through pro t or loss Fair value
Equity-settled share ased payment transactions rant date fair value
De ned ene t plan assets Fair value

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

 These nancial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the company’s functional currency. All amounts have 
een rounded-off to the nearest million, as per the requirements of Schedule III, unless otherwise stated. 

 The preparation of the nancial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to ma e judgments, estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, current assets, non-current assets, current lia ilities,  
non-current lia ilities and disclosure of the contingent lia ilities at the end of each reporting period. Actual estimates may differ 
from these estimates.

 Detailed information a out each of these estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes.

 The areas involving critical estimates and judgements are

 Estimation of current tax expense and paya le  Note 26

 Estimation of de ned ene t o ligation  Note 33

 Recognition of revenue  Note 29

 Recognition of deferred tax assets for carried forward tax losses  Note 26

 Impairment of trade receiva les  Note 39

 Estimation and underlying assumptions are reviewed on ongoing asis. Revisions to estimates are recognised prospectively.

 The company presents assets and lia ilities in the alance sheet ased on current / non-current classi cation. 
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 An asset as current when it is

 Expected to e realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

 eld primarily for the purpose of trading

 Expected to e realised within twelve months after the reporting period  or

 Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from eing exchanged or used to settle a lia ility for at least twelve months after 
the reporting period 

 All other assets are classi ed as non-current. 

 A lia ility is current when

 It is expected to e settled in normal operating cycle

 It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

 It is due to e settled within twelve months after the reporting period  or

 There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the lia ility for at least twelve months after the reporting period

 All other lia ilities are classi ed as non-current. 

 Deferred tax assets and lia ilities are classi ed as non-current assets and lia ilities.

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

 Recognition and measurement

  Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation 
and/or accumulated impairment loss, if any. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase 
price, including import duties and other non-refunda le taxes or levies and any directly attri uta le cost of ringing the asset 
to its wor ing condition for its intended use  any trade discounts and re ates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. 
Borrowing costs directly attri uta le to the construction of a qualifying asset are capitalised as part of the cost.

  hen parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items 
(major components) of property, plant and equipment.

  Property, plant and equipment under construction are disclosed as capital wor -in-progress.

  Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each reporting date are disclosed 
under ‘Other non-current assets’.

 Subsequent costs

  The cost of replacing a part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it 
is pro a le that the future economic ene ts em odied within the part will flow to the company and its cost can e measured 
relia ly. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant 
and equipment are recognised in the statement of pro t and loss as incurred.

 Disposal

  An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future ene ts are expected from its 
use or disposal. ains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined y comparing 
the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment, and are recognised net within other 
income/ expenses in the statement of pro t and loss.

 Depreciation

  Depreciation is calculated over the deprecia le amount, which is the cost of an asset, or other amount su stituted for 
cost, less its residual value. Depreciation is recognised in the statement of pro t and loss on a straight-line asis over the 
estimated useful lives of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment as prescri ed in Schedule II of the Companies 
Act, 2013, as assessed y the management of the company ased on technical evaluation. Freehold land is not depreciated.

  The property, plant and equipment acquired under nance leases is depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their 
useful lives unless it is reasona ly certain that the company will o tain ownership y the end of the lease term. 
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  The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative periods are as follows

Asset Useful life (in years)
Buildings 30-60
Plant and machinery 7.5-15
Computers and of ce equipment 3-5
Vehicles 8
Furniture and xtures 10

2.7 Intangible assets 

 Recognition and measurement

  Intangi le assets are recognised when the asset is identi a le, is within the control of the company, it is pro a le that the 
future economic ene ts that are attri uta le to the asset will flow to the company and cost of the asset can e relia ly 
measured. 

  Expenditure on research activities is recognised in the statement of pro t and loss as incurred. Development expenditure is 
capitalised only if the expenditure can e measured relia ly, the product or process is technically and commercially feasi le, 
future economic ene ts are pro a le and the company intends to and has suf cient resources to complete development 
and to use or sell the asset.

  Intangi le assets acquired y the company that have nite useful lives are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation 
and any accumulated impairment losses. Intangi le assets with inde nite useful lives are not amortised, ut are tested for 
impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level.

 Subsequent measurement

  Su sequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic ene ts em odied in the speci c asset to 
which it relates.

 Amortisation

  Amortisation is calculated over the cost of the asset, or other amount su stituted for cost, less its residual value. Amortisation 
is recognised in statement of pro t and loss on a straight-line asis over the estimated useful lives of intangi le assets from 
the date that they are availa le for use, since this most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future 
economic ene ts em odied in the asset.

  The estimated useful lives for current and comparative periods are as follows

Asset Useful life
Technical now-how 5 - 10 years
Software 5 years

2.8 Investment property

 Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or oth, and that is not occupied y the company, is 
classi ed as investment property.

 Investment property is initially measured at cost, including related transaction costs. The cost of investment property includes its 
purchase price and directly attri uta le expenditure, if any. Su sequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset’s carrying amount 
only when it is pro a le that future economic ene ts associated with expenditure will flow to the company and the cost of the item 
can e measured relia ly. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred. 

 Su sequent to the initial recognition, investment property is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment loss, if any. Depreciation on investment property has een provided in a manner that amortises the cost of the assets 
over their estimated useful lives on straight line method as per the useful life prescri ed under Schedule II to the Act. Investment 
property in the form of land is not depreciated.

 Investment property is derecognised either when it is disposed off or permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic 
ene t is expected from its disposal. The difference etween the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is 

recognised in the statement of pro t and loss in the period of derecognition.
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 The company assesses at each alance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset or cash generating unit (C U) may 
e impaired. If any such indication exists, the company estimates the recovera le amount of the asset. The recovera le amount is 

the higher of an asset’s or C U’s fair value less costs of disposal or its value in use. here the carrying amount of an asset or C U 
exceeds its recovera le amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recovera le amount.

 In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that 
reflects current mar et assessments of the time value of money and the ris s speci c to the asset. In determining fair value less 
costs of disposal, recent mar et transactions are considered. 

 An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or C U exceeds its recovera le amount.

 Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of pro t and loss. They are allocated rst to reduce the carrying amount of any 
goodwill allocated to the C U, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the C U on a pro rata asis.

 An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For other assets, an impairment loss is reversed only to the extent 
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have een determined, net of depreciation or 
amortisation, if no impairment loss had een recognised.

2.10 Inventories

 Raw materials, components, stores and spares, wor -in-progress and nished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realisa le 
value. owever, materials and other items held for use in the production of inventories are not written down elow cost if the 

nished products in which they will e incorporated are expected to e sold at or a ove cost. 

 Cost of raw materials, components, stores and spares comprises cost of purchases. Cost of wor -in-progress and nished goods 
comprises direct materials, direct la our and an appropriate proportion of varia le and xed overhead expenditure, the latter eing 
allocated ased on normal operating capacity. Cost of inventories also includes all other costs incurred in ringing the inventories 
to their present location and condition. Costs are assigned to individual items of inventory ased on weighted average asis.

 Net realisa le value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of usiness, less estimated costs of completion and the 
estimated costs necessary to ma e the sale.

2.11 Cash and cash equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents in the alance sheet comprise cash at an s and on hand and short-term deposits with an original 
maturity of three months or less, which are su ject to an insigni cant ris  of changes in value.

2.12 Revenue recognition

 Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is pro a le that the economic ene ts will flow to the company and the revenue can e 
relia ly measured, regardless of when the payment is eing made. 

 Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receiva le. Amounts included in revenue are inclusive of 
excise duty and net of returns, trade allowances, re ates, value added taxes, goods and services tax and amounts collected on 

ehalf of third parties.

 Contract revenue 

  Revenue from xed price contracts is recognised when the outcome of the contract can e estimated relia ly y reference to 
the percentage of completion of the contract on the reporting date. Percentage of completion is determined as a proportion 
of costs incurred-to-date to the total estimated contract costs. In respect of process technology and design and engineering 
contracts percentage of completion is measured with reference to the milestones speci ed in the contract, which in the view 
of the management reflects the wor  performed and to the extent it is reasona ly certain of recovery.

  Contract costs include costs that relate directly to the speci c contract and costs that are attri uta le to the contract activity 
and alloca le to the contract. Costs that cannot e attri uted to contract activity are expensed when incurred.

  hen the nal outcome of a contract cannot e relia ly estimated, contract revenue is recognised only to the extent of costs 
incurred that are expected to e recovera le. The provision for expected loss is recognised immediately when it is pro a le 
that the total estimated contract costs will exceed total contract revenue. 

  Variations, claims and incentives are recognised as a part of contract revenue to the extent it is pro a le that they will result 
in revenue and are capa le of eing relia ly measured.
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  Determination of revenues under the percentage of completion method necessarily involves ma ing estimates y the 
company, some of which are of a technical nature, concerning, where relevant, the percentage of completion, costs to 
completion, the expected revenues from the project / activity and the foreseea le losses to completion.

  Execution of contracts necessarily extends eyond accounting periods. Revision in costs and revenues estimated during the 
course of the contract are reflected in the accounting period in which the facts requiring the revision ecome nown.

 Sale of goods and rendering of services

  Revenue from sale of goods in the course of ordinary activities is recognised when property in the goods or all signi cant 
ris s and rewards of their ownership are transferred to the customer and no signi cant uncertainty exists regarding the 
amount of the consideration that will e derived from the sale of the goods and regarding its collection. 

  Revenue from services is recognised as the related services are performed.

2.13 Other income 

 Interest income

  Interest income from de t instruments is recognised using effective interest rate method (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly 
discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the nancial instrument or a shorter 
period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the nancial asset or to the amortised cost of a nancial lia ility. 

 Dividends

  Dividends are recognised in the statement of pro t and loss only when the right to receive the payment is esta lished, it is pro a le 
that the economic ene ts associated with the dividend will flow to the company, and the amount can e measured relia ly.

 

  Export ene ts in the form of Duty Draw Bac  / Focus Mar et Scheme (FMS) / Focus Product Scheme (FPS) / Merchandise 
Exports Incentive Scheme (MEIS) claims are recognised in the statement of pro t and loss on receipt asis.

2.14 Foreign currency transactions and balances

 Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at exchange rates prevailing at the date of transactions. Exchange differences arising 
on foreign exchange transactions settled during the year are recognised in the statement of pro t and loss of the year.

 Monetary assets and lia ilities denominated in foreign currencies which are outstanding, as at the reporting period are translated 
at the closing exchange rates and the resultant exchange differences are recognised in the statement of pro t and loss.

 Non-monetary assets and lia ilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured in terms of historical cost are translated 
using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

 

  Employee ene ts paya le wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classi ed as short-term employee 
ene ts and are recognised in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

 

  

  Contri utions to the provident fund and superannuation fund, which are de ned contri ution schemes, are recognised as an 
employee ene t expense in the statement of pro t and loss in the period in which the contri ution is due.

  

  The employees’ gratuity scheme is a de ned ene t plan. The present value of the o ligation under such de ned ene t 
plans is determined ased on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method, which recognises each period of 
service as giving rise to additional unit of employee ene t entitlement and measures each unit separately to uild up the 

nal o ligation.

  The o ligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for determining 
the present value of the o ligation under de ned ene t plans, is ased on the mar et yields on government securities as at 
the reporting date, having maturity periods approximating to the terms of related o ligations.
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  Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net 
interest on the net de ned ene t lia ility and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the 
net de ned ene t lia ility), are recognised immediately in the alance sheet with a corresponding de it or credit to retained 
earnings through other comprehensive income (OCI) in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassi ed 
to the statement of pro t and loss in su sequent periods.

  In case of funded plans, the fair value of the plan’s assets is reduced from the gross o ligation under the de ned ene t 
plans, to recognise the o ligation on net asis.

  hen the ene ts of the plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in ene ts that relates to past 
service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in the statement of pro t and loss. Net interest is 
calculated y applying the discount rate to the net de ned ene t lia ility or asset. The company recognises gains/ losses 
on settlement of a de ned plan when the settlement occurs.

  

  The lia ilities for earned leave are not expected to e settled wholly within twelve months after the end of the reporting 
period in which the employees render the related service. They are therefore measured as the present value of expected 
future payments to e made in respect of services provided y employees up to the end of the reporting period using the 
projected unit credit method as determined y actuarial valuation. The ene ts are discounted using the mar et yields at 
the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating the terms of the related o ligation. Remeasurements as a 
result of experience adjustments and change in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the statement of pro t and loss. 
The o ligations are presented as current lia ilities in the alance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to 
defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected 
to occur.

  

  Termination ene ts are expensed at the earlier of when the company can no longer withdraw the offer of those ene ts and 
when the company recognises costs for a restructuring. If ene ts are not expected to e settled wholly within 12 months of 
the reporting date, then they are discounted.

2.16 Share-based payments 

 The grant fair value of equity settled share ased payment awards granted to employees is recognised as employee ene t expense 
with corresponding increase in equity. The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of 
the speci ed vesting conditions are required to e satis ed. At the end of each reporting period, the company revises its estimates 
of the num er of options that are expected to vest ased on the service and non-vesting conditions. It recognises the impact of the 
revision to original estimates, if any, in the statement of pro t and loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity. 

2.17 Leases 

 The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is ased on the su stance of the arrangement at the 
inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if ful lment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a speci c 
asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly speci ed in an 
arrangement.

 Company as a lessee

  A lease is classi ed at the inception date as a nance lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers su stantially all the 
ris s and rewards incidental to ownership to the company is classi ed as a nance lease.

  Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value of the leased asset or, if 
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. ease payments are apportioned etween nance charges and 
reduction of the lease lia ility to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining alance of the lia ility. Finance charges 
are recognised in nance costs in the statement of pro t and loss.

  A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. owever, if there is no reasona le certainty that the company 
will o tain ownership y the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the 
asset and the lease term.

  Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of pro t and loss on a straight-line asis over the 
lease term unless the payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate 
for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases or another systematic asis is availa le. 
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 Company as lessor

  eases in which the company does not transfer su stantially all the ris s and rewards of ownership of an asset are classi ed 
as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight-line asis over the term of the relevant 
lease unless the payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate 
for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases or another systematic asis is availa le. Initial direct costs incurred in 
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the 
lease term on the same asis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are 
earned.

  eases are classi ed as nance leases when su stantially all of the ris s and rewards of ownership transfer from the 
company to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under nance leases are recorded as receiva les at the company’s net 
investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods to reflect a constant periodic rate of return 
on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

2.18 Borrowing costs 

 Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the orrowing of funds. Borrowing cost 
also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the orrowing costs.

 Borrowing costs directly attri uta le to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset that necessarily ta es 
a su stantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised during the period of time that is required to 
complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. All other orrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are 
incurred.

2.19 Income tax

 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in the statement of pro t and loss except to the extent that 
it relates to a usiness com ination, or items recognised directly in equity or in OCI.

 Current tax

  Current tax assets and lia ilities are measured at the amount expected to e recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. 
The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted, at the reporting date in the country where 
the company operates and generates taxa le income. Current tax assets and lia ilities are offset only if there is a legally 
enforcea le right to set it off the recognised amounts and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the lia ility on a net 

asis or simultaneously. 

  Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of pro t and loss as current tax. The company 
recognises MAT credit availa le as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the company will pay 
normal income tax during the speci ed period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to e carried forward. The 
company reviews the ‘MAT credit entitlement’ asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the 
company does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the speci ed period.

 Deferred tax

  Deferred tax is provided using the alance sheet method on temporary differences etween the tax ase of assets and 
lia ilities and their carrying amounts for nancial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

  Deferred tax lia ilities are recognised for all taxa le temporary differences, except

- hen the deferred tax lia ility arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or lia ility in a transaction that 
is not a usiness com ination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting pro t nor taxa le pro t 
or loss

   - Taxa le temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

   Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deducti le temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any 
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is pro a le that taxa le pro t will e availa le 
against which the deducti le temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can 

e utilised, except

   - hen the deferred tax asset relating to the deducti le temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an 
asset or lia ility in a transaction that is not a usiness com ination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither 
the accounting pro t nor taxa le pro t or loss.
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 The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer pro a le 
that suf cient taxa le pro t will e availa le to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to e utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax 
assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has ecome pro a le that future taxa le 
pro ts will allow the deferred tax asset to e recovered.

 Deferred tax assets and lia ilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or 
the lia ility is settled, ased on tax rates (and tax laws) that have een enacted or su stantively enacted at the reporting date.

 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax lia ilities are offset if a legally enforcea le right exists to set off current tax assets against 
current tax lia ilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxa le entity and the same taxation authority.

 Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside pro t or loss is recognised outside pro t or loss. Deferred tax items are recognised 
in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

 In the situations where the company is entitled to a tax holiday under the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India or tax laws 
prevailing in the respective tax jurisdictions where it operates, no deferred tax (asset or lia ility) is recognised in respect of 
temporary differences which reverse during the tax holiday period, to the extent the company’s gross total income is su ject to the 
deduction during the tax holiday period. Deferred tax in respect of timing differences which reverse after the tax holiday period is 
recogni ed in the year in which the timing differences originate. owever, the company restricts recognition of deferred tax assets 
to the extent that it has ecome reasona ly certain or virtually certain, as the case may e, that suf cient future taxa le income will 

e availa le against which such deferred tax assets can e reali ed. For recognition of deferred taxes, the temporary differences 
which originate rst are considered to reverse rst.

2.20 Provisions and contingencies

 A provision is recognised when the company has a present o ligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is 
pro a le that an outflow of resources em odying economic ene ts will e required to settle the o ligation and a relia le estimate 
can e made of the amount of the o ligation. 

 hen the company expects some or all of a provision to e reim ursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reim ursement 
is recognised as a separate asset, ut only when the reim ursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is 
presented in the statement of pro t and loss net of any reim ursement.

 If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when 
appropriate, the ris s speci c to the lia ility. hen discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is 
recognised as a nance cost in the statement of pro t and loss.

 Contingent lia ility is disclosed in case of

- a present o ligation arising from past events, when it is not pro a le that an outflow of resources will e required to settle 
the o ligation.

- present o ligation arising from past events, when no relia le estimate is possi le.

- a possi le o ligation arising from past events where the pro a ility of outflow of resources is not remote.

 Contingent asset is not recognised in the nancial statements. A contingent asset is disclosed, where an inflow of economic 
ene ts is pro a le.

 Provisions, contingent lia ilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each alance sheet date.

2.21 Earnings per share (EPS)

 Basic EPS is calculated y dividing the pro t for the year attri uta le to equity holders of the company y the weighted average 
num er of equity shares outstanding during the nancial year, adjusted for onus elements in equity shares issued during the year 
and excluding treasury shares.

 Diluted EPS adjust the gures used in the determination of asic EPS to consider

  - The after-income tax effect of interest and other nancing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and

  - The weighted average num er of additional equity shares that would have een outstanding assuming the conversion of all 
dilutive potential equity shares.

2.22 Fair value measurement

 Fair value is the price that would e received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a lia ility in an orderly transaction etween mar et 
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is ased on the presumption that the transaction to sell the 
asset or transfer the lia ility ta es place either
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- In the principal mar et for the asset or lia ility, or

- In the a sence of a principal mar et, in the most advantageous mar et for the asset or lia ility.

 The principal or the most advantageous mar et must e accessi le y the company. The fair value of an asset or a lia ility is 
measured using the assumptions that mar et participants would use when pricing the asset or lia ility, assuming that mar et 
participants act in their economic est interest.

 A fair value measurement of a non- nancial asset considers a mar et participant’s a ility to generate economic ene ts y using 
the asset in its highest and est use or y selling it to another.

 The company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which suf cient data are availa le to 
measure fair value, maximi ing the use of relevant o serva le inputs and minimi ing the use of uno serva le inputs.

 evel 1 - uoted (unadjusted) mar et prices in active mar ets for identical assets or lia ilities. 

 evel 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is signi cant to the fair value measurement is directly or 
indirectly o serva le.

 evel 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is signi cant to the fair value measurement is uno serva le.

 For assets and lia ilities that are recognised in the nancial statements on a recurring asis, the company determines whether 
transfers have occurred etween levels in the hierarchy y re-assessing categorisation ( ased on the lowest level input that is 
signi cant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

 For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the company has determined classes of assets and lia ilities ased on the nature, 
characteristics and ris s of the asset or lia ility and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained a ove.

2.23 Financial instruments

 A nancial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a nancial asset of one entity and a nancial lia ility or equity instrument 
of another entity.

 Financial assets

 The company classi es its nancial assets in the following measurement categories

- those to e measured su sequently at fair value (either through OCI, or through pro t or loss)

- those measured at amortised cost.

 The classi cation depends on the company’s usiness model for managing the nancial assets and the contractual terms of cash flows.

 For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either e recorded in the statement of pro t and loss or OCI. For investments 
in de t instruments, this will depend on the usiness model in which investment is held. For investments in equity instruments, 
this will depend on whether the company has made an irrevoca le election at the time of initial recognition to account for equity 
investment at fair value through OCI. 

 The company classi es de t investments when and only when its usiness model for managing those assets changes. 

 Measurement

 All nancial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of nancial assets not recorded at fair value through pro t 
or loss, transaction costs that are attri uta le to the acquisition of the nancial asset. Transaction costs of nancial assets carried 
at fair value through pro t or loss are expensed in the statement of pro t and loss.

 Debt instruments

 Su sequent measurement of de t instruments depends on the company’s usiness model for managing the asset and cash flow 
characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the company classi es its de t instruments

 Debt instruments at amortised cost

 A ‘de t instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if oth the following conditions are satis ed

- The asset is held within a usiness model whose o jective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

- The contractual terms of the asset give rise on speci ed dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest 
(SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.
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 A gain or loss on a de t investment that is su sequently measured at amortised cost and is not part of hedging relationship is 
recognised in the statement of pro t and loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these nancial 
assets is included in nance income using effective interest rate (EIR) method. 

 Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

 Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the nancial assets, where the assets’ cash flows 
represent SPPI, are measured at FVTOCI. The movements in the carrying amount are recognised through OCI, except for the 
recognition of impairment gains and losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gain or losses which are recognised in the 
statement of pro t and loss. hen the nancial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI 
is reclassi ed from equity to the statement of pro t and loss and recognised in other gains / losses. Interest income from these 

nancial assets is included in other income using EIR method. 

 Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at FVTP . A gain or loss on de t instrument that is 
su sequently measured at FVTP  and is not a part of hedging relationship is recognised in the statement of pro t and loss within 
other gains / losses in the period in which it arises. Interest income from these nancial assets is included in other income. 

 Equity investments

 All equity investments in the scope of ‘Ind AS 109 - Financial instruments’ are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which 
are held for trading are classi ed as at FVTP . For all other equity instruments, the company may ma e an irrevoca le election to 
recognise su sequent changes in the fair value in OCI. The company ma es such election on an instrument- y-instrument asis. 
The classi cation is made on initial recognition and is irrevoca le.

 If the company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, 
are recogni ed in OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to the statement of pro t and loss, even on sale of equity instrument. 

 Equity instruments included within the FVTP  category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the statement of 
pro t and loss.

 Derecognition

 The company derecognises a nancial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the nancial asset expire, or it 
transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which su stantially all of the ris s and rewards of 
ownership of the nancial asset are transferred or in which the company neither transfers nor retain su stantially all of the ris s 
and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the nancial asset. 

 

 The company applies expected credit loss (EC ) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the assets carried at 
amortised cost and FVTOCI de t instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has een a signi cant 
increase in credit ris . Note 39 details how the company determines whether there has een a signi cant increase in credit ris .

 For trade receiva les only, the company applies the simpli ed approach permitted y ‘Ind AS 109 - Financial instruments’, which 
requires expected lifetime losses to e recognised from initial recognition of the receiva les. 

 

 Recognition 

 The company initially recognises orrowings, trade paya les and related nancial lia ilities on the date on which they are originated. 

 All other nancial instruments (including regular-way purchases and sales of nancial assets) are recognised on the trade date, 
which is the date on which the company ecomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

 Measurement

 Non-derivative nancial lia ilities are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Su sequent to initial 
recognition, these lia ilities are measured at amortised cost using EIR method.

 Derecognition

 A nancial lia ility is derecognised when the o ligation under the lia ility is discharged or cancelled or expires. hen an existing 
nancial lia ility is replaced y another from the same lender on su stantially different terms, or the terms of an existing lia ility are 

su stantially modi ed, such an exchange or modi cation is treated as the derecognition of the original lia ility and the recognition 
of a new lia ility. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of pro t or loss.
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 Financial guarantee contracts

 Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a nancial lia ility at the time the guarantee is issued. The lia ility is initially 
measured at fair value and su sequently at the higher of the amount determined in accordance with ‘Ind AS 37 - Provisions, 
contingent lia ilities and contingent assets’ and the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation, where appropriate.

 The fair value of nancial guarantees is determined as the present value of the difference in net cash flows etween the contractual 
payments under the de t instrument and the payments that would e required without the guarantee, or the estimated amount that 
would e paya le to a third party for assuming the o ligations.

 

 Financial assets and nancial lia ilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the alance sheet if there is a currently 
enforcea le legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net asis, to realise the assets and 
settle the lia ilities simultaneously. 

2.24 Cash dividend to equity holders

 The company recognises a lia ility to ma e cash distri utions to equity holders when the distri ution is authorised and the 
distri ution is no longer at the discretion of the company. As per the corporate laws in India, a distri ution is authorised when it is 
approved y the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

2.25 Government grant

 overnment grants are recognised at their fair value when there is a reasona le assurance that the grant will e received and 
company will comply with all attached conditions.

 overnment grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in the statement of pro t and loss over the period necessary to 
match them with costs that they are intended to compensate and presented within other income.

 overnment grants relating to purchase of property, plant and equipment are initially recognised as deferred income at fair value 
and su sequently recognised in the statement of pro t and loss on a systematic asis over the useful life of the asset. 

2.26 Recent accounting pronouncements

 Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers

 On 28 March 2018, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (the MCA) noti ed the Ind AS 115. The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 
115 is nancial period eginning on or after 1 April 2018. Ind AS 115 esta lishes a ve-step model that will apply to revenue earned 
from a contract with a customer (with limited exceptions), regardless of the type of revenue transaction or the industry. Extensive 
disclosures will e required, including disaggregation of total revenue  information a out performance o ligation  changes in 
contract asset and lia ility account alances etween periods and ey judgments and estimates. The standard permits the use of 
either the retrospective or cumulative effect transition method. The Company is evaluating the requirements of Ind AS 115 and its 
impact on the nancial statements.

 Appendix B to Ind AS 21 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

 On 28 March 2018, the MCA noti ed the Indian Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 containing 
Appendix B to Ind AS 21. The Appendix clari es that, in determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the 
related asset, expense or income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary lia ility relating to 
advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on which an entity initially recognises the non-monetary asset or 
non-monetary lia ility arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, then the entity 
must determine the transaction date for each payment or receipt of advance consideration.

 Entities may apply the Appendix requirements on a fully retrospective asis. Alternatively, an entity may apply these requirements 
prospectively to all assets, expenses and income in its scope that are initially recognised on or after

 (i) The eginning of the reporting period in which the entity rst applies the Appendix, or

 (ii) The eginning of a prior reporting period presented as comparative information in the nancial statements of the reporting 
period in which the entity rst applies the Appendix.

 The Appendix is effective for annual periods eginning on or after April 1, 2018. The Company is evaluating the requirements of the 
Appendix and its impact on the nancial statements.
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3 Property, plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress, investment property  and intangible assets
Details of capital work-in-progress
Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Balance at start of the year 314.564 7. 35
Add  Additions during the year 12.454 312.188

ess  Capitalised during the year 285.320 5.059
Balance at the end of the year 41.698 31 .56

Capital wor -in-progress (C IP) comprises of
a.  Building INR 39.901 million (31 March 2017 INR 28.1 6 million)

.  Machinery INR 1.798 million (31 March 2017 INR 2. 18 million)
c.  Integrated Bio-Re nery 2nd eneration Demonstration Plant engineered, developed and constructed in house ( Demo 

Plant”) INR NI  (31 March 2017 INR 28 .000 million)

Investment property: Reconciliation of Fair Value
Particulars Land
Fair value as at 31 March 2017 331.200
Fair value difference 18.968
Fair value as at 31 March 2018 350.168

The Company has o tained independent valuation for its investment property from a government approved valuer who is a 
specialist in valuing these types of investment properties.

The valuation has een made with reference to the prevailing mar et rates and using the approved valuation method.

All resulting fair value estimates for investment property are considered as level 3.
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Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
4 Investments

Non-current investments
(i)  Trade investments 
 Unquoted equity investments
 Investments in subsidiaries (valued at cost)
  Praj Engineering  Infra imited (Formerly Pacecon Engineering Projects imited) 5.359 5.359 
  308,750 (31 March, 2017  308,750) equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid  
  Praj Far East Co., imited 6.125 2. 5  
   19,598 (31 March, 2017  19,598) equity shares of Thai Baht 100 each fully paid  and 

78, 00 (31 March, 2017  Nil) equity shares of Thai Baht 100 each partly paid
  Praj Americas Inc. 9.281 9.281 
  0,000 (31 March, 2017  0,000) equity shares of US Dollar 5 each fully paid
  Praj iPurity Systems imited 1536.743 1536.7 3 
  5,000,000 (31 March, 2017  5,000,000) equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid 
  Praj Industries (Africa) Pty imited 104.558 10 .558 
  125 equity shares at no par value (31 March, 2017  125) 
  Praj Far East Philippines td Inc. 11.167 11.167 
  8,313,281 equity shares of 1P P each (31 March, 2017  8,313,281)
  Praj Industries Nami ia 0.001 0.001 
  100 equity shares of 1 Nami ian Dollar each (31 March, 2017  100)
Total 1673.234 1669.563 

(ii)  Investments at amortised cost
 Quoted investments in non-convertible debentures / bonds:
  Bonds issued y DFC Ban  imited Unsecured Non-Converti le Perpetual Bonds 99.960  - 
  Series 1/2017-18, Coupon 8.85% (31 March, 2017  Nil)
Total 99.960  - 
Total non-current 1773.194 1669.563 
Current investments

 Quoted mutual funds
  ABS  Treasury Optimi er Plan - trly Div - Reg Pln - 670,12  Units  (31 March 2017   

1,096,960 Units) 
69.280 11 .91  

 ABS  Treasury Optimi er Plan - rowth Plan - 55,13  Units (31 March 2017  Nil Units) 100.842  - 
 ABS  Savings Fund - ly DIV - Reg Plan - 2,5 0 Units (31 March 2017  516,196 

Units) 
4.274 51.772 

 ABS  Savings Fund - rowth - Regular Plan - 1 6,32  Units (31 March 2017  Nil Units) 50.029  - 
 DSP FMP S 220 - 0 M - Direct  - 5,000,000 Units (31 March 2017  Nil Units) 50.586  - 
 SBC Cash Fund - Daily Dividend - 1,870 Units (31 March 2017  1,791 Units) 1.872 1.792 
 SBC FTS 128 - rowth Direct Plan - Tenure 1106 Days - 5,000,000 Units (31 March 

2017  Nil Units)
53.163  - 

 SBC Cash Fund - rowth- 28,995 Units (31 March 2017  Nil Units) 50.032  - 
 DFC Medium Term Opportunities Fund - 2,630,250 Units (31 March 2017  Nil Units) 50.792  - 
 ICICI Prudential FMP Sr 7  - 369 Days - Nil Units (31 March 2017  10,000,000 Units)  -  126.520 
 ICICI Prudential Dynamic Bond Fund-Reg P-Md - 983,353 Units (31 March 2017  

5,373,9 6 Units)
10.852 58.510 

 ICICI Prudential Short Term - Reg Plan - Fortnight - 818,283 Units (31 March 2017  
,658,957 Units)

10.184 57.796 

 ICICI Ban ing And PSU De t Fund- D - 16,652 Units (31 March 2017  5,071,037 
Units) 

4.295 51.978 



85

Annual Report
2017-18

We Create, We Contribute.
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

(All amounts are in Indian rupees million unless otherwise stated)

Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
 ICICI Short Term- rowth Option - 1,381, 02 Units  (31 March 2017  Nil Units) 50.024  - 
 ICICI Ban ing  PSU De t Fund- rowth Option - 2,503,969 Units (31 March 2017  Nil 

Units)
50.024  - 

 ICICI Fixed Maturity Plan SRS 82 - 1185 Days - 5,000,000 Units (31 March 2017  Nil 
Units)

50.656  - 

 ICICI Fixed Maturity Plan SRS 82 - 1135 Days - 5,000,000 Units (31 March 2017  Nil 
Units)

50.175  - 

 ota  FMP Series 15  Direct -  - Nil Units (31 March 2017  5,000,000 Units)  -  6 . 80 
 ota  ow Duration Fund - 26,285 Units (31 March 2017   26,285 Units) 55.802 52.109 
 ota  Treasury Advantage Fund -  - 1,800,031 Units (31 March 2017  Nil Units) 50.029  - 
 T Short Term Opportunities Fund-  - 3,06 ,326 Units (31 March 2017  Nil Units) 50.914  - 
 Invesco India Active Income Fund-Dir Pl-  - 2 ,863 Units (31 March 2017  Nil Units) 50.591  - 
 IDFC Dynamic Bond Fund Plan B-  - Nil Units (31 March 2017  2,871,725 Units)  -  60.170 
 Reliance Medium Term Fund -Direct rowth Plan - 1,612,139 Units (31 March 2017  

1,612,139 Units)
59.975 55.925 

 Reliance Fixed ori on Fund-XXXI-SR9 - 5,000,000 Units (31 March 2017  50,00,000 
Units) 

56.178 52.5 8 

 Reliance Fixed ori on Fund-XXXV-SR1  - 5,000,000 Units (31 March 2017  Nil Units) 50.787  - 
 Reliance Money Manager Fund- rowth Plan - 20,892 Units (31 March 2017  Nil Units) 50.027  - 
 SBI De t Fund Series - C - 8(1175 Days)-D  - 5,001,81  Units (31 March 2017  Nil 

Units)
50.764  - 

 Invesco FMP SR 23 Plan  - Reg Plan rowth - Nil Units (31 March 2017  5,000,000 Units)  -  63.220 
 Invesco India Annual Interval Fund-Plan B - 5,000,000 Units (31 March 2017  5,000,000 

Units) 
62.227 58. 0 

 Fran lin India ow Duration Fund - Monthly Div.   - 2,586,973 Units (31 March 2017  
11, 30,519 Units)

27.279 120.8 1 

 Fran lin India Ultra Short Bond Fund- ly. Div. - 2,700,301 Units  (31 March 2017  
11,960,6 9 Units)

27.325 120.990 

 Fran lin India Ultra Short Bond Fund -  - ,161,725 Units (31 March 2017  Nil Units) 100.102  - 
 Fran lin India ow Duration Fund -  - 5,006,107 Units (31 March 2017  Nil Units) 100.000  - 
 Tata Short Term Bond Fund Plan A - Fortnight - 663,6 8 Units (31 March 2017  

3,880,396 Units) 
10.046 57. 99 

 Tata Fixed Maturity Plan SRS 53 Scheme A - 5,000,000 Units (31 March 2017  Nil Units) 50.251  - 
 Tata Ultra Short Term Fund Regular Plan - - 18,99  Units (31 March 2017  Nil Units) 50.028  - 
 Tata Short Term Bond Fund Reg Plan -  - 1,5 9,225 Units (31 March 2017  Nil Units) 50.024  - 
 UTI - Short Term Income Fund - Insti Option -  - 6,120,700 Units (31 March 2017  

6,120,700 Units) 
129.283 122.038 

 DSP Blac roc  Ban ing  PSU De t Fund- D - Nil Units (31 March 2017   5,088, 57 
Units)

 -  51.750 

 D F  Pramerica Ultra Short Term Fund-  - 2,372, 91 Units (31 March 2017  Nil 
Units)

50.028  - 

Total 1788.740 13 3.289 
(ii)  Investments at amortised cost
 Unquoted investments:
 Deposit with Bajaj Finance imited 100.000  - 
Total current 1888.740 13 3.289 
Total Investments 3661.934 3012.852 
Aggregate oo  value of quoted investments 1888.700 13 3.289 
Aggregate mar et value of quoted investments 1889.350 13 3.289 
Aggregate oo  value of unquoted investments 1773.234 1669.563 
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Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
5 Loans

Non-current 
 Security deposits
 Unsecured considered good 42.226 37.696 

42.226 37.696 
Current
 Security deposits
 Unsecured considered good 0.706 0.179 

0.706 0.179 
Total Loans 42.932 37.875 
No loans are due from directors or other of cers of the Company either severally or jointly 
with any other person. Nor any loans are due from rms or private companies respectively 
in which any director is a partner, a director or a mem er. 

6
Non-current
 Deposits with an s with an original maturity of more than 12 months 0.020 100.020 

0.020 100.020 
Current
 Advances to su sidiaries 7.521 16.699 
 Foreign exchange forward contracts 1.205 20.601 
 Interest accrued on xed deposits and onds 11.062 8.130 

19.788 5. 30 
19.808 1 5. 50 

7 Other assets
Non-current
 Capital advances 7.844 88.917 
 Prepaid expenses 3.295 3.300 
 Others 11.034 11.03  

22.173 103.251 
Current
 Contracts in progress (Refer Note 29) 1188.377 160 . 71 
 Advances to suppliers 129.949 133.062 
 Balances with Indirect tax authorities 73.958 93.721 
 Prepaid expenses 47.941 60.318 
 Amounts receiva le in cash or ind 79.414 6 .381 

1519.639 1955.953 
Total Other assets 1541.812 2059.20  

8 Inventories (valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)
Raw materials 353.830 507.830 

or  in progress 88.666 77.656 
Finished goods 29.216 50.679 

471.712 636.165 
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Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
9 Trade Receivables

Current
- From related parties
 Unsecured, considered good 23.446 17.609 
- From others
 Unsecured, considered good 1828.856 2163.988 
 Unsecured, considered dou tful 626.780 521.53  

2479.082 2703.131 
ess  Impairment allowance (allowance for ad and dou tful de ts) 626.780 521.53  

1852.302 2181.597 
No trade receiva les are due from directors or other of cers of the Company either severally 
or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade receiva les are due from rms or private 
companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a mem er. Trade 
receiva les are non-interest earing and generally on credit terms of 3 to 6 months

10 Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with an s
 On current accounts 254.180 198.377 
 Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months 421.967 3 9.793 
Cheques, drafts on hand  - 20.000 
Cash on hand 0.732 0.7  

676.879 568.91  
11 Other bank balances

Unclaimed dividend account 10.359 8.828 
Deposits with maturity for more than 3 months ut less than 12 months  - 35.000 

10.359 3.828 
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Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
12 Equity Share Capital

Authorised shares
50,000,000 (31 March 2017  50,000,000) equity shares of INR 2 each  900.000  900.000 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares
180,932, 15 (31 March 2017  179, ,188) equity shares of INR 2 each  361.865  358.888 
Total  361.865  358.888 

a. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of 
the reporting period:

No. Amount No. Amount
At the eginning of the period  179,444,188  358.888  177,972, 09  355.9 5 
Add  Allotted during the period pursuant to exercise of employees stoc  
options (Refer note 3 )

 1,488,227  2.977  1, 71,779  2.9 3 

Outstanding at the end of the period  180,932,415  361.865  179, ,188  358.888 

b. Terms/ Rights attached to equity shares:
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of INR 2 per share. Each holder of the equity shares is entitled 
to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed y the Board of Directors 
is su ject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual eneral Meeting.

The Board of Directors proposed a nal dividend of INR 1.62 per equity share for the nancial year ended 31 March 2017 and the 
same was approved y the shareholders at the Annual eneral Meeting held on 11 August 2017.  The amount was recognised as 
distri utions to equity shareholders during the year ended 31 March 2018. 

The Board of Directors proposed a nal dividend of INR 1.62 per equity share for the nancial year ended 31 March 2018. The 
proposal is su ject to the approval of shareholders at the Annual eneral Meeting to e held and if approved, will e recognised 
as distri utions to equity shareholders during the year ended 31 March 2019. This event is considered as non-adjusting event.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will e entitled to receive remaining assets of the company 
after distri uting all preferential amounts.

c. Shares held by holding/ultimate holding company and/or their subsidiaries/associates:
The company does not have any holding or ultimate holding company.

d. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company: 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Equity shares of INR 2 each fully paid No. % of holding No. % of holding
Pramod Chaudhari (Promoter)  38,700,000 21.39%  38,700,000 21.57%
Parimal Chaudhari (Promoter)  21,600,000 11.94%  21,600,000 12.0 %

DFC Trustee Company imited - DFC Equity Fund  15,971,366 8.83%  15,971,366 8.90%
Tata Capital Financial Services imited  13,422,400 7.42%  13, 22, 00 7. 8%
Sundaram Mutual Fund - Sundaram Smile Fund  10,773,840 5.95%  - -

e. Shares reserved for issue under options:
Shares reserved for issue under the Employee Stoc  Option Plan (ESOP) please refer note 3 .

f. Aggregate number of bonus shares issued, shares issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought back during the 

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Shares ought ac  y the Company in 2012-13  -  2,083,013 
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Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
13 Other Equity

Capital Reserve 0.033 0.033 

Amalgamation Reserve 3.063 3.063 

Capital Redemption Reserve 14.627 1 .627 

Securities Premium
Balance as at the eginning of the year 710.312 605.606 
Add  Employee stoc  options exercised 82.328 86.078 
Add  Transfer from Share option outstanding account on exercise of options 22.761 18.628 
Balance at the end of the year 815.401 710.312 

Share option outstanding account
Balance as at the eginning of the year 38.115 58.737 
Add  Employee stoc  option expense 27.317 1 .829 

ess  Employee stoc  options expired and transferred to surplus in statement of pro t and loss 1.717 16.823 
ess  Transfer to Securities Premium on exercise of options 22.761 18.628 

Balance at the end of the year 40.954 38.115 

Special Economic Zone Re-investment Reserve
Balance as at the eginning of the year  -  - 
Add  Transfer from Surplus in the Statement of Pro t and oss 71.548  - 
Balance at the end of the year 71.548  - 

General Reserve
Balance as at the eginning of the year 956.511 956.511 
Add  Amounts transferred from surplus alance in statement of pro t and loss  -  - 
Balance at the end of the year 956.511 956.511 

Balance as at the eginning of the year 5067.275 580.321 
Pro t as per statement of pro t and loss 314.798 68.6 2 
Other comprehensive income 6.960 1. 89 
Add  Employee stoc  options expired and transferred from share option outstanding account 1.717 16.823 

ess  Appropriations
 Final equity dividend 291.242  - 
 Tax on nal equity dividend 59.290  - 
 Transfer to Special Economic Zone Re-investment Reserve 71.548  - 
Net Surplus in Statement of pro t and loss 4968.670 5067.275 
Total Other Equity 6870.807 6789.936 
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Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
14 Borrowings

Non-current
Unsecured loan

overnment loan 0.820 1.229 
ess  Current maturities of non-current orrowings disclosed under the head ‘other nancial  

lia ilities - current’ (Refer note 17)
0.410 0. 10 

Total borrowings 0.410 0.819 

oan received from Department of Biotechnology (DBT) carrying interest at the rate of 2%.
Repayment schedule is as elow
i.  Repaya le within 1 to 2 years 0.410 0. 10 
ii.  Repaya le within 2 to 3 years  -  0. 10 
iii.  Repaya le after 3 years  -  - 

15 Provisions
Non-current

 Compensated a sences 59.664 5 . 73 
 ratuity 92.515 96.353 

152.179 150.826 
Current

 Compensated a sences 28.303 29. 7  
 ratuity 10.000 10.000 
 Performance incentive 37.974 132.336 

76.277 171.810 
Total provisions 228.456 322.636 

16 Trade payables
Current
-To related parties 8.128 0.77  
-To others
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer note ii) 120.208 205.672 
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises (MSMED) 1211.487 139 .500 

1339.823 1600.9 6 
Notes
i.  Trade paya les are non-interest earing and are normally settled on 30-90 days terms
ii.  No interest is due/paya le to parties registered under MSMED Act, 2006

17
Current
 Current maturities of long term orrowings 0.410 0. 10 
 Unclaimed dividends 10.279 8.7 8 
 Financial guarantee contracts 2.619 2.162 
 Employee ene ts paya le 47.865 35.033 
 Other paya les 34.534 6.802 

95.707 53.155 

18 Other liabilities
Current
 Advances received from customers 1292.221 1538.815 
 Dues to customers relating to contracts in progress (Refer Note 29) 287.295 225.81  
 Statutory dues paya le 27.263 38.839 

1606.779 1803. 68 
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Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
19 Revenue from operations

Sale of Products and Projects (including excise duty) 6909.419 59 7.291 
 Add  Closing Contracts in progress 901.082 1378.657 
 ess  Opening Contracts in progress 1378.657 303.778 

(a) 6431.844 7022.170 

Sale of services                                                                                                        ( ) 435.086 78. 63 

Other Operating Revenue
 Scrap Sales 128.830 91.558 
 Sale of icenses 23.923  - 

(c) 152.753 91.558 

Total Revenue from operations (a+b+c) 7019.683 7592.191 

20 Other income
Foreign Exchange fluctuation gain (net) 101.471 33.5 7 
Dividend from mutual fund investments-Current Investment 30.443 3.366 

ain on redemption of investments (net) 73.739 11.189 
Investment In Mutual Fund-Fair Valuation ain/( oss) (34.288) 56.080 
Interest
- on xed deposits 18.075 17.269 
- others 7.087 5.625 
( oss) / pro t on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) (0.466) (0.033)
Excess provision / creditors written ac  (including advances) 2.427 20.777 
Other non-operating income 64.692 6.661 

263.180 19 . 81 

21 Cost of materials consumed
Raw material consumed 3652.180 3879.351 

3652.180 3879.351 

22 (Increase) / Decrease in inventories of Finished Goods and Work in Progress
Inventories at the end of the year

or  in progress 88.666 77.656 
Finished goods 29.216 50.679 

117.882 128.335 
Inventories at the beginning of the year

or  in progress 77.656 7.503 
Finished goods 50.679 3.887 

128.335 91.390 
(Increase) / Decrease in inventories 10.453 (36.9 5)
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Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
23

Salaries, wages and onus 1083.106 1093.66  
Contri utions to provident and other funds (Refer note 33 a) 46.018 0.895 

ratuity expense (Refer note 33 ) 15.298 15.851 
Employee stoc  option expense 27.318 1 .828 
Staff welfare 45.568 7.8 2 

1217.308 1213.080 

24 Finance costs
Interest expense 1.577 0.118 
Net interest on de ned ene t plan 6.999 7.185 

8.576 7.303 

25 Other Expenses
Consumption of Stores and spares 87.852 98.769 
Site expenses and la our charges 391.144 399.68  
Freight and transport 238.845 161.791 
Bad de ts written off / Provision for dou tful de ts and advances 109.559 50.091 
Sales commission 122.209 6 . 5  
Travel and conveyance 152.677 177.303 
Professional consultancy charges 165.034 1 7.809 
Insurance 31.182 31.712 
Rent (Refer note 32) 50.061 7. 93 
Power and fuel 59.844 50.208 
Advertising and exhi ition expenses 17.931 19.777 
Communication expenses 17.782 21.021 
Testing charges 23.134 23.11  
Repairs and maintenance
 Building 2.590 3.895 
 Plant and Machinery 19.165 15.992 
 Others 15.946 16.261 
Auditors’ remuneration
 for audit services 3.100 3.281 
 for taxation services 0.600 0.623 
 out of poc et expenses 0.060 0.0 7 
Rates and taxes 1.838 2.797 
Miscellaneous expenses 222.658 22 .272 

1733.211 1560.39  
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Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
26 Income tax

A
Current income tax:
Current income tax charge 106.228 135.68  
Tax relating to earlier periods 1.289 3.986 

Deferred tax:
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (23.833) 66.011 

83.684 205.681 

B Statement of other comprehensive income:
Deferred tax:
Remeasurements gains and losses on post employment ene ts 3.684 0.788 
Income tax expense reported in the statement of other comprehensive income 3.684 0.788 

C Reconciliation of effective tax rate
398.482 67 .323 

Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate (34.608%) 137.907 233.370 

Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous years 1.289 3.986 

Less: Tax effect of:
i. Tax rate difference on oo  pro t as per  Minimum Alternate Tax (64.801) (8 .3 )
ii. Tax effect on exempt income dividend (10.537) (15.008)

Add: Tax effect of
i. Tax lia ility on IND AS adjustment to Retained earnings 1.752 1.752 
ii. Tax lia ility on permanent Difference 1 A Disallowance 1.800 1.556 
iii. Effect on deduction claimed in MAT for Dou tful de t provision written ac 36.423 (2. 30)
iv. Deferred Tax expenses accounted as no effect of Timing differences on MAT 

lia ility
(20.149) 66.799 

Total 83.684 205.681 
83.684 205.681 
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D Deferred tax
Deferred tax relates to the following: Deferred tax 
asset / (liability)

Balance sheet
other comprehensive income

31 March 2018 31 March 2017 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Deferred tax asset
Provision for dou tful de ts and advances 222.903 18 .336 (38.567) 2. 30 

ratuity 35.823 36.806 0.983 (0.776)
ong term capital losses 27.125 27.939 0.814  - 

Carry forward usiness loss  - 22.838 22.838 (22.838)
Compensated a sences 30.739 29.052 (1.687) (1.575)
Others 5.483 7.933 2.450 1.2 7 
Total 322.073 308.90  (13.169) (21.512)
Deferred tax liability
Property, plant  equipment and intangi le assets (318.984) (325.81 ) (6.830) 88.6  
Amortisation of prepaid lease rentals / others (2.853) (3.003) (0.150) (0.333)

Total (321.837) (328.817) (6.980) 88.311 
Net deferred tax asset / (liability) 0.236 (19.913)
Deferred tax expense/(income) (20.149) 66.799 
- Recognised in the statement of pro t and loss (23.833) 66.011 
-   Recognised in the statement of other comprehensive 

income
3.684 0.788 

27 Earnings per share
Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Reconciliation of basic and diluted shares used in computing earnings per share

eighted average num er of asic equity shares  179,976,373  178, 70,172 
Add  effect of dilutive potential equity shares
- Employee stoc  options  776,034  706, 77 

eighted average num er of diluted equity shares 180,752,407 179,176,6 9
Computation of basic and diluted earnings per share
Net pro t after tax attri uta le to equity shareholders  314.798  68.6 2 
Basic earnings per equity share of INR 2 each  1.75  2.63 
Diluted earnings per equity share of INR 2 each  1.74  2.62 

28 Capital commitments and contingent liabilities
Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Capital commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to e executed on capital account and not 
provided for (net of advances)

1.880 51.189

Contingent liabilities
Claims against Company not ac nowledged as de ts (primarily relating to performance 
related claims led y customers)

20.309 39.979

Disputed demands in appeal towards income tax, service tax   sales tax 199.325 197.88
uarantee issued in respect of o ligations of a su sidiary 929.165 703.650
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29 Disclosures pursuant to Ind AS 11 – Construction contracts
Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Contract revenue recognised during the year (excluding taxes) 6326.911 6809.883 
Aggregate amount of contract costs incurred and recognised pro ts (less recognised losses) 12375.700 11867.3 5 
Customer advances outstanding for contracts in progress 1022.568 1357.011 
Retention money due from customers for contracts in progress 627.464 606. 99 

ross amount due from customers for contract wor  (presented as contracts in progress) 1188.377 160 . 71 
ross amount due to customers for contract wor  (presented as dues to customers relating 

to contracts in progress)
 (287.295)  (225.81 )

30 Segment reporting

 The usiness activities of the Company from which it earns revenues and incurs expenses  whose operating results are regularly 
reviewed y the chief operating decision ma er to ma e decisions a out resources to e allocated to the segment and assess its 
performance, and for which discrete nancial information is availa le involve predominantly one operating segment i.e. process 
and project engineering.

31 Related party transactions
a)  Parties where control exists
 Subsidiaries
 Praj Engineering  Infra imited (Formerly Pacecon Engineering Projects imited)
 Praj Far East Co. imited 
 Praj Americas Inc. 
 Praj Industries (Africa) Pty imited
 Praj iPurity Systems imited
 Praj Industries (Nami ia) imited
 Praj Far East (Philippines) Inc.
 Step down subsidiaries 
 Praj Industries (Tan ania) imited (upto 23 Octo er 2017)
 Praj Industries (Sierra eone) imited

b)  Key management personnel and their close members of family 
 Executive chairman Mr. Pramod Chaudhari
 Chief Financial Of cer  Director- Finance  Commercial Mr. Sachin Raole
 Chief Internal Auditor  Company Secretary Mr. Dattatraya Nim ol ar
 Non-Executive Directors Mr. Berjis Desai

Mr. Daljit Mirchandani
Mr. ishor Chau ar (Upto 11 August 2017)
Mrs. Parimal Chaudhari
Mr. Pra ash ul arni (Upto 11 August 2017)
Mr. Rajiv Maliwal
Mr. Sivarama rishnan S. Iyer
Mrs. Mrunalini Joshi (w.e.f 11 August 2017)

 Close mem ers of family of ey management personnel Mrs. Parimal Chaudhari (Director)
Mr. Parth Chaudhari

 Praj Foundation
 Plutus Properties P
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d)  Transactions and balances with related parties have been set out below:
Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Advances provided  recovered during the year 0.454 9.769 
Expenses incurred and reim ursed y the Company 1.237 2.108 
Expenses incurred and reim ursed y su sidiary 7.796 1 .197 
Rent received 0.060 0.060 
Receiva le 0.057 10.301 
Praj Far East Co. Ltd
Sales commission 12.323 .299 
Expenses incurred and reim ursed y the Company 0.512 0.629 
Financial guarantee given on ehalf of su sidiary (income)  - 0.132 

aiver of receiva le in respect of nancial guarantee  - 0.132 
Paya le 0.143 1.059 
Receiva le 6.911 6.899 
Praj Americas Inc.
Sales commission 32.169 12.692 
Purchase of Services 6.462  - 
Paya le 7.820 0.695 
Expenses incurred and reim ursed y the Company  - 0.1 6 
Praj Industries (Tanzania) Limited
Sales commission  - .826 
Praj HiPurity Systems Limited
Sales of goods and services 7.990 0.239 
Purchase of goods  services (without taxes) 5.223 0.199 
Purchase of capital goods  services (without taxes)  - 17.939 
Expenses incurred and reim ursed y the Company 0.815 1.276 
Expenses incurred and reim ursed y su sidiary 11.542 11. 62 
Financial guarantee given on ehalf of su sidiary (income) 2.588 2.09  

aiver of receiva le in respect of nancial guarantee 3.045 3.0 5 
Paya le 0.165 0.052 
Receiva le 7.480 2.66  
Praj Industries (Namibia) Limited
Receiva le 17.526 17. 96 
Praj Industries Philippines Limited
Financial guarantee given on ehalf of su sidiary (income)  - 0.395 

aiver of receiva le in respect of nancial guarantee  - 0.395 
Praj Foundation
Donation paid 15.773 18.531 
Plutus Properties LLP
Rent paid 3.063 1.250 
Pramod Chaudhari
Short term employee ene ts 43.175 9.280 
Post employment ene ts 4.392 .392 
Other long term employee ene ts 1.500 1.500 
Dividend 62.694  - 
Paya le 10.240 0.100 
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Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Gajanan Nabar
Short term employee ene ts  - 12.1 8 
Post employment ene ts  - 0.6 6 
Paya le  - 0.100 
Sachin Raole
Short term employee ene ts 6.220 2.668 
Post employment ene ts 0.366 0.185 
Other long term employee ene t 0.226 0.166 
Share ased payment 2.213 1.352 
Paya le 1.291 0.655 
Dattatraya Nimbolkar
Short term employee ene ts 5.842 6.75  
Post employment ene ts 0.306 0.382 
Other long term employee ene t (0.025) 0.181 
Share ased payment 0.605 0.355 
Paya le 1.012 1. 0 
Parimal Chaudhari
Commission on pro t 1.000 1.000 
Dividend 34.992  - 
Paya le 1.000 1.000 
Parth Chaudhari
Remuneration 2.916 2.700 

32 Leases
The Company has entered into operating lease arrangements for of ce space, equipment and residential premises for its 
employees. Certain lease arrangements provide for cancellation y either party and also contain a clause for renewal of the lease 
agreement.  ease payments on cancella le and non-cancella le operating lease arrangements de ited to the statement of pro t 
and loss and the future minimum lease payments in respect of non-cancella le operating leases are summarised elow

Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Future minimum lease payments in respect of non-cancellable leases
-  amount due within one year from the alance sheet date 39.095 37.16  
-  amount due in the period etween one year and ve years 173.507 162.928 
-  amount due after ve years 82.455 126.357 

-  cancella le leases 7.383 6.980 
-  non-cancella le leases 42.678 0.513 

33

 The Company has recognised INR 6.018  (31 March 2017  INR 0.895) towards post-employment de ned contri ution 
plans comprising of provident and superannuation fund in the statement of pro t and loss.

 In accordance with the Payment of ratuity Act, 1972, the Company is required to provide post-employment ene t to its 
employees in the form of gratuity.  The Company has maintained a fund with the ife Insurance Corporation of India to 
meet its gratuity o ligations.  In accordance with the Standard, the disclosures relating to the Company’s gratuity plan are 
provided elow
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thereof are as follows:
Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the period  197.165  179.827 
Interest cost  13.760  13.297 
Current service cost  15.349  16. 72 
Bene ts paid  (6.735)  (9.739)
Remeasurements on o ligation - (gain) / loss  (8.977)  (2.691)
Present value of obligation as at the end of the period  210.562  197.166 

The changes in the fair value of planned assets representing reconciliation of opening and closing balances thereof are as 
follows:
Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the period 90.812 75.718 
Interest income 6.760 6.112 
Contri utions 8.809 9.397 
Return on plan assets, excluding amount recogni ed in interest income - gain / (loss) 1.667 (0. 1 )
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the period 108.048 90.813 

Amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:
Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Present value of o ligation as at the end of the period  210.562  197.166 
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the period  108.048  90.813 

 (102.514)  (106.353)

Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Current service cost *  15.349  16. 72 
Net interest (income) / expense  7.000  7.185 

period
 22.349  23.657 

* INR 0.051 million (31 March 2017  INR 0.621 million) capitalised in Integrated Bio-Re nery 2nd eneration Demonstration Plant

Amounts recognised in the statement of other comprehensive income (OCI) are as follows:
Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Remeasurement for the year - o ligation (gain) / loss  (8.977)  (2.691)
Remeasurement for the year - plan assets (gain) / loss  (1.667)  0. 1  
Total remeasurements cost / (credit) for the year  (10.644)  (2.277)

Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Interest (income) / expense - o ligation  13.760  13.297 
Interest (income) / expense - plan assets  (6.760)  (6.112)
Net interest (income) / expense for the year  7.000  7.185 

The broad categories of plan assets as a percentage of total plan assets are as follows:
Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Funds managed y insurer 100% 100%
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Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Discount rate 7.50% 7.10%
Rate of increase in compensation levels 8.00% 8.00%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 7.10% 7.60%
Expected average remaining wor ing lives of employees (in years) 9.78 9.89
Withdrawal rate
 Age upto 30 years 7.00% 7.00%
 Age 31 - 0 years 7.00% 7.00%
 Age 1 - 50 years 7.00% 7.00%
 Age a ove 50 years 7.00% 7.00%

Sensitivity analysis indicates the influence of a reasona le change in certain signi cant assumptions on the outcome of the 
present value of o ligation. Sensitivity analysis is done y varying (increasing / decreasing) one parameter y 100 asis points 
(1%)  
a)  Impact of change in discount rate when base assumption is decreased / increased by 100 basis point
Discount rate Present value of obligation

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Decrease y 1% to 6.50% 221.060 207. 3  
Increase y 1% to 8.50% 201.284 188.112 

b)  Impact of change in salary increase rate when base assumption is decreased / increased by 100 basis point
Salary increment rate Present value of obligation

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Decrease y 1% to 7.00% 202.458 189.2 8 
Increase y 1% to 9.00% 219.533 205.9 5 

c)  Impact of change in withdrawal rate when base assumption is decreased / increased by 100 basis point
Withdrawal rate Present value of obligation

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Decrease y 1% to 6.00%  210.869  197.70  
Increase y 1% to 8.00%  210.286  196.680 
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34 Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP)

 In the meeting of the Compensation and Share Allotment Committee held on 16th Novem er, 2010 it was decided to 
utilise the surrendered and lapsed options out of earlier grant and 1,250,000 options (Plan A) were granted to CEO  MD 
with vesting period of 5 years in terms of his appointment at the relevant mar et price as rant IV. In the Annual eneral 
Meeting of the Company held on 22 July 2011, total of 9,238,936 stoc  options were approved under the scheme Employee 
Stoc  Option Plan 2011”. In the Meeting of the Compensation and Share Allotment Committee held on 27 January 2015 
it was decided to grant options to CEO  MD and senior executives of the Company at the relevant mar et price as ESOP 
2011  rant I. The total options granted under ESOP 2011 - rant I are 3,750,000 options out of which 250,000 options 
(Plan A) were granted to CEO  MD and 3,500,000 options (Plan B) were granted to senior executives of the Company. 
During the year 2015-16 390,000 options were granted to senior executives of the Company as ESOP 2011  rant II to V. During 
the year 2016-17 100,000 options were granted to senior executive of the Company as ESOP 2011  rant VI.  During the year 
2017-18 1,969,700 options were granted to certain employees of the Company as ESOP 2011  rant VII. The stoc  options vest 
in a graded manner equally over the period of vesting, each vesting ta ing effect as per the terms of the grant. The stoc  options 
granted are exercisa le at 100% of the fair mar et value of the underlying equity shares of the Company as on the date of grant.

Amount of employee compensation expense recognised for employee services received during the year:
Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Expense arising from equity-settled share- ased payment transactions  27.318  1 .828 

There were no cancellations or modi cations to the awards in 31 March 2018 or 31 March 2017.

Movements during the year
I.  ESOP 2005 Grant IV (Plan A)
Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Options Weighted 
average 

exercise price 
INR

Options Weighted 
average 

exercise price 
INR

Options outstanding at the beginning of the year  -  -  820,000  72.70 
Options granted during the year  -  -  -  - 
Options exercised during the year  -  -  ( 11,179)  72.70 
Options cancelled during the year  -  -  ( 08,821)  72.70 
Options outstanding at the end of the year  -  -  -  - 
Options exercisa le at the end of the year  -  -  -  - 
Range of exercise price of options outstanding at the end of the year  NA  NA 
Average share price during the year  INR 84.95  INR 8 .95 
Weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding 
at the end of the year

 NA  NA 

Weighted average fair value of option as on date of grant 16 Nov 2010  38.19 16 Nov 2010  38.19 
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II.  ESOP 2011 Grant I to VII
Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Options Weighted 
average 

exercise price 
INR

Options Weighted 
average 

exercise price 
INR

Number of options outstanding at the beginning of the year  2,502,060  61.06  3,767,670  58.49 
Num er of options granted during the year  1,969,700  50.00  100,000  85.25 
Num er of options exercised during the year  (1,488,227)  57.32  (1,060,600)  55.75 
Num er of options forfeited during the year  (98,000)  76.46  (305,010)  55.75 
Number of options outstanding at the end of the year  2,885,533  54.91  2,502,060  61.06 
Num er of options exercisa le at the end of the year  890,493  64.60  1,230,195  59.90 
Range of exercise price of options outstanding at the end of the year INR 50.00 to 

114.32
INR 55.75 to 

11 .32
Average share price during the year  INR 85.16  INR 8 .95 
Weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding 
at the end of the year

1.15 years 1.32 years

Weighted average fair value of option as on date of grant (granted 
during the year)

27-Sep-2017  24.18 22-Jul-2016  27.75 

Method used for calculating fair value of option – Black Scholes Option Valuation Model

Particulars FY 2017-18
rant date 27-Sept-2017

Ris -free interest rate 6.45%
Expected life 1.5 years
Expected volatility* 43.01%
Expected dividend yield 2.96%
Price of the underlying share in mar et at the time of grant of option (INR)  68.50 
* Expected volatility has een determined ased on closing price of the share of the Company over a period of 1.5 years

35
Revenue expenditure on research and development is charged under respective heads of account in the year in which it is incurred. 
Capital expenditure on research and development is included as part of property, plant and equipment and depreciated on the 
same asis as other property, plant and equipment.
Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Capital expenditure (excluding advances)  59.355  289. 97 
Revenue expenditure  151.748  9 .552 

36 Taxes
The company has not recognised MAT credit entitlement to the extent of INR 29 .1 3 till 31 March, 2018 in respect of Income Tax 
paid in view of uncertainty of its utilisation for payment of tax in foreseea le future.
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37 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) expenditure
The Company was required to spend INR 16.773 as expenditure on CSR as per requirements of the Companies Act, 2013. During 
the year, the Company has incurred CSR expenses of INR 16.773 as follows
Amount spent on Amounts paid Yet to be paid Yet to be paid
Construction/acquisition of asset Nil Nil Nil
On other purposes covered under Schedule VII to Companies Act, 2013 16.773* Nil Nil
*Includes INR 15.773 given to Praj Foundation which is a related party.
The a ove expenditure includes contri ution/donation of INR 16.773 to trusts / institute which are engaged in activities eligi le 
under section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule VII thereto.

38 Fair value measurements
As per assessments made y the management, fair values of all nancial instruments carried at amortised cost (except as 
speci ed elow) are not materially different from their carrying amounts since they are either short term nature or the interest 
rates applica le are equal to the current mar et rate of interest. The Company has performed a fair valuation of its investment in 
mutual funds which are classi ed as FVTP  using quoted prices.
Sr. 
No.

Particulars Carrying value 
 31 March 2018  31 March 2017

Levelled at level 2
Financial asset

a) Carried at amortised cost 
Investment in quoted non-converti le onds*  99.960  - 
Investment in deposits  100.000  - 
Security deposits  42.932  37.875 
Trade receiva le 1852.302 2181.597 
Deposits with an s  0.020  100.020 
Advances to su sidiaries  7.521  16.699 
Other receiva les  11.062  8.130 
Cash and cash equivalents and other an  alances  687.238  612.7 2 

b)
Foreign exchange forward contracts  1.205  20.601 
Levelled at level 1

i) Investments in mutual funds 1788.740 13 3.289 
Levelled at level 2
Financial liabilities  -  - 

ii) Carried at amortised cost
Borrowings  0.820  1.229 
Trade paya les 1339.823 1600.9 6 
Unclaimed dividends  10.279  8.7 8 
Financial guarantee contracts  2.619  2.162 
Other paya les  82.399  1.835 

* Fair value of investment in quoted non-converti le onds  100.610  - 
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39 Financial risk management policy and objectives 

 Company’s principal nancial lia ilities, comprise loans and orrowings, trade and other paya les, and nancial 
guarantee contracts. The main purpose of these nancial lia ilities is to nance company’s operations and to provide 
guarantees to support its operations.  Company’s principal nancial assets include advances to su sidiaries,  trade 
and other receiva les, security deposits and cash and cash equivalents,  that derive directly from its operations.  
In order to minimise any adverse effects on the nancial performance of the company, it has ta en various measures. This note 
explains the source of ris  which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the ris  and impact of the same in the 

nancial statements. 

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management 
Credit Cash and cash equivalents, trade 

receiva les, nancial assets 
measured at amortised cost.

Aging analysis, external 
credit rating (wherever 
availa le)

Diversi cation of an  deposits, 
credit limits and letters of credit

iquidity ris Borrowings and other lia ilities Rolling cash flow 
forecasts

Availa ility of committed credit lines 
and orrowing facilities

Mar et ris - Foreign 
Currency Ris

Recognised nancial assets and 
lia ilities not denominated in 
Indian rupee (INR)

Sensitivity Analysis Management follows esta lished 
ris  management policies, including 
use of derivatives li e foreign 
exchange forward contracts, where 
the economic conditions match the 
company’s policy.  

 The company’s ris  management is carried out y management, under policies approved y the oard of directors. Company’s 
treasury identi es, evaluates and hedges nancial ris s in close co operation with the company’s operating units. The oard 
provides written principles for overall ris  management, as well as policies covering speci c areas, such as foreign exchange ris , 
credit ris , and investment of excess liquidity.

 (A)  Credit risk 

  Credit ris  in case of the Company arises from cash and cash equivalents, deposits with an s and nancial institutions, as 
well as credit exposures to  customers including outstanding receiva les.

  Credit risk management

  Credit ris  arises from the possi ility that counter party may not e a le to settle their o ligations as agreed. To manage this, 
the Company periodically assesses the relia ility of customers, ta ing into account the nancial condition, current economic 
trends, and analysis of historical ad de ts and ageing of accounts receiva le. Individual ris  limits are set accordingly. 
The company considers the pro a ility of default upon intial recognition of asset and whether there has een a signi cant 
increase in credit ris  on an ongoing asis throughout each reporting period. To assess whether there is a signi cant 
increase in credit ris  the company compares the ris  of a default occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with the ris  
of default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers reasona le and supportive forward loo ing information such as

  (i)     Actual or expected signi cant adverse changes in usiness,

  (ii)    Actual or expected signi cant changes in the operating results of the counterparty,

  (iii)   Financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause a signi cant change to counterparty’s a ility to meet its 
o ligations,

  (iv)   Signi cant increases in credit ris  on other nancial instruments of the same counterparty,

  (v)    Signi cant changes in the value of collateral supporting the o ligation or in the quality of third-party guarantees or credit 
enhancements.

  The company provides for expected credit loss in case of trade receiva les, claims receiva le and security deposits when 
there is no reasona le expectation of recovery, such as a de tor declaring an ruptcy or failing to engage in a repayment 
plan with the company. The company categorises a receiva le for provision for dou tful de ts/write off when a de tor fails to 
ma e contractual payments greater than 180 days past due. The amount of provision depends on certain parameters set y 
the Company in its provisioning policy. Where loans or receiva les have een written off, the company continues to engage 
in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receiva le due. Where recoveries are made, these are recognised in pro t or 
loss. 
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  Provision for expected credit loss
  Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using 180 days Expected Credit osses (EC )

Exposure to risk 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Trade receiva les 2479.082 2703.131 

ess  expected loss 626.780 521.53  
1852.302 2181.597 

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Trade receiva les
Neither past due nor impaired 1079.672 12 8. 27 

ess than 180 days  439.779  599.205 
181 - 365 days  108.196  77.817 
More than 365 days  224.655  256.1 8 
Total 1852.302 2181.597 

Reconciliation of loss provision 
Trade receivables 

oss allowance as at 31 March 2017  521.534 
Changes in loss allowance  105.246 

oss allowance as at 31 March 2018  626.780 

 B)  Liquidity risk 

  Prudent liquidity ris  management implies maintaining suf cient cash and the availa ility of funding through an adequate amount 
of committed credit facilities to meet o ligations when due and to close out mar et positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the 
underlying usinesses, company maintains flexi ility in funding y maintaining availa ility under committed credit lines.

  Management monitors rolling forecasts of the company’s liquidity position (comprising the undrawn orrowing facilities 
elow) and cash and cash equivalents on the asis of expected cash flows. This is carried out in accordance with practice 

and limits set y the group. In addition, the company’s liquidity management policy involves projecting cash flows and 
considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet these, monitoring alance sheet liquidity ratios against internal and 
external regulatory requirements and maintaining de t nancing plans.

Exposure to risk 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Interest bearing borrowings
On demand - -

ess than 180 days  0.205  0.205 
181 - 365 days  0.205  0.205 
More than 365 days  0.410  0.820 
Total  0.820  1.230 

Other liabilities
On demand  10.279  8.7 8 

ess than 180 days  85.018  3.997 
181 - 365 days - -
More than 365 days - -
Total  95.297  52.7 5 

Trade payables
On demand - -

ess than 180 days 1339.823 1600.9 6 
181 - 365 days - -
More than 365 days - -
Total 1339.823 1600.9 6 
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The company has access to following undrawn facilities at the end of the reporting period
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Expiring within one year 1203.600  560.000 
Expiring eyond one year  -  - 

 (C)  Foreign currency risk

  The company is exposed to foreign exchange ris  mainly through its sales to overseas customers and purchases from 
overseas suppliers in various foreign currencies. The company evaluates exchange rate exposure arising from foreign 
currency transactions and the company follows esta lished ris  management policies, including use of derivatives li e 
foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge exposure to foreign currency ris , where the economic conditions match the 
company’s policy.  

Foreign currency exposure :
Financial assets Currency Amount in foreign currency Amount in INR

31 March 2018 31 March 2017 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 
Trade receiva les EUR 0.815 0.869 65.078 59.5  

USD 9.683 10.566 624.554 680.3 5 
BP 0.244 0.180 22.267 1 . 32 

Ban  accounts EUR 0.053  - 4.229  - 
USD 3.328 2.769 214.423 178.07  

Foreign exchange forward contracts EUR  - 0.285  - 19.528 
USD 12.050 .850 777.225 312.292 

Financial liabilities Currency Amount in foreign currency Amount in INR
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 

Trade paya les EUR 0.168 0. 27 13.682 29.869 
USD 1.062 0.860 69.444 56.175 

BP 0.002 0.006 0.186 0. 91 

Currency wise net exposure (assets -liabilities)
Particulars Amount in foreign currency Amount in INR

31 March 2018 31 March 2017 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 
EUR 0.700 0.727 55.625 9.203 
USD 23.999 17.325 1546.758 111 .536 

BP 0.242 0.17  22.081 13.9 1 

Sensitivity analysis 
Currency Amount in INR Sensitivity %  

[ Loss / (Gain) ]
 

[ Loss / (Gain) ]
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

EUR 55.625 9.203 5.00% (2.781) (2. 60) 2.781 2. 60 
USD 1546.758 111 .536 5.00% (77.338) (55.727) 77.338 55.727 

BP 22.081 13.9 1 5.00% (1.104) (0.697) 1.104 0.697 
Total 1624.464 1177.680 (81.223) (58.88 ) 81.223 58.88  
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40 Capital management

 Risk management

 The company’s o jectives when managing capital are to 

 - safeguard it’s a ility to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and ene ts 
for other sta eholders, and

 - Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

 In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return 
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce de t. Consistent with others in the industry, the company 
monitors capital on the asis of the following gearing ratio  Net de t (total orrowings net of cash and cash equivalents) divided 

y total ‘equity’ (as shown in the alance sheet).

 The company’s strategy is to maintain a gearing ratio of 0%. The gearing ratios were as follows

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
oans and orrowings  0.410  0.819 
ess  cash and cash equivalents  676.879  568.91  

Net de t  -  - 
Equity 7232.672 71 8.82  
Capital and net de t 7232.672 71 8.82  

earing ratio 0% 0%

For and on ehalf of the Board of Directors of Praj Industries Limited

Pramod Chaudhari Shishir Joshipura Sachin Raole
Executive Chairman CEO and Managing Director CFO and Director- Finance  Commercial
(DIN  00196 15) (DIN  0057 970) (DIN  00 31 38)

Dattatraya Nimbolkar
Place  Pune Chief Internal Auditor and Company Secretary
Date  16 May 2018 (M. No.  ACS 660)
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Independent Auditors’ Report
TO THE MEMBERS OF PRAJ INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Report on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS nancial statements of Praj Industries imited (hereinafter referred to as 
the olding Company”), and its su sidiaries (the olding Company and its su sidiaries together referred to as the roup”) which 

comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2018, and the Consolidated Statement of Pro t and oss (including Other 
Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then 
ended, and a summary of the signi cant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The olding Company’s Board of Directors is responsi le for the matters stated in Section 13 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ( the Act”) 
with respect to the preparation of these consolidated Ind AS nancial statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated state 
of affairs, consolidated pro t (including other comprehensive income), consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes in equity of 
the roup in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 
prescri ed under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the roup are responsi le for 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the roup and 
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities  the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies  ma ing 
judgments and estimates that are reasona le and prudent  and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal nancial 
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation 
and presentation of the consolidated Ind AS nancial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, which have een used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS nancial statements y the 
Directors of the olding Company, as aforesaid.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsi ility is to express an opinion on these consolidated Ind AS nancial statements ased on our audit. We have ta en into 
account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to e included in the audit report 
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder. We conducted our audit of the consolidated Ind AS nancial statements 
in accordance with the Standards on Auditing speci ed under Section 1 3(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to o tain reasona le assurance a out whether the consolidated Ind AS nancial 
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to o tain audit evidence a out the amounts and the disclosures in the consolidated Ind AS 
nancial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the ris s of material 

misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS nancial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In ma ing those ris  assessments, the 
auditor considers internal nancial control relevant to the olding Company’s preparation of the consolidated Ind AS nancial statements 
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasona leness of the accounting estimates made y the olding 
Company’s Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated Ind AS nancial statements.

We elieve that the audit evidence o tained y us, the audit evidence o tained y the other auditors and the information provided y the 
management in terms of their reports referred to in para (a) of the Other Matters paragraph elow, is suf cient and appropriate to provide 
a asis for our audit opinion on the consolidated Ind AS nancial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the est of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS 
nancial statements give the information required y the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with 

the accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Company as at 
31st March, 2018, and its consolidated pro t (including other comprehensive income), its consolidated cash flows and the consolidated 
changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 

Other Matters

We did not audit the nancial statements of four su sidiaries whose nancial statements reflect total assets of ` 1 6.237 Million as at 
31st March, 2018, total revenues of ` 125.281 Million and net cash outflows amounting to ` 77.26  Million for the year ended on that 
date, as considered in the consolidated Ind AS nancial statements. These nancial statements have een audited y other auditors/ 
compiled y the management, whose reports have een furnished to us y the Management and our opinion on the consolidated nancial 
statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these su sidiaries, and our report in terms of 



108

su -sections (3) and (11) of Section 1 3 of the Act, insofar as it relates to the aforesaid su sidiaries, is ased solely on the reports of the 
other auditors/ management. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.  As required y Section 1 3(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applica le, that  

 a)  We have sought and o tained all the information and explanations which to the est of our nowledge and elief were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS nancial statements.

 )  In our opinion, proper oo s of account as required y law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS 
nancial statements have een ept so far as it appears from our examination of those oo s and the reports of the other 

auditors.

 c)  The consolidated Balance Sheet, the consolidated Statement of Pro t and oss (including Other Comprehensive Income), 
the consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with y this Report are in 
agreement with the relevant oo s of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS nancial 
statements.

 d)  In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS nancial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards speci ed 
under Section 133 of the Act.

 e)  On the asis of the written representations received from the directors of the olding Company as on 31st March, 2018 
ta en on record y the Board of Directors of the olding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors/ management 
of its su sidiary companies, none of the directors of the roup companies is disquali ed as on 31st March, 2018 from eing 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 16  (2) of the Act.

 f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal nancial controls over nancial reporting of the roup and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in Annexure A”.

 g)  With respect to the other matters to e included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit 
and Auditor’s) Rules, 201 , in our opinion and to the est of our information and according to the explanations given to us  

  i.  The consolidated Ind AS nancial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated nancial 
position of the roup  Refer note 28 to the consolidated Ind AS nancial statements.

  ii.  The roup did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts having material foreseea le losses for 
which provision was required. 

  iii.  There has een no delay in transferring amounts, required to e transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund y the olding Company and its su sidiary companies.

For M/s P.G.BHAGWAT
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.  101118W

Sandeep Rao
Place  Pune  Partner 
Date  16th May, 2018 Mem ership No.  7235
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Annexure A: To the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date on the consolidated 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls
Under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
We have audited the internal nancial controls over nancial reporting of Praj Industries imited (hereinafter referred to as the olding 
Company”), and its su sidiaries (the olding Company and its su sidiaries together referred to as the roup”) as of 31st March, 2018 in 
conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS nancial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The olding Company’s Board of Directors is responsi le for esta lishing and maintaining internal nancial controls ased on the internal 
control over nancial reporting criteria esta lished y the roup considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 

uidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued y the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
These responsi ilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal nancial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and ef cient conduct of its usiness, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of 
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of relia le nancial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsi ility is to express an opinion on the roup’s internal nancial controls over nancial reporting ased on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with the uidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the uidance 
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, to the extent applica le to an audit of internal nancial controls, oth issued y the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the uidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan 
and perform the audit to o tain reasona le assurance a out whether adequate internal nancial controls over nancial reporting was 
esta lished and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to o tain audit evidence a out the adequacy of the internal nancial controls system over 

nancial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal nancial controls over nancial reporting included o taining an 
understanding of internal nancial controls over nancial reporting, assessing the ris  that a material wea ness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control ased on the assessed ris . The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the ris s of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS nancial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error.
We elieve that the audit evidence we have o tained is suf cient and appropriate to provide a asis for our audit opinion on the roup’s 
internal nancial controls system over nancial reporting.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
A company’s internal nancial control over nancial reporting is a process designed to provide reasona le assurance regarding the 
relia ility of nancial reporting and the preparation of nancial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A company’s internal nancial control over nancial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) 
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasona le detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the 
assets of the company  (2) provide reasona le assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of nancial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are eing 
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company  and (3) provide reasona le assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a 
material effect on the consolidated Ind AS nancial statements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal nancial controls over nancial reporting, including the possi ility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not e detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal nancial controls over nancial reporting to future periods are su ject to the ris  that the internal nancial 
control over nancial reporting may ecome inadequate ecause of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Opinion
In our opinion, the roup has maintained, in all material respects, adequate internal nancial controls system over nancial reporting and 
such internal nancial controls over nancial reporting were operating effectively as of 31st March 2018, ased on the internal control 
over nancial reporting criteria esta lished y the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 

uidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued y the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
Other Matters
We did not audit the internal nancial controls over nancial reporting of  su sidiaries, which are located outside India and are not 
Companies registered under The Companies Act, 2013. 

For M/s P.G.BHAGWAT
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.  101118W

Sandeep Rao
Place  Pune  Partner 
Date  16th May, 2018 Mem ership No.  7235
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2018

(All amounts are in Indian rupees million unless otherwise stated)
Particulars Note no. 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 2197.656 1915.277 
Capital wor -in-progress 3 41.699 31 .56  
Investment property 3 136.928 136.928 

oodwill 3 626.150 626.150 
Intangible assets 3 10.461 20.209 
Financial assets
 Investments 100.075 0.115 
 oans 5 72.117 61. 93 
 Others 6 70.245 232.515 
Deferred tax assets (net) 26 41.312 25.797 
Other assets 7 116.431 187.981 

3413.074 3521.029 
Current assets
Inventories 8 807.853 10 5.25  
Financial assets
 Investments 1908.591 13 3.287 
 Trade receivables 9 2625.014 29 8.786 
 Cash and cash equivalents 10 772.250 691.832 
 Other ban  balances 11 30.269 3.828 
 oans 5 0.706 0.179 
 Others 6 15.879 33.005 
Current tax asset (net) 54.751 83.235 
Other assets 7 1704.324 2163.652 

7919.637 8353.058 
TOTAL ASSETS 11332.711 1187 .087 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital 12 361.865 358.888 
Other equity 13 6899.492 6737. 53 
Sub-total - total equity attributable to parent 7261.357 7096.3 1 
Non-controlling interests 6.599 2.791 
Total equity 7267.956 7099.132 
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
 Borrowings 1 0.410 0.819 
Provisions 15 159.187 157.767 

159.597 158.586 
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
 Borrowings 1 59.418 2.592 
 Trade payables 16 1763.649 213 .398 
 Other nancial liabilities 17 125.497 6 . 78 
Other current liabilities 18 1871.458 2196.3 7 
Provisions 15 85.136 178.55  

3905.158 616.369 
TOTAL LIABILITIES 4064.755 77 .955 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 11332.711 1187 .087 
Corporate Information 1
Summary of signi cant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the nancial statements.
As per our report of even date.
For M/s P.G. Bhagwat               For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No  101118W
Sandeep Rao Pramod Chaudhari Shishir Joshipura Sachin Raole
Partner                          Executive Chairman CEO and Managing Director CFO and Director- Finance  Commercial
Membership No.  7235 (DIN  00196 15) (DIN  0057 970) (DIN  00 31 38)

Dattatraya Nimbolkar
Place  Pune Chief Internal Auditor and Company Secretary
Date  16 May 2018 (M. No.  ACS 660)
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(All amounts are in Indian rupees million unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note no. 31 March 2018 31 March 2017

INCOME
Revenue from operations 19 9234.568 9551.62  
Other income 20 267.249 222.781 
Total Income 9501.817 977 . 05 

EXPENSES
Cost of  materials consumed 21 4712.004 770.073 
Changes in inventories of nished goods, stoc -in-trade and wor -in-progress 22 (19.203) (98.665)
Employee bene ts expense 23 1494.651 1 80.358 
Finance costs 2 11.420 13.078 
Depreciation and amorti ation expense 3 240.925 221.2 3 
Excise duty expense 68.704 01.712 
Other expenses 25 2463.191 2311.353 
Total expenses 8971.692 9099.152 

530.125 675.253 
Tax expenses 26
Current tax 154.919 180.8 1 
Deferred tax (19.919) 7.5 6 
Adjustments of tax relating to earlier periods 0.248 0.867 
Total tax expenses 135.248 229.25  

394.877 5.999 
Attributable to :
Non-controlling interests (0.032) (0.029)
Owners of the company 394.909 6.028 
Other comprehensive income 

 Re-measurement of de ned bene t plans 11.558 1. 73 
 Income tax effect (3.984) (0.508)

7.574 0.965 

 Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 0.443 (7.3 9)
0.443 (7.3 9)

Other comprehensive income 8.017 (6.38 )
Total comprehensive income for the year 402.894 39.615 
Attributable to :
Non-controlling interests (0.032) (0.029)
Owners of the company 402.926 39.6  
Earnings per equity share (Nominal value per share INR 2 each) 27
(1)  Basic 2.19 2.50 
(2)  Diluted 2.18 2. 9 
Corporate Information 1
Summary of signi cant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the nancial statements.

As per our report of even date.
For M/s P.G. Bhagwat               For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No  101118W
Sandeep Rao Pramod Chaudhari Shishir Joshipura Sachin Raole
Partner                          Executive Chairman CEO and Managing Director CFO and Director- Finance  Commercial
Membership No.  7235 (DIN  00196 15) (DIN  0057 970) (DIN  00 31 38)

Dattatraya Nimbolkar
Place  Pune Chief Internal Auditor and Company Secretary
Date  16 May 2018 (M. No.  ACS 660)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2018

(All amounts are in Indian rupees million unless otherwise stated)
 31 March 2018  31 March 2017 

A. Cash flow from operating activities
530.125 675.253 

Adjustments for
oss / (pro t) on sale of property, plant and equipment 0.261 0.021 
oss / (pro t) on discardment of property, plant and equipment 0.551  - 
ain on redemption of mutual fund investments (73.739) (8.586)
ain on redemption of bonds  - (2.603)

Bad Debts / Provision for doubtful debts and advances 136.263 109. 28 
Excess provision / creditors written bac  (including advances) (3.229) (25. 53)
Provision for diminution in value of investment / oss on sale of shares 0.237  - 
Unrealised foreign exchange (gain) / loss (net) (21.298) (3.75 )
Sundry Balances Written Off 1.178  - 
Income from Debentures (0.461)  - 
Depreciation and amortisation 240.925 221.2 3 
Interest earned (35.989) (33.992)
Unrealised gain on mutual fund investments 34.288 (56.080)
Dividend from mutual fund investments (30.443) ( 3.37 )
Interest charged 3.943 5.56  
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions 27.318 1 .828 

809.930 852. 95 
Changes in wor ing capital
(Increase) /decrease in trade receivables 209.939 595.793 
(Increase)/decrease in inventories (including contracts in progress) 665.863 (860.318)
(Increase)/decrease in non-current loans (10.624) (0.350)
(Increase)/decrease in other non-current nancial assets 162.270 (125.195)
(Increase)/decrease in other non-current assets (9.523) (3 .9 1)
(Increase)/decrease in current loans (0.527) 10.385 
(Increase)/decrease in other current assets 29.335 5 .085 
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables (369.937) 91.360 
Increase/(decrease) in other current nancial liabilities 59.488 ( .8 )
Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities (324.889) (216.686)
Increase/(decrease) in long term provisions 1.420 29.031 
Increase/(decrease) in short term provisions (81.860) 16.157 
Cash generated from operations 1140.885 06.972 
Direct taxes paid (including taxes deducted at source), net of refunds (126.683) (205.092)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1014.202 201.880 

B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (161.067) (367.213)
Investments
- in mutual funds (1556.595) (670. 91)
- in debentures  bonds (99.960)  - 
Sale of investments
- in mutual funds 1150.592 608.389 
- in debentures  bonds  - 102.633 
Provision for diminution in value of investment / oss on sale of shares (0.237) -
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 0.637 1.216 
Interest received on investments 33.719 37.101 
Dividend received on investments 30.443 3.37  
Income from Debentures 0.461  - 
Investment /(redemption) in xed deposits (104.760) 16 .679 
NET CASH FROM / (USED) IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (706.767) (80.312)



113

Annual Report
2017-18

We Create, We Contribute.

(All amounts are in Indian rupees million unless otherwise stated)
 31 March 2018  31 March 2017 

C.
Proceeds from exercise of employee stoc  options 89.145 89.021 
Increase / (Decrease) in ong term borrowings (0.409) (0. 10)
Increase / (Decrease) in  borrowings 16.826 (116. 97)
Dividend paid including dividend distribution tax (349.001) (5.122)
Interest paid (3.943) (5.56 )
NET CASH FROM / (USED) IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (247.382) (38.573)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 60.053 82.995 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (Refer Note 10) 691.832 60 .782 
Add: effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 20.365 .055 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer Note 10) 772.250 691.832 

Notes:
The statement of cash flows has been prepared under the ‘Indirect method’ as set out in Ind AS 7
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Cash Flow statement

As per our report of even date.
For M/s P.G. Bhagwat               For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No  101118W

Sandeep Rao Pramod Chaudhari Shishir Joshipura Sachin Raole
Partner                          Executive Chairman CEO and Managing Director CFO and Director- Finance  Commercial
Membership No.  7235 (DIN  00196 15) (DIN  0057 970) (DIN  00 31 38)

Dattatraya Nimbolkar
Place  Pune Chief Internal Auditor and Company Secretary
Date  16 May 2018 (M. No.  ACS 660)
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1 The corporate overview

 Praj Industries imited (‘PI ’ or ‘the holding company’ or ‘the company’) is a public company domiciled in India and incorporated 
under the provisions of Indian Companies Act. The company’s registered of ce is Praj Tower”, S. No. 27  and 275/2, Bhum ar 
Chow - injewadi road, injewadi, Pune  11057, Maharashtra, India. The company’s ordinary shares are listed on the Bombay 
Stoc  Exchange and National Stoc  Exchange in India.

 The consolidated nancial statements comprise the nancial statements of the company and its subsidiaries (together referred to 
as the group”).

 The group is engaged in the business of process and project engineering. The group caters to both domestic and international 
mar ets. Further, the group also provides design and engineering services.

 This note provides a list of the signi cant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these nancial statements. These 
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

 The nancial statements of the group comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) noti ed under 
Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015  and other relevant provisions 
of the Act.

 The consolidated nancial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 16 May 2018.

2.2 Basis of measurement

 The nancial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following items, which are measured on an 
alternative basis on each reporting date.

Items Measurement basis
Derivative nancial instruments at fair value through pro t or loss Fair value
Certain non-derivative nancial instruments at fair value through pro t or loss Fair value
Equity-settled share based payment transactions rant date fair value
De ned bene t plan assets Fair value

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

 These nancial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the group’s functional currency. All amounts have been 
rounded-off to the nearest million, as per the requirements of Schedule III, unless otherwise stated.

 The preparation of the nancial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to ma e judgments, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, current assets, non-current assets, current liabilities, non-
current liabilities and disclosure of the contingent liabilities at the end of each reporting period. Actual results may differ from these 
estimates.

 Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes.

 The areas involving critical estimates and judgements are

 Estimation of current tax expense and payable  Note 26

 Estimation of de ned bene t obligation  Note 33

 Recognition of revenue  Note 29

 Recognition of deferred tax assets for carried forward tax losses  Note 26

 Impairment of trade receivables  Note 39

 Estimation and underlying assumptions are reviewed on ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are recognised prospectively.
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 The group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current classi cation.

 An asset is current when it is

 Expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

 eld primarily for the purpose of trading

 Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period  or

 Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after 
the reporting period

 All other assets are classi ed as non-current.

 A liability is current when

 It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

 It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

 It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period  or

 There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

 All other liabilities are classi ed as non-current.

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classi ed as non-current assets and liabilities.

2.6 Principles of consolidation

 The consolidated nancial statements comprise the nancial statements of the company and its subsidiaries as at 31 March 2018. 
Control is achieved when the roup is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has 
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Speci cally, the roup controls an investee if and only if the 

roup has

 Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee)

 Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee  and

 The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

 Consolidated nancial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for li e transactions and other events in 
similar circumstances. If a member of the roup uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated nancial 
statements for li e transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that group member’s 

nancial statements in preparing the consolidated nancial statements to ensure conformity with the roup’s accounting policies.

 The nancial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date as that of 
the holding company, i.e., year ended on 31 March. The subsidiaries considered in the consolidated nancial statements are 
summari ed below

 % of shareholding in equity shares

Name of the subsidiary Country of incorporation 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Praj Engineering  Infra td.
(Formerly nown as Pacecon Engineering Projects td.)

India 99.65% 99.65%

Praj Far East Co td. Thailand 100.00% 100.00%
Praj Americas Inc United States of America 100.00% 100.00%
Praj Industries Namibia Pty td. Namibia  100.00%  100.00%
Praj iPurity Systems imited India  100.00%  100.00%
(Formerly nown as Neela Systems imited)
Praj Industries (Africa) Pty. td. South Africa  100.00%  100.00%
Praj Far East Philippines Inc., Philippines 100.00% 100.00%
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 In preparing the consolidated nancial statements, the roup has used the following ey consolidation procedures

 Combine li e items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the holding company with those of its 
subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of assets and liabilities 
recognised in the consolidated nancial statements at the acquisition date.

 Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the holding company’s investment in each subsidiary and the holding company’s 
portion of equity of each subsidiary. Business combinations policy explains accounting for any related goodwill.

 Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between 
entities of the group. Pro ts or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, such as inventory 
and property, plant and equipment, are eliminated in full. owever, intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that requires 
recognition in the consolidated nancial statements. Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise 
from the elimination of pro ts and losses resulting from intragroup transactions.

 Pro t and loss and each component of other comprehensive income (‘OCI’) are attributed to the equity holders of the holding 
company of the group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a de cit 
balance.

 A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction. If the roup 
loses control over a subsidiary, it deconsolidates the subsidiary from the date it ceases control.

2.7 Business combination and goodwill

 Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate 
of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interests in the 
acquiree. For each business combination, the roup elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair 
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identi able net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

 At the acquisition date, the identi able assets acquired and the liabilities assumed (including contingent liabilities) are recognised/ 
measured at their acquisition date fair values, except for certain cases.

 oodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount recognised 
for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identi able assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If 
the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the roup re-assesses whether 
it has correctly identi ed all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure 
the amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets 
acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in in OCI and accumulated in equity as capital 
reserve.

 After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment 
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the roup’s cash-generating 
units that are expected to bene t from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are 
assigned to those units.

2.8 Property, plant and equipment

 Recognition and measurement

  Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation 
and/or accumulated impairment loss, if any. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase 
price, including import duties and other non-refundable taxes or levies and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset 
to its wor ing condition for its intended use  any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. 
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the construction of a qualifying asset are capitalised as part of the cost.

  When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items 
(major components) of property, plant and equipment.

  Property, plant and equipment under construction are disclosed as capital wor -in-progress.

  Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each reporting date are disclosed 
under ‘Other non-current assets’.
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 Subsequent costs

  The cost of replacing a part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it 
is probable that the future economic bene ts embodied within the part will flow to the group and its cost can be measured 
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant 
and equipment are recognised in the statement of pro t and loss as incurred.

 Disposal

  An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future bene ts are expected from its 
use or disposal. ains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing 
the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment, and are recognised net within other 
income/ expenses in the statement of pro t and loss.

 Depreciation

  Depreciation is calculated over the depreciable amount, which is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for 
cost, less its residual value. Depreciation is recognised in the statement of pro t and loss on a straight-line basis over the 
estimated useful lives of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment as prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies 
Act, 2013, as assessed by the management of the group based on technical evaluation. Freehold land is not depreciated.

  The property, plant and equipment acquired under nance leases is depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their 
useful lives unless it is reasonably certain that the group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term.

  The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative periods are as follows

Asset Useful life (in years)
Buildings  30-60
Plant and machinery  7.5-15
Computers and of ce equipment  3-5
Vehicles 8
Furniture and xtures 10

2.9 Intangible assets

 Recognition and measurement

  Intangible assets are recognised when the asset is identi able, is within the control of the group, it is probable that the future 
economic bene ts that are attributable to the asset will flow to the group and cost of the asset can be reliably measured.

  Expenditure on research activities is recognised in the statement of pro t and loss as incurred. Development expenditure is 
capitalised only if the expenditure can be measured reliably, the product or process is technically and commercially feasible, 
future economic bene ts are probable and the group intends to and has suf cient resources to complete development and 
to use or sell the asset.

  Intangible assets acquired by the group that have nite useful lives are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation 
and any accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets with inde nite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for 
impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level.

 Subsequent measurement

  Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic bene ts embodied in the speci c asset to 
which it relates.

 Amortisation

  Amortisation is calculated over the cost of the asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its residual value. Amortisation 
is recognised in statement of pro t and loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets from 
the date that they are available for use, since this most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future 
economic bene ts embodied in the asset.

  The estimated useful lives for current and comparative periods are as follows

Asset Useful life
Technical now-how 5 - 10 years
Software 5 years
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2.10 Investment property

 Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the group, is classi ed 
as investment property.

 Investment property is initially measured at cost, including related transaction costs. The cost of investment property includes its 
purchase price and directly attributable expenditure, if any. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset’s carrying amount 
only when it is probable that future economic bene ts associated with expenditure will flow to the group and the cost of the item 
can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.

 Subsequent to the initial recognition, investment property is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment loss, if any. Depreciation on investment property has been provided in a manner that amortises the cost of the assets 
over their estimated useful lives on straight line method as per the useful life prescribed under Schedule II to the Act. Investment 
property in the form of land is not depreciated.

 Investment property is derecognised either when it is disposed off or permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic 
bene t is expected from its disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is 
recognised in the statement pro t and loss in the period of derecognition.

 The group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset or cash generating unit (C U) may 
be impaired. If any such indication exists, the group estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. The recoverable amount is the 
higher of an asset’s or C U’s fair value less costs of disposal or its value in use. Where the carrying amount of an asset or C U 
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

 In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that 
reflects current mar et assessments of the time value of money and the ris s speci c to the asset. In determining fair value less 
costs of disposal, recent mar et transactions are considered.

 An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or C U exceeds its recoverable amount.

 Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of pro t and loss. They are allocated rst to reduce the carrying amount of any 
goodwill allocated to the C U, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the C U on a pro rata basis.

 An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For other assets, an impairment loss is reversed only to the extent 
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or 
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

2.12 Inventories

 Raw materials, components, stores and spares, wor -in-progress and nished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realisable 
value. owever, materials and other items held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the 

nished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost.

 Cost of raw materials, components, stores and spares comprises cost of purchases. Cost of wor -in-progress and nished goods 
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable and xed overhead expenditure, the latter being 
allocated based on normal operating capacity. Cost of inventories also include all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories 
to their present location and condition. Costs are assigned to individual items of inventory based on weighted average basis.

 Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the 
estimated costs necessary to ma e the sale.

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at ban s and on hand and short-term deposits with an original 
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insigni cant ris  of changes in value.

2.14 Revenue recognition

 Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic bene ts will flow to the group and the revenue can be 
reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made.

 Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts included in revenue are inclusive of 
excise duty and net of returns, trade allowances, rebates, value added taxes, goods and services tax and amounts collected on 
behalf of third parties.
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 Contract revenue

  Revenue from xed price contracts is recognised when the outcome of the contract can be estimated reliably by reference to 
the percentage of completion of the contract on the reporting date. Percentage of completion is determined as a proportion 
of costs incurred-to-date to the total estimated contract costs. In respect of process technology and design and engineering 
contracts percentage of completion is measured with reference to the milestones speci ed in the contract, which in the view 
of the management reflects the wor  performed and to the extent it is reasonably certain of recovery.

  Contract costs include costs that relate directly to the speci c contract and costs that are attributable to the contract activity 
and allocable to the contract. Costs that cannot be attributed to contract activity are expensed when incurred.

  When the nal outcome of a contract cannot be reliably estimated, contract revenue is recognised only to the extent of costs 
incurred that are expected to be recoverable. The provision for expected loss is recognised immediately when it is probable 
that the total estimated contract costs will exceed total contract revenue.

  Variations, claims and incentives are recognised as a part of contract revenue to the extent it is probable that they will result 
in revenue and are capable of being reliably measured.

  Determination of revenues under the percentage of completion method necessarily involves ma ing estimates by the group, 
some of which are of a technical nature, concerning, where relevant, the percentage of completion, costs to completion, the 
expected revenues from the project / activity and the foreseeable losses to completion.

  Execution of contracts necessarily extends beyond accounting periods. Revision in costs and revenues estimated during the 
course of the contract are reflected in the accounting period in which the facts requiring the revision become nown.

 Sale of goods and rendering of services

  Revenue from sale of goods in the course of ordinary activities is recognised when property in the goods or all signi cant 
ris s and rewards of their ownership are transferred to the customer and no signi cant uncertainty exists regarding the 
amount of the consideration that will be derived from the sale of the goods and regarding its collection.

  Revenue from services is recognised as the related services are performed.

2.15 Other income

 Interest income

  Interest income from debt instruments is recognised using effective interest rate method (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly 
discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the nancial instrument or a shorter 
period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the nancial asset or to the amortised cost of a nancial liability.

 Dividends

  Dividends are recognised in the statement of pro t and loss only when the right to receive the payment is established, it is 
probable that the economic bene ts associated with the dividend will flow to the group, and the amount can be measured 
reliably.

 

  Export bene ts in the form of Duty Draw Bac  / Focus Mar et Scheme (FMS) / Focus Product Scheme (FPS) / Merchandise 
Exports Incentive Scheme (MEIS) claims are recognised in the statement of pro t and loss on receipts basis.

2.16 Foreign currency transactions and balances

 The roup’s consolidated nancial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is also the functional currency of the holding 
company. For each entity, the roup determines the functional currency and items included in the nancial statements of each 
entity are measured using that functional currency.

 (i) Transaction and balances

  Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at exchange rates prevailing at the date of transactions. Exchange differences 
arising on foreign exchange transactions settled during the year are recognised in the statement of pro t and loss of the year.

  Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies which are outstanding, as at the reporting period are 
translated at the closing exchange rates and the resultant exchange differences are recognised in the statement of pro t and 
loss.
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  Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured in terms of historical cost are 
translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

 (ii) Group companies

  On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of the subsidiaries are translated into Indian Rupees at the rate of exchange 
prevailing at the reporting date and their statements of pro t and loss are translated at average exchange rates. Equity items, 
other than retained earnings, are translated at the spot rate in effect on each related transaction date (speci c identi cation). 
Retained earnings are translated at the weighted average exchange rate for the relevant year.

  The exchange differences arising on translation for consolidation are recognised in other comprehensive income.

 

  Employee bene ts payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classi ed as short-term employee 
bene ts and are recognised in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

 

  

  Contributions to the provident fund and superannuation fund, which are de ned contribution schemes, are recognised as an 
employee bene t expense in the statement of pro t and loss in the period in which the contribution is due.

  

  The employees’ gratuity scheme is a de ned bene t plan. The present value of the obligation under such de ned bene t 
plans is determined based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method, which recognises each period of 
service as giving rise to additional unit of employee bene t entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the 

nal obligation.

  The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for determining 
the present value of the obligation under de ned bene t plans, is based on the mar et yields on government securities as at 
the reporting date, having maturity periods approximating to the terms of related obligations.

  Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net 
interest on the net de ned bene t liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the 
net de ned bene t liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained 
earnings through other comprehensive income (OCI) in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassi ed 
to the statement of pro t and loss in subsequent periods.

  In case of funded plans, the fair value of the plan’s assets is reduced from the gross obligation under the de ned bene t 
plans, to recognise the obligation on net basis.

  When the bene ts of the plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in bene ts that relates to past 
service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in the statement of pro t and loss. Net interest is 
calculated by applying the discount rate to the net de ned bene t liability or asset. The group recognises gains / losses on 
settlement of a de ned plan when the settlement occurs.

  

  The liabilities for earned leave are not expected to be settled wholly within twelve months after the end of the reporting 
period in which the employees render the related service. They are therefore measured as the present value of expected 
future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the 
projected unit credit method as determined by actuarial valuation. The bene ts are discounted using the mar et yields at 
the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements as a 
result of experience adjustments and change in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the statement of pro t and loss. 
The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to 
defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected 
to occur.
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  Termination bene ts are expensed at the earlier of when the group can no longer withdraw the offer of those bene ts and 
when the group recognises costs for a restructuring. If bene ts are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months of the 
reporting date, then they are discounted.

2.18 Share-based payments

 The grant fair value of equity settled share based payment awards granted to employees is recognised as employee bene t expense 
with corresponding increase in equity. The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of 
the speci ed vesting conditions are required to be satis ed. At the end of each reporting period, the group revises its estimates of 
the number of options that are expected to vest based on the service and non-vesting conditions. It recognises the impact of the 
revision to original estimates, if any, in the statement of pro t and loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

2.19 Leases

 The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the 
inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if ful lment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a speci c 
asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly speci ed in an 
arrangement.

 Group as a lessee

  A lease is classi ed at the inception date as a nance lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers substantially all the 
ris s and rewards incidental to ownership to the group is classi ed as a nance lease.

  Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value of the leased asset or, if 
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. ease payments are apportioned between nance charges and 
reduction of the lease liability to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges 
are recognised in nance costs in the statement of pro t and loss.

  A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. owever, if there is no reasonable certainty that the group will 
obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the 
asset and the lease term.

  Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of pro t and loss on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term unless the payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate 
for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases or another systematic basis is available.

 Group as lessor

  eases in which the group does not transfer substantially all the ris s and rewards of ownership of an asset are classi ed 
as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant 
lease unless the payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate 
for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases or another systematic basis is available. Initial direct costs incurred in 
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the 
lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are 
earned.

  eases are classi ed as nance leases when substantially all of the ris s and rewards of ownership transfer from the group 
to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under nance leases are recorded as receivables at the group’s net investment in 
the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net 
investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

2.20 Borrowing costs

 Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost 
also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

 Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset that necessarily ta es 
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised during the period of time that is required to 
complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are 
incurred.
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2.21 Income tax

 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in the statement of pro t and loss except to the extent that 
it relates to a business combination, or items recognised directly in equity or in OCI.

 Current tax

  Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. 
The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted at the reporting date in the country 
where the group operates and generates taxable income. Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally 
enforceable right to set it off the recognised amounts and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net 
basis or simultaneously.

  Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of pro t and loss as current tax. The group recognises 
MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the group will pay normal income tax 
during the speci ed period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. The group reviews the ‘MAT 
credit entitlement’ asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the group does not have convincing 
evidence that it will pay normal tax during the speci ed period.

 Deferred tax

  Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet method on temporary differences between the tax base of assets and 
liabilities and their carrying amounts for nancial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

  Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except

   - When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that 
is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting pro t nor taxable pro t 
or loss

   - Taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

   Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any 
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable pro t will be available 
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can 
be utilised, except

   - When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an 
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither 
the accounting pro t nor taxable pro t or loss.

  The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer 
probable that suf cient taxable pro t will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised 
deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that 
future taxable pro ts will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is 
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the 
reporting date.

  Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets 
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

  Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside pro t or loss is recognised outside pro t or loss. Deferred tax items are 
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

  In the situations where the group is entitled to a tax holiday under the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India or tax laws 
prevailing in the respective tax jurisdictions where it operates, no deferred tax (asset or liability) is recognised in respect of 
temporary differences which reverse during the tax holiday period, to the extent the group’s gross total income is subject to 
the deduction during the tax holiday period. Deferred tax in respect of timing differences which reverse after the tax holiday 
period is recogni ed in the year in which the timing differences originate. owever, the group restricts recognition of deferred 
tax assets to the extent that it has become reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that suf cient future 
taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be reali ed. For recognition of deferred taxes, the 
temporary differences which originate rst are considered to reverse rst.
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2.22 Provisions and contingencies

 A provision is recognised when the group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable 
that an outflow of resources embodying economic bene ts will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be 
made of the amount of the obligation.

 When the group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement 
is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is 
presented in the statement of pro t and loss net of any reimbursement.

 If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when 
appropriate, the ris s speci c to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is 
recognised as a nance cost in the statement of pro t and loss.

 Contingent liability is disclosed in case of

- a present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle 
the obligation.

- present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible

- a possible obligation arising from past events where the probability of outflow of resources is not remote.

 Contingent asset is not recognised in the nancial statements. A contingent asset is disclosed, where an inflow of economic 
bene ts is probable.

 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

2.23 Earnings per share (EPS)

 Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the pro t for the year attributable to equity holders of the group by the weighted average number 
of equity shares outstanding during the nancial year, adjusted for bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year and 
excluding treasury shares.

 Diluted EPS adjust the gures used in the determination of basic EPS to consider

  - The after-income tax effect of interest and other nancing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and

  - The weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all 
dilutive potential equity shares.

2.24 Fair value measurement

 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between mar et 
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the 
asset or transfer the liability ta es place either

- In the principal mar et for the asset or liability, or

- In the absence of a principal mar et, in the most advantageous mar et for the asset or liability.

 The principal or the most advantageous mar et must be accessible by the group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured 
using the assumptions that mar et participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that mar et participants act 
in their economic best interest.

 A fair value measurement of a non- nancial asset considers a mar et participant’s ability to generate economic bene ts by using 
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another.

 The group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which suf cient data are available to 
measure fair value, maximi ing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimi ing the use of unobservable inputs.

 evel 1 - uoted (unadjusted) mar et prices in active mar ets for identical assets or liabilities.

 evel 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is signi cant to the fair value measurement is directly or 
indirectly observable.

 evel 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is signi cant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.
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 For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the nancial statements on a recurring basis, the group determines whether 
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is 
signi cant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

 For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the group has determined classes of assets and liabilities based on the nature, 
characteristics and ris s of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

2.25 Financial instruments

 A nancial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a nancial asset of one entity and a nancial liability or equity instrument 
of another entity.

 Financial assets

 The group classi es its nancial assets in the following measurement categories

- those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through OCI, or through pro t or loss)

- those measured at amortised cost.

 The classi cation depends on the group’s business model for managing the nancial assets and the contractual terms of cash 
flows.

 For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in the statement of pro t and loss or OCI. For investments 
in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which investment is held. For investments in equity instruments, this 
will depend on whether the group has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for equity investment 
at fair value through OCI.

 The group classi es debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.

 Measurement

 All nancial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of nancial assets not recorded at fair value through pro t 
or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the nancial asset. Transaction costs of nancial assets carried 
at fair value through pro t or loss are expensed in the statement of pro t and loss.

 Debt instruments

 Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the group’s business model for managing the asset and cash flow 
characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the group classi es its debt instruments

 Debt instruments at amortised cost

 A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are satis ed

- The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

- The contractual terms of the asset give rise on speci ed dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest 
(SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

 A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is not part of hedging relationship is 
recognised in the statement of pro t and loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these nancial 
assets is included in nance income using effective interest rate (EIR) method.

 Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

 Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the nancial assets, where the assets’ cash flows 
represent SPPI, are measured at FVTOCI. The movements in the carrying amount are recognised through OCI, except for the 
recognition of impairment gains and losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gain or losses which are recognised in the 
statement of pro t and loss. When the nancial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI 
is reclassi ed from equity to the statement of pro t and loss and recognised in other gains / losses. Interest income from these 

nancial assets is included in other income using EIR method.
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 Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at FVTP . A gain or loss on debt instrument that is 
subsequently measured at FVTP  and is not a part of hedging relationship is recognised in the statement of pro t and loss within 
other gains / losses in the period in which it arises. Interest income from these nancial assets is included in other income.

 Equity investments

 All equity investments in the scope of ‘Ind AS 109 - Financial instruments’ are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which 
are held for trading are classi ed as at FVTP . For all other equity instruments, the group may ma e an irrevocable election to 
recognise subsequent changes in the fair value in OCI. The group ma es such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The 
classi cation is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

 If the group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, 
are recogni ed in OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to the statement of pro t and loss, even on sale of equity 
instrument.

 Equity instruments included within the FVTP  category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the statement of 
pro t and loss.

 Derecognition

 The group derecognises a nancial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the nancial asset expire, or it transfers 
the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the ris s and rewards of ownership 
of the nancial asset are transferred or in which the group neither transfers nor retain substantially all of the ris s and rewards of 
ownership and it does not retain control of the nancial asset.

 

 The group applies expected credit loss (EC ) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the assets carried 
at amortised cost and FVTOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a 
signi cant increase in credit ris . Note 0 details how the group determines whether there has been a signi cant increase in credit 
ris .

 For trade receivables only, the group applies the simpli ed approach permitted by ‘Ind AS 109 - Financial instruments’, which 
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

 

 Recognition

 The group initially recognises borrowings, trade payables and related nancial liabilities on the date on which they are originated.

 All other nancial instruments (including regular-way purchases and sales of nancial assets) are recognised on the trade date, 
which is the date on which the group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

 Measurement

 Non-derivative nancial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Subsequent to initial 
recognition, these liabilities are measured at amortised cost using EIR method.

 Derecognition

 A nancial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing 
nancial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are 

substantially modi ed, such an exchange or modi cation is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition 
of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of pro t or loss.

 

 Financial assets and nancial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently 
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and 
settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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2.26 Cash dividend to equity holders

 The group recognises a liability to ma e cash distributions to equity holders when the distribution is authorised and the distribution 
is no longer at the discretion of the group. As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the 
shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

2.27 Government grant

 overnment grants are recognised at their fair value when there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and group 
will comply with all attached conditions.

 overnment grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in the statement of pro t and loss over the period necessary to 
match them with costs that they are intended to compensate and presented within other income.

 overnment grants relating to purchase of property, plant and equipment are initially recognised as deferred income at fair value 
and subsequently recognised in the statement of pro t and loss on a systematic basis over the useful life of the asset.

2.28 Recent accounting pronouncements

 Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers

 On 28 March 2018, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (the MCA) noti ed the Ind AS 115. The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 
115 is nancial period beginning on or after 1 April 2018. Ind AS 115 establishes a ve-step model that will apply to revenue earned 
from a contract with a customer (with limited exceptions), regardless of the type of revenue transaction or the industry. Extensive 
disclosures will be required, including disaggregation of total revenue  information about performance obligation  changes in 
contract asset and liability account balances between periods and ey judgments and estimates. The standard permits the use of 
either the retrospective or cumulative effect transition method. The Company is evaluating the requirements of Ind AS 115 and its 
impact on the nancial statements.

 Appendix B to Ind AS 21 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

 On 28 March 2018, the MCA noti ed the Indian Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 containing 
Appendix B to Ind AS 21. The Appendix clari es that, in determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the 
related asset, expense or income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to 
advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on which an entity initially recognises the non-monetary asset or 
non-monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, then the entity 
must determine the transaction date for each payment or receipt of advance consideration.

 Entities may apply the Appendix requirements on a fully retrospective basis. Alternatively, an entity may apply these requirements 
prospectively to all assets, expenses and income in its scope that are initially recognised on or after

 (i) The beginning of the reporting period in which the entity rst applies the Appendix, or

 (ii) The beginning of a prior reporting period presented as comparative information in the nancial statements of the reporting 
period in which the entity rst applies the Appendix.

 The Appendix is effective for annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2018. The Company is evaluating the requirements of the 
Appendix and its impact on the nancial statements.
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3 Property, plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress, investment property  and intangible assets
Details of capital work-in-progress and intangible under development
Particulars Capital wor -in-progress Intangible under development

31 March 2018 31 March 2017 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Balance at start of the year 314.564 7.638  -   0.700 
Add  Additions during the year 12.455 312.188  -    -   

ess  Capitalised during the year 285.320 5.262  -   0.700 
Balance at the end of the year 41.699 31 .56   -    -   

Capital work-in-progress (CWIP) comprises of:
a. Building INR 39.901 million (31 March 2017 INR 28.1 6 million)
b. Machinery INR 1.798 million (31 March 2017 INR 2. 18 million)
c. Integrated Bio-re nery 2nd eneration Demonstration Plant developed and constructed in house ( Demo Plant”) INR NI   

(31 March 2017 INR 28 .000 million)

Investment property: reconciliation of fair value
Particulars and
Fair value as at 31 March 2017 331.200 
Fair value difference 18.968 
Fair value as at 31 March 2018 350.168 

The Company has obtained independent valuation for its investment property from a government approved valuer who is a 
specialist in valuing these types of investment properties.

The valuation has been made with reference to the prevailing mar et rates and using the approved valuation method.

All resulting fair value estimates for investment property are considered as level 3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
4 Investments

(i) Unquoted Investments:
  Investment in Shares 0.102 0.102 
  5100 (31 March 2017  5100) shares of INR 20 each fully paid of 
  The Cosmos Co-operative Ban  imited.

0.102 0.102 
0.013 0.013 
0.115 0.115 

(ii)  Investments at amortised cost
 Quoted investments in non-convertible debentures / bonds:
 Bonds issued by DFC Ban  imited Unsecured Non-Convertible Perpetual Bonds 99.960  - 
 Series 1/2017-18, Coupon 8.85% (31 March, 2017  Nil)

99.960 -
Total non-current 100.075 0.115 

Current investments

 Quoted mutual funds
  ABS  Treasury Optimi er Plan - trly Div - Reg Pln - 670,12  Units  

(31 March 2017  1,096,960 Units) 
69.280 11 .91  

 ABS  Treasury Optimi er Plan - rowth Plan - 55,13  Units (31 March 2017  Nil Units) 100.842  - 
 ABS  Savings Fund - W ly Div - Reg Plan - 2,5 0 Units (31 March 2017  516,196 Units) 4.274 51.772 
 ABS  Savings Fund - rowth - Regular Plan - 1 6,32  Units (31 March 2017  Nil Units) 50.029  - 
 DSP FMP S 220 - 0 M - Direct W - 5,000,000 Units (31 March 2017  Nil Units) 50.586  - 
 SBC Cash Fund - Daily Dividend - 1,870 Units (31 March 2017  1,791 Units) 1.872 1.792 
 SBC FTS 128 - rowth Direct Plan - Tenure 1106 Days - 5,000,000 Units  

(31 March 2017  Nil Units)
53.163  - 

 SBC Cash Fund - rowth- 28,995 Units (31 March 2017  Nil Units) 50.032  - 
 DFC Medium Term Opportunities Fund - 2,630,250 Units (31 March 2017  Nil Units) 50.792  - 
 ICICI Prudential FMP SR 7  - 369 Days - Nil Units (31 March 2017  10,000,000 Units) - 126.521 
 ICICI Prudential Dynamic Bond Fund-Reg P-MD - 983,353 Units  

(31 March 2017  5,373,9 6 Units)
10.852 58.510 

 ICICI Prudential Short Term - Reg Plan - Fortnight - 818,283 Units  
(31 March 2017  ,658,957 Units)

10.184 57.796 

 ICICI Ban ing And PSU Debt Fund-WD - 16,652 Units (31 March 2017  5,071,037 Units) 4.295 51.978 
 ICICI Short Term- rowth Option - 1,381, 02 Units (31 March 2017  Nil Units) 50.024  - 
 ICICI Ban ing  PSU Debt Fund- rowth Option - 2,503,969 Units (31 March 2017  Nil Units) 50.024  - 
 ICICI Fixed Maturity Plan SRS 82 - 1185 Days - 5,000,000 Units (31 March 2017  Nil Units) 50.656  - 
 ICICI Fixed Maturity Plan SRS 82 - 1135 Days - 5,000,000 Units (31 March 2017  Nil Units) 50.175  - 
 ota  FMP Series 15  Direct - W - Nil Units (31 March 2017  5,000,000 Units)  - 6 . 77 
 ota  ow Duration Fund - 26,285 Units (31 March 2017  26,285 Units) 55.802 52.109 
 ota  Treasury Advantage Fund - W - 1,800,031 Units (31 March 2017  Nil Units) 50.029  - 
 T Short Term Opportunities Fund- W - 3,06 ,326 Units (31 March 2017  Nil Units) 50.914  - 
 INVESCO India Active Income Fund-DIR P - W - 2 ,863 Units (31 March 2017  Nil Units) 50.591  - 
 IDFC Dynamic Bond Fund Plan B- W - Nil Units (31 March 2017  2,871,725 Units)  - 60.166 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
 Reliance Medium Term Fund-Direct rowth Plan - 1,612,139 Units  

(31 March 2017  1,612,139 Units)
59.975 55.925 

 Reliance Fixed ori on Fund-XXXI-SR9 - 5,000,000 Units  
(31 March 2017  50,00,000 Units)  

56.178 52.5 8 

 Reliance Fixed ori on Fund-XXXV-SR1  - 5,000,000 Units (31 March 2017  Nil Units) 50.787  - 
 Reliance Money Manager Fund- rowth Plan - 20,892 Units (31 March 2017  Nil Units) 50.027  - 
 SBI Debt Fund Series - C - 8(1175 Days)-D  - 5,001,81  Units (31 March 2017  Nil Units) 50.764  - 
 INVESCO FMP SR 23 Plan  - Reg Plan rowth - Nil Units (31 March 2017  5,000,000 Units) - 63.220 
 INVESCO India Annual Interval Fund-Plan B - 5,000,000 Units (31 March 2017  5,000,000 Units) 62.227 58. 0 
 Fran lin India ow Duration Fund - Monthly Div - 2,586,973 Units  

(31 March 2017  11, 30,519 Units)
27.279 120.8 1 

 Fran lin India Ultra Short Bond Fund-W ly. Div - 2,700,301 Units  
(31 March 2017  11,960,6 9 Units)

27.325 120.990 

 Fran lin India Ultra Short Bond Fund - W - ,161,725 Units (31 March 2017  Nil Units) 100.102  - 
 Fran lin India ow Duration Fund - W - 5,006,107 Units (31 March 2017  Nil Units) 100.000  - 
 Tata Short Term Bond Fund Plan A - Fortnight - 663,6 8 Units  

(31 March 2017  3,880,396 Units) 
10.046 57. 99 

 Tata Fixed Maturity Plan SRS 53 Scheme A - 5,000,000 Units (31 March 2017  Nil Units) 50.251  - 
 Tata Ultra Short Term Fund Regular Plan - W- 18,99  Units (31 March 2017  Nil Units) 50.028  - 
 Tata Short Term Bond Fund Reg. Plan - W - 1,5 9,225 Units (31 March 2017  Nil Units) 50.024  - 
 UTI - Short Term Income Fund - Insti. Option - W - 6,120,700 Units  

(31 March 2017  6,120,700 Units) 
129.283 122.038 

 DSP Blac roc  Ban ing  PSU Debt. Fund-WD - Nil Units (31 March 2017  5,088, 57 Units)  - 51.753 
 D F  Pramerica Ultra Short Term Fund- W - 2,372, 91 Units (31 March 2017  Nil Units) 50.028  - 
  Total 1788.741 13 3.287 

(ii)  Investments at amortised cost
 Unquoted investments:
 Deposit with Bajaj Finance imited 119.850  - 
Total current 1908.591 13 3.287 
Aggregate boo  value of quoted investments 1888.701 13 3.287 
Aggregate mar et value of quoted investments 1889.351 13 3.287 
Aggregate boo  value of unquoted investments 119.965 0.115 

5 Loans
Non-current
 Security deposits
 Unsecured considered good 72.117 61. 93 

72.117 61. 93 
Current
 Security deposits 
 Unsecured considered good 0.706 0.179 

0.706 0.179 
72.823 61.672 

No loans are due from directors or other of cers of the Company either severally or jointly 
with any other person. Nor any loans are due from rms or private companies respectively 
in which any director is a partner, a director or a member. 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
6

Non-current
 Deposits with ban s with an original maturity of more than 12 months 70.245 232.515 

70.245 232.515 
Current
 Foreign exchange forward contracts 1.205 20.601 
 Interest accrued on xed deposits and bonds 14.674 12. 0  

15.879 33.005 
86.124 265.520 

7 Other assets
Non-current
 Capital advances 7.844 88.917 
 Balances with central excise, customs and Value added tax authorities 105.293 95.76  
 Prepaid expenses 3.294 3.300 

116.431 187.981 
Current
 Contracts in progress (Refer note 29) 1208.590 1637.052 
 Advances to suppliers 155.658 155.366 
 Balances with central excise, customs and Value added tax authorities 188.915 229.189 
 Prepaid expenses 56.552 65.783 
 Amounts receivable in cash or ind 94.609 76.262 

1704.324 2163.652 
Total Other assets 1820.755 2351.633 

8 Inventories (valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)
Raw materials 502.778 759.382 
Wor  in progress 255.751 189.037 
Finished goods 49.324 96.835 

807.853 10 5.25  
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
9 Trade receivables

Current
Unsecured, considered good 2625.014 29 8.786 
Unsecured, considered doubtful 749.526 638.638 

3374.540 3587. 2  
ess  Impairment allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts) 749.526 638.638 

2625.014 29 8.786 

No trade receivables are due from directors or other of cers of the Company either severally 
or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade receivables are due from rms or private 
companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member. Trade 
receivables are non-interest bearing and generally on credit terms of 3 to 6 months

10 Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with ban s
 On current accounts 347.945 303. 01 
 Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months 421.967 365.918 
Cheques, drafts on hand 0.857 20.671 
Cash on hand 1.481 1.8 2 

772.250 691.832 

11 Other bank balances
Unclaimed dividend account 10.359 8.828 
Deposits with maturity for more than 3 months but less than 12 months 19.910 35.000 

30.269 3.828 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
12 Equity share capital

Authorised shares
50,000,000 (31 March 2017  50,000,000) equity shares of INR 2 each 900.000 900.000 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares 
180,932, 15 (31 March 2017  179, ,188) equity shares of INR 2 each 361.865 358.888 
Total 361.865 358.888 

a. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of 
the reporting period:

No. Amount No. Amount
At the beginning of the period 179,444,188 358.888  177,972, 09 355.9 5 
Add  Allotted during the period pursuant to exercise of employees stoc  
options (Refer note 3 )

 1,488,227 2.977  1, 71,779 2.9 3 

Outstanding at the end of the period 180,932,415 361.865  179, ,188 358.888 

b. Terms/ Rights attached to equity shares:
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of INR 2 per share. Each holder of the equity shares is entitled 
to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors 
is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual eneral Meeting.
The Board of Directors proposed a nal dividend of INR 1.62 per equity share for the nancial year ended 31 March 2017 and the 
same was approved by the shareholders at the Annual eneral Meeting held on 11 August 2017.  The amount was recognised as 
distributions to equity shareholders during the year ended 31 March 2018.
The Board of Directors proposed a nal dividend of INR 1.62 per equity share for the nancial year ended 31 March 2018. The 
proposal is subject to the approval of shareholders at the Annual eneral Meeting to be held and if approved, will be recognised 
as distributions to equity shareholders during the year ended 31 March 2019. This event is considered as non-adjusting event.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company 
after distributing all preferential amounts.

c. Shares held by holding/ultimate holding company and/or their subsidiaries/associates:
The company does not have any holding or ultimate holding company.

d. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company: 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Equity shares of INR. 2 each fully paid No. % of holding No. % of holding
Pramod Chaudhari (Promoter)  38,700,000 21.39%  38,700,000 21.57%
Parimal Chaudhari (Promoter)  21,600,000 11.94%  21,600,000 12.0 %

DFC Trustee Company imited - DFC Equity Fund  15,971,366 8.83%  15,971,366 8.90%
Tata Capital Financial Services imited  13,422,400 7.42%  13, 22, 00 7. 8%
Sundaram Mutual Fund - Sundaram Smile Fund  10,773,840 5.95%  - -

e. Shares reserved for issue under options:
Shares reserved for issue under the Employee Stoc  Option Plan (ESOP) please refer note 3 .

f. Aggregate number of bonus shares issued, shares issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought back during the 

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Shares bought bac  by the Company in 2012-13  -  2,083,013 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
13 Other Equity

Capital Reserve 0.033 0.033 
Amalgamation Reserve 3.063 3.063 
Capital Redemption Reserve 14.627 1 .627 

Securities Premium
Balance as at the beginning of the year 710.312 605.606 
Add  Employee stoc  options exercised 82.328 86.078 
Add  Transfer from Share option outstanding account on exercise of options 22.761 18.628 
Balance at the end of the year 815.401 710.312 

Share option outstanding account
Balance as at the beginning of the year 38.115 58.737 
Add  Employee stoc  option expense 27.317 1 .829 

ess  Employee stoc  options expired and transferred to surplus in statement of pro t and loss 1.717 16.823 
ess  Transfer to Securities Premium on exercise of options 22.761 18.628 

Balance at the end of the year 40.954 38.115 

Special Economic Zone Re-investment Reserve
Balance as at the beginning of the year - -
Add  Transfer from Surplus in the Statement of Pro t and oss 71.548 -
Balance at the end of the year 71.548 -

General Reserve
Balance as at the beginning of the year 958.500 958.500 
Add  amounts transferred from surplus balance in statement of pro t and loss  -  - 
Balance at the end of the year 958.500 958.500 

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
Balance at the beginning of the year 16.159 23.508 
Add  due to transactions during the year 0.443 (7.3 9)
Balance at the end of the year 16.602 16.159 

Balance as at the beginning of the year 4996.644 532.828 
Pro t as per statement of pro t and loss 394.909 6.028 
Other comprehensive income 7.574 0.965 
Add  Employee stoc  options expired and transferred from share option outstanding account 1.717 16.823 

ess  Appropriations
 Final equity dividend 291.242  - 
 Tax on nal equity dividend 59.290  - 
 Transfer to Special Economic Zone Re-investment Reserve 71.548  - 
Net Surplus in Statement of Pro t and oss 4978.764 996.6  
Total Other Equity 6899.492 6737. 53 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
14 Borrowings

Non-current
Unsecured loan
Non-current government loan 0.820 1.229 

ess  Current maturities of non-current borrowings disclosed under the head ‘other nancial  
liabilities - current’ (Refer note 17)

0.410 0. 10 

0.410 0.819 
oan received from Department of Biotechnology (DBT) carrying interest at the rate of 2%. 

(Refer note 17)
Repayment schedule is as below
i. Repayable within 1 to 2 years 0.410 0. 10 
ii. Repayable within 2 to 3 years 0.410 0. 10 
iii. Repayable after 3 years  -  - 
Current
Secured loans -Loans payable on demand
(i)  Cash Credit Loan 28.478  - 
 Non-current  -  - 
 Current 28.478  - 
(ii)  PCFC /PSFC Loan 14.310 19. 52 
 Non-current  -  - 
 Current 14.310 19. 52 
(iii)  Buyers Credit Loan 16.630 23.1 0 
 Non-current  -  - 
 Current 16.630 23.1 0 

59.418 2.592 
Total Borrowings 59.828 3. 11 

15 Provisions

 Compensated absences 66.672 61.0 5 
 ratuity 92.515 96.722 

159.187 157.767 
Current

 Compensated absences 29.024 29.873 
 ratuity 18.137 16.3  
 Performance Incentive 37.975 132.337 

85.136 178.55  
Total provision 244.323 336.321 

16 Trade Payables
Current
-To related parties  - 0.027 
-To others
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer note ii below) 120.208 205.672 
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 1643.441 1928.699 

1763.649 213 .398 
Notes:
i.  Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30-90 days terms
ii.  No interest is due/payable to parties under MSMED Act, 2006

17
Current
 Current maturities of long term borrowings 0.410 0. 10 
 Unclaimed dividends 10.279 8.7 8 
 Employee bene ts payable 76.598 5.000 
 Other payables 38.210 10.320 

125.497 6 . 78 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
18 Other Liabilities

Current
 Advances received from customers 1443.914 1803.661 
 Dues to customers relating to contracts in progress (Refer note 29) 394.494 352.608 
 Statutory dues payable 33.050 0.078 

1871.458 2196.3 7 

19 Revenue from operations
8497.377 7 21.701 

 Add  Closing contracts in progress 859.776 1313.122 
 ess  Opening contracts in progress 1313.122 278.95  

8044.031 8 55.869 
Sale of Services                                                                                                        1052.868 100 .828 
 Add  Closing contracts in progress (45.680) (28.678)
 ess  Opening contracts in progress (28.678) (23.565)

1035.866 999.715 
Other Operating revenue
 Scrap Sales 130.748 96.0 0 
 Sale of icenses 23.923  - 

154.671 96.0 0 
Total Revenue from operations 9234.568 9551.62  

20 Other Income
Foreign exchange fluctuation gain (net) 95.075 5.375 
Dividend from mutual fund investments current investment 30.443 3.37  

ain on redemption of mutual fund investments (net)-current investment 73.739 8.586 
Investment In mutual fund fair valuation gain/(loss) (34.288) 56.080 
Interest
- on xed deposits 27.439 29.576 
- others 8.550 . 16 
( oss) / pro t on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) (0.812) (0.021)
Excess provision / creditors written bac  (including advances) 3.229 25. 53 
Other non-operating income 63.874 9.9 2 

267.249 222.781 

21 Cost of materials consumed
Raw material consumed 4712.004 770.073 

4712.004 770.073 

22 (Increase) / Decrease in inventories of Finished Goods, Work in Progress
Inventories at the end of the year
Wor  in progress 255.751 189.037 
Finished goods 49.324 96.835 

305.075 285.872 
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Wor  in progress 189.037 135.890 
Finished goods 96.835 51.317 

285.872 187.207 
(Increase) / Decrease in inventories (19.203) (98.665)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
23

Salaries, wages and bonus 1342.011 13 .721 
Contributions to provident and other funds (Refer note 33 a) 52.197 5.929 

ratuity Expense (Refer note 33 b) 17.663 17. 06 
Employee stoc  option expense 27.318 1 .828 
Staff welfare 55.462 57. 7  

1494.651 1 80.358 

24 Finance costs
Interest expense 3.943 5.56  
Net interest cost on net de ned bene t obligations (Refer note 33b) 7.477 7.51  

11.420 13.078 

25 Other Expenses
Consumption of stores and spares 119.528 129.326 
Site expenses and labour charges 874.721 825.905 
Freight and transport 263.370 19 .9 2 
Bad debts written off / Provision for doubtful debts and advances 136.263 109. 28 
Sales commission 75.385 5.950 
Travel and conveyance 211.166 253.6  
Professional consultancy charges 186.393 166.829 
Insurance 39.348 39.877 
Rent (Refer note 32) 81.858 78.116 
Power and fuel 64.129 55.366 
Advertising and exhibition expenses 23.549 2 .739 
Communication expenses 23.134 27.660 
Testing charges 23.412 23.210 
Repairs and maintenance
 Building 2.679 .387 
     Plant and Machinery 22.834 19.928 
    Others 18.930 18.669 
Auditors’ remuneration
 for audit services 4.690 5.297 
 for taxation services 1.400 1. 31 
 out of poc et expenses 0.099 0.076 
Rates and taxes 3.890 .131 
Provision for diminution in value of investment / oss on sale of shares 0.237  - 
Miscellaneous expenses 286.176 282. 2 

2463.191 2311.353 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
26 Income tax

A
Current income tax:
Current income tax charge 154.919 180.8 1 
Tax relating to earlier periods 0.248 0.867 

Deferred tax:
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (19.919) 7.5 6 
Income tax expense reported in the statement of pro t and loss 135.248 229.25  

B Statement of other comprehensive income:
Deferred tax:
Remeasurements gains and losses on post employment bene ts (3.984) (0.508)
Income tax expense reported in the statement of other comprehensive income (3.984) (0.508)

C Reconciliation of effective tax rate
530.125 675.253 

Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate (34.608%) 183.466 233.692 

Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous years 0.248 0.867 
Deferred tax effects on earlier year (4.095)  - 

ess  Tax effect of
Tax rate difference on boo  pro t as per  Minimum Alternate Tax (64.801) (8 .3 )
Tax effect on exempt income dividend (10.536) (15.008)

Add: Tax effect of
Tax liability on IND AS adjustment to Retained earnings 1.752 1.752 
Tax liability on permanent Difference 1 A Disallowance 1.800 1.557 
Effect on deduction claimed in MAT for Doubtful debt provision written bac 36.424 (2. 30)
Deferred Tax expenses accounted as no effect of Timing differences on MAT liability (20.149) 66.011 
Non-deductible expenses 0.568  - 
Change in tax rate from 30.90% to 26% 2.984  - 
Deferred tax asset not created on tax losses of subsidiaries (including difference in 
overseas tax rates)

4.107 26.008 

Others 3.480 1.1 9 

Total 135.248 229.25  
135.248 229.25  
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

D Deferred tax

Deferred tax relates to the following: Deferred tax asset/ 
(liability)

Balance sheet
other comprehensive income

31 March 2018 31 March 2017 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Deferred tax asset
Provision for doubtful debts and advances 241.963 20 .961 (37.002) 1.169 

ratuity 38.639 39.100 0.461 (1.711)
ong term capital losses 27.125 27.939 0.814 -

Carry forward business loss 4.614 25.8 5 21.231 (25.8 5)
Compensated absences 33.449 31.5  (1.905) (2.217)
Percentage of completion on consolidated basis 8.402 1 .222 5.820 (11.271)
Others 10.222 9.786 (0.436) 1.355 
Total 364.414 353.397 (11.017) (38.520)
Deferred tax liability
Property, plant  equipment and intangible assets (320.293) (32 .597) (4.304) 86.907 
Amortisation of prepaid lease rentals / others (2.809) (3.003) (0.194) (0.333)
Total (323.102) (327.600) (4.498) 86.57  
Net deferred tax asset / (liability) 41.312 25.797 
Deferred tax expense/(income) (15.515) 8.05  
- Recognised in the statement of pro t and loss (19.919) 7.5 6 
-  Recognised in the statement of other comprehensive 

income
3.984 0.508 

27 Earnings per share
Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Reconciliation of basic and diluted shares used in computing earnings per share
Weighted average number of basic equity shares  179,976,373  178, 70,172 
Add  effect of dilutive potential equity shares
- Employee stoc  options  776,034  706, 77 
Weighted average number of diluted equity shares 180,752,407 179,176,6 9
Computation of basic and diluted earnings per share
Net pro t after tax attributable to equity shareholders 394.909 6.028 
Basic earnings per equity share of INR 2 each  2.19  2.50 
Diluted earnings per equity share of INR 2 each  2.18  2. 9 

28 Capital commitments and contingent liabilities
Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Capital commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not 
provided for (net of advances)

1.880 51.189 

Contingent liabilities
Claims against Company not ac nowledged as debts (primarily relating to performance 
related claims led by customers)

44.469 60.731 

Disputed demands in appeal towards income tax, service tax   sales tax 211.625 210.79  
uarantee issued in respect of obligations of a subsidiary 929.165 703.650 
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29 Disclosures pursuant to Ind AS 11 – Construction contracts
Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Contract revenue recognised during the year (excluding taxes) 6715.937 7131.105 
Aggregate amount of contract costs incurred and recognised pro ts (less recognised losses) 13284.574 12296.637 
Customer advances outstanding for contracts in progress 1062.142 1 6.575 
Retention money due from customers for contracts in progress 650.594 665.969 

ross amount due from customers for contract wor  (presented as contracts in progress) 1208.590 1637.052 
ross amount due to customers for contract wor  (presented as dues to customers relating 

to contracts in progress)
(394.494) (352.607)

30 Segment reporting
The business activities of the Company from which it earns revenues and incurs expenses  whose operating results are regularly 
reviewed by the chief operating decision ma er to ma e decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its 
performance, and for which discrete nancial information is available involve predominantly one operating segment i.e. process 
and project engineering.

31 Related party transactions
a)  Key management personnel and their close members of family 
 Executive Chairman Mr. Pramod Chaudhari
 Chief Financial Of cer  Director - Finance  Commercial Mr. Sachin Raole
 Chief Internal Auditor  Company Secretary Mr. Dattatraya Nimbol ar
 Non-Executive Directors Mr. Berjis Desai

Mr. Daljit Mirchandani
Mr. ishor Chau ar (Upto 11 August 2017)
Mrs. Parimal Chaudhari
Mr. Pra ash ul arni (Upto 11 August 2017)
Mr. Rajiv Maliwal
Mr. Sivarama rishnan S. Iyer
Mrs. Mrunalini Joshi (w.e.f 11 August 2017)

 Close members of family of ey management personnel Mrs. Parimal Chaudhari (Director)
Mr. Parth Chaudhari

 Praj Foundation
 Plutus Properties P
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c) Transactions and balances with related parties have been set out below:
Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Donation paid 15.773 18.531 

Plutus Properties LLP
Rent 3.063 1.250 

Pramod Chaudhari
Short term employee bene ts 43.175 9.280 
Post employment bene ts 4.392 .392 
Other long term employee bene ts 1.500 1.500 
Dividend 62.694  - 
Payable 10.240 0.100 

Short term employee bene ts  - 18.121 
Post employment bene ts  - 0.6 6 
Payable  - 0.100 

Sachin Raole
Short term employee bene ts 6.220 2.668 
Post employment bene ts 0.366 0.185 
Other long term employee bene t 0.226 0.166 
Share based payment 2.213 1.352 
Payable 1.291 0.655 

Dattatraya Nimbolkar
Short term employee bene ts 5.842 6.91  
Post employment bene ts 0.306 0.382 
Other long term employee bene t (0.025) 0.181 
Share based payment 0.605 0.355 
Payable 1.012 1. 0 

Parimal Chaudhari
Commission on pro t 1.000 1.000 
Dividend 34.992  - 
Payable 1.000 1.000 

Parth Chaudhari
Remuneration 2.916 2.700 
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32 Leases
The Company has entered into operating lease arrangements for of ce space, equipment and residential premises for its 
employees. Certain lease arrangements provide for cancellation by either party and also contain a clause for renewal of the lease 
agreement.  ease payments on cancellable and non-cancellable operating lease arrangements debited to the statement of pro t 
and loss and the future minimum lease payments in respect of non-cancellable operating leases are summarised below

Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Future minimum lease payments in respect of non-cancellable leases
-  amount due within one year from the balance sheet date 57.427 62.956 
-  amount due in the period between one year and ve years 225.568 201. 96 
-  amount due after ve years 82.455 126.357 

-  cancellable leases 22.084 11.897 
-  non-cancellable leases 59.773 66.218 

33
a)

The Company has recognised INR 52.197  (31 March 2017  INR 5.929) towards post-employment de ned contribution 
plans comprising of provident and superannuation fund in the statement of pro t and loss.

b)
In accordance with the Payment of ratuity Act, 1972, the Company is required to provide post-employment bene t to 
its employees in the form of gratuity. The Company has maintained a fund with the ife Insurance Corporation of India to 
meet its gratuity obligations.  In accordance with the Standard, the disclosures relating to the Company’s gratuity plan are 
provided below

thereof are as follows:
Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the period 207.656 187.705 
Interest cost 14.500 13.920 
Past service cost 0.420 -
Current service cost 17.295 18.027 
Bene ts paid (7.440) (10.090)
Remeasurements on obligation - (gain) / loss (9.890) (1.906)
Present value of obligation as at the end of the period 222.541 207.656 

The changes in the fair value of planned assets representing reconciliation of opening and closing balances thereof are as 
follows:
Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the period 94.591 79.386 
Interest income 7.023 6. 07 
Contributions 9.109 9.697 
Bene ts paid 0.999 (0.351)
Mortality Charges and Taxes (0.121) (0.115)
Return on plan assets, excluding amount recogni ed in interest income - gain / (loss) 0.001 (0. 33)
Adjustment entry 0.535 -
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the period 112.137 9 .591 
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Amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:
Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Present value of obligation as at the end of the period 222.541 207.656 
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the period 112.137 9 .591 

(110.404) (113.066)

Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Current service cost* 17.295 18.027 
Past service cost 0.420  - 
Net interest (income) / expense 7.477 7.51  

the period
25.192 25.5 2 

* INR 0.051 (31 March 2017  INR  0.621) capitalised during the year in Bio-re nery 2nd eneration Demonstration Plant.

Amounts recognised in the statement of other comprehensive income (OCI) are as follows:
Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Remeasurement for the year - obligation (gain) / loss (9.890) (1.906)
Remeasurement for the year - plan assets (gain) / loss (1.668) 0. 33 
Total remeasurements cost / (credit) for the year (11.558) (1. 73)

Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Interest (income) / expense - obligation 14.500 13.920 
Interest (income) / expense - plan assets (7.023) (6. 07)
Net interest (income) / expense for the year 7.477 7.513 

The broad categories of plan assets as a percentage of total plan assets are as follows:
Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Funds managed by insurer 100% 100%
Total 100% 100%

Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Discount rate 7.50%-7.80% 7.10%-7.30%
Rate of increase in compensation levels 5%-8% 5%-8%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 7.1%-7.30% 7.6% - 8.10%
Expected average remaining wor ing lives of employees (in years)         9.78-16.46 9.89 -16.8
Withdrawal rate
 Age upto 30 years 2% - 7% 2% - 7%
 Age 31 - 0 years 2% - 7% 2% - 7%
 Age 1 - 50 years 2% - 7% 2% - 7%
 Age above 50 years 2% - 7% 2% - 7%

Sensitivity analysis indicates the influence of a reasonable change in certain signi cant assumptions on the outcome of 
the present value of obligation. Sensitivity analysis is done by varying (increasing/ decreasing) one parameter by 100 basis 
points (1%).  
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a)  Impact of change in discount rate when base assumption is decreased / increased by 100 basis point
Discount rate Present value of obligation

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Decrease by 1% 234.669 219. 38 
Increase by 1% 211.886 197.338 

b)  Impact of change in salary increase rate when base assumption is decreased / increased by 100 basis point
Salary increment rate Present value of obligation

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Decrease by 1% 213.117 198.623 
Increase by 1% 233.034 217.683 

c)  Impact of change in withdrawal rate when base assumption is decreased / increased by 100 basis point
Withdrawal rate Present value of obligation

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Decrease by 1% 222.410 207.816 
Increase by 1% 222.654 207.507 

34 Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP)
In the meeting of the Compensation and Share Allotment Committee held on 16th November, 2010 it was decided to utilise the 
surrendered and lapsed options out of earlier grant and 1,250,000 options (Plan A) were granted to CEO  MD with vesting period 
of 5 years in terms of his appointment at the relevant mar et price as rant IV.

In the Annual eneral Meeting of the Company held on 22 July 2011, total of 9,238,936 stoc  options were approved under the 
scheme Employee Stoc  Option Plan 2011”. In the Meeting of the Compensation and Share Allotment Committee held on 27 
January 2015 it was decided to grant options to CEO  MD and senior executives of the Company at the relevant mar et price as 
ESOP 2011  rant I. The total options granted under ESOP 2011 - rant I are 3,750,000 options out of which 250,000 options 
(Plan A) were granted to CEO  MD and 3,500,000 options (Plan B) were granted to senior executives of the Company.

During the year 2015-16 390,000 options were granted to senior executives of the Company as ESOP 2011  rant II to V. During 
the year 2016-17 100,000 options were granted to senior executive of the Company as ESOP 2011  rant VI.  During the year 
2017-18 1,969,700 options were granted to certain employees of the Company as ESOP 2011  rant VII. The stoc  options vest 
in a graded manner equally over the period of vesting, each vesting ta ing effect as per the terms of the grant. The stoc  options 
granted are exercisable at 100% of the fair mar et value of the underlying equity shares of the Company as on the date of grant.

Amount of employee compensation expense recognised for employee services received during the year:
Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Expense arising from equity-settled share-based payment transactions 27.318 1 .828

There were no cancellations or modi cations to the awards in 31 March 2018 or 31 March 2017.
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Movements during the year
I.  ESOP 2005 Grant IV (Plan A)
Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Options Weighted 
average exercise 

price INR

Options Weighted 
average exercise 

price INR
Options outstanding at the beginning of the year  -  -  820,000  72.70 
Options granted during the year  -  -  -  NA 
Options exercised during the year  -  -  ( 11,179)  72.70 
Options cancelled during the year  -  -  ( 08,821)  72.70 
Options outstanding at the end of the year  -  -  -  - 
Options exercisable at the end of the year  -  -  -  - 
Range of exercise price of options outstanding at the 
end of the year

 NA  NA 

Average share price during the year  INR 84.95  INR 8 .95 
Weighted average remaining contractual life of 
options outstanding at the end of the year

 NA  NA 

Weighted average fair value of option as on date of grant 16 Nov 2010  38.19 16 Nov 2010 38.19

II.  ESOP 2011 Grant I to VI
Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Options Weighted 
average exercise 

price INR

Options Weighted 
average exercise 

price INR
Number of options outstanding at the beginning of 
the year

 2,502,060  61.06  3,767,670  58. 9 

Number of options granted during the year  1,969,700  50.00  100,000  85.25 
Number of options exercised during the year  (1,488,227)  57.32  (1,060,600)  55.75 
Number of options forfeited during the year  (98,000)  76.46  (305,010)  55.75 
Number of options outstanding at the end of the year  2,885,533  54.91  2,502,060  61.06 
Number of options exercisable at the end of the year  890,493  64.60  1,230,195  59.90 
Range of exercise price of options outstanding at the 
end of the year

INR 50.00 to 
114.32

INR 55.75 to 
11 .32

Average share price during the year  INR 85.16  INR 8 .95 
Weighted average remaining contractual life of 
options outstanding at the end of the year

 1.15 years 1.32 years

Weighted average fair value of option as on date of 
grant (granted during the year)

27-Sep-2017  24.18 22-Jul-2016  27.75 

Method used for calculating fair value of option – Black Scholes Option Valuation Model

Particulars FY 2017-18
rant date 27 Sept 2017

Ris -free interest rate 6. 5%
Expected life 1.5 years
Expected volatility* 3.01%
Expected dividend yield 2.96%
Price of the underlying share in mar et at the time of grant of option (INR)  68.50 
* Expected volatility has been determined based on closing price of the share of the Company over a period of 1.5 years
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35 Expenditure on research & development activities
Revenue expenditure on research and development is charged under respective heads of account in the year in which it is 
incurred. Capital expenditure on research and development is included as part of property, plant and equipment and depreciated 
on the same basis as other property, plant and equipment.

Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Capital expenditure (Including capital wor -in-progress and excluding advances) 59.355 289. 97 
Revenue expenditure 151.748 9 .552 

36 Taxes
The company has not recognised MAT credit entitlement to the extent of INR 29 .1 3  till 31st March, 2018 in respect of Income 
Tax paid in view of uncertainty of its utilisation for payment of tax in foreseeable future.

37 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) expenditure
During the year, the Company has incurred CSR expenses of INR 16.773 as follows
Amount spent on Amounts paid Yet to be paid Total
Construction/acquisition of asset Nil Nil Nil
On other purposes covered under Schedule VII to Companies Act, 2013 16.773* Nil 16.773*
*Includes INR 15.773 given to Praj Foundation which is a related party.
The above expenditure includes contribution/donation of INR 16.773 to trusts / institute which are engaged in activities eligible 
under section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule VII thereto.

38 Fair value measurements
As per assessments made by the management, fair values of all nancial instruments carried at amortised cost (except as 
speci ed below) are not materially different from their carrying amounts since they are either short term nature or the interest 
rates applicable are equal to the current mar et rate of interest. The Company has performed a fair valuation of its investment in 
mutual funds which are classi ed as FVTP  using quoted prices.

Sr. 
No.

Particulars Carrying value 
 31 March 2018  31 March 2017

Financial asset
Levelled at level 2

a) Carried at amortised cost 
Investment in Shares 0.102 0.102 
Investment in quoted perpetual bonds* 99.960  - 
Investment in deposits 119.850  - 
Investment in National saving certi cate 0.013 0.013 
Security deposits 72.823 61.672 
Trade receivable 2625.014 29 8.785 
Deposits with ban s 70.245 232.515 
Other receivables 14.674 12. 0  
Cash and cash equivalents  Other ban  balances 802.519 735.660 

b)
Foreign exchange forward contracts 1.205 20.601 
Levelled at level 1

i) Investments in mutual funds 1788.741 13 3.287 
Levelled at level 2
Financial liabilities  -  - 

ii) Carried at amortised cost
Borrowings 60.238 3.821 
Trade payables 1763.649 213 .398 
Unclaimed dividends 10.279 8.7 8 
Financial guarantee contracts  -  - 
Other payables 114.808 55.320 

* Fair value of investment in quoted perpetual bonds 100.610  - 
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39
Company’s principal nancial liabilities, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, and nancial 
guarantee contracts. The main purpose of these nancial liabilities is to nance company’s operations and to provide 
guarantees to support its operations.  Company’s principal nancial assets include advances to subsidiaries,  trade 
and other receivables, security deposits and cash and cash equivalents,  that derive directly from its operations.  
In order to minimise any adverse effects on the nancial performance of the company, it has ta en various measures. This note 
explains the source of ris  which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the ris  and impact of the same in the 

nancial statements. 
Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management 
Credit Cash and cash equivalents, trade 

receivables, nancial assets 
measured at amortised cost.

Aging analysis, external credit 
rating (wherever available)

Diversi cation of ban  deposits, 
credit limits and letters of credit

iquidity ris Borrowings and other liabilities Rolling cash flow forecasts Availability of committed credit lines 
and borrowing facilities

Mar et ris - Foreign 
Currency Ris

Recognised nancial assets and 
liabilities not denominated in 
Indian rupee (INR)

Sensitivity Analysis Management follows established 
ris  management policies, including 
use of derivatives li e foreign 
exchange forward contracts, where 
the economic conditions match the 
company’s policy.  

The company’s ris  management is carried out by management, under policies approved by the board of directors. Company’s 
treasury identi es, evaluates and hedges nancial ris s in close co operation with the company’s operating units. The board 
provides written principles for overall ris  management, as well as policies covering speci c areas, such as foreign exchange ris , 
credit ris , and investment of excess liquidity.
(A)  Credit risk 
 Credit ris  in case of the Company arises from cash and cash equivalents, deposits with ban s and nancial institutions, 

as well as credit exposures to  customers including outstanding receivables.
 Credit risk management
 Credit ris  arises from the possibility that counter party may not be able to settle their obligations as agreed. To manage this, 

the Company periodically assesses the reliability of customers, ta ing into account the nancial condition, current economic 
trends, and analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of accounts receivable. Individual ris  limits are set accordingly. 
The company considers the probability of default upon intial recognition of asset and whether there has been a signi cant 
increase in credit ris  on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. To assess whether there is a signi cant increase in 
credit ris  the company compares the ris  of a default occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with the ris  of default as 
at the date of initial recognition. It considers reasonable and supportive forward loo ing information such as

 (i) Actual or expected signi cant adverse changes in business,
 (ii) Actual or expected signi cant changes in the operating results of the counterparty,
 (iii) Financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause a signi cant change to counterparty’s ability to meet its 

obligations,
 (iv) Signi cant increases in credit ris  on other nancial instruments of the same counterparty,
 (v) Signi cant changes in the value of collateral supporting the obligation or in the quality of third-party guarantees or 

credit enhancements.
 The company provides for expected credit loss in case of trade receivables, claims receivable and security deposits when 

there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor declaring ban ruptcy or failing to engage in a repayment 
plan with the company. The company categorises a receivable for provision for doubtful debts/write off when a debtor fails 
to ma e contractual payments greater than 180 days past due. The amount of provision depends on certain parameters 
set by the Company in its provisioning policy Where loans or receivables have been written off, the company continues to 
engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable due. Where recoveries are made, these are recognised 
in pro t or loss. 
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Provision for expected credit loss
Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using 180 days Expected Credit osses (EC )
Exposure to risk 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Trade receivables 3374.540 3587. 2  

ess  expected loss 749.526 638.638 
2625.014 29 8.786 

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Trade receivables
Neither past due nor impaired 1447.460 1553.306 

ess than 180 days 764.399 989.155 
181 - 365 days 152.374 113.508 
More than 365 days 260.781 292.817 
Total 2625.014 29 8.786 

Reconciliation of loss provision 
Trade receivables 

oss allowance as at 31 March 2017 638.638 
Changes in loss allowance 110.888 

oss allowance as at 31 March 2018 749.526 

B) Liquidity risk 
Prudent liquidity ris  management implies maintaining suf cient cash and the availability of funding through an adequate 
amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due and to close out mar et positions. Due to the dynamic 
nature of the underlying businesses, company maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed 
credit lines.
Management monitors rolling forecasts of the company’s liquidity position (comprising the undrawn borrowing facilities 
below) and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. This is carried out in accordance with practice 
and limits set by the group. In addition, the company’s liquidity management policy involves projecting cash flows and 
considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet these, monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against internal 
and external regulatory requirements and maintaining debt nancing plans.

Exposure to risk 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Interest bearing borrowings
On demand 59.418 2.592 

ess than 180 days 0.205 0.205 
181 - 365 days 0.205 0.205 
More than 365 days 0.410 0.820 
Total 60.238 3.822 

Other liabilities
On demand 10.279 8.7 8 

ess than 180 days 114.808 55.320 
181 - 365 days  -  - 
More than 365 days  -  - 
Total 125.087 6 .068 

Trade payables
On demand  -  - 

ess than 180 days 1763.649 213 .398 
181 - 365 days  -  - 
More than 365 days  -  - 
Total 1763.649 213 .398 

The group has access to following undrawn facilities at the end of the reporting period.
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Expiring within one year 1506.400 852.500 
Expiring beyond one year  -  - 
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(C) Foreign currency risk
The group is exposed to foreign exchange ris  mainly through its sales to overseas customers and purchases from overseas 
suppliers in various foreign currencies. 

The group evaluates exchange rate exposure arising from foreign currency transactions and the company follows established 
ris  management policies, including use of derivatives li e foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge exposure to foreign 
currency ris , where the economic conditions match the company’s policy.  

Foreign currency exposure :
Financial assets Currency Amount in foreign currency Amount in INR

31 March 
2018

31 March 
2017 

31 March 
2018

31 March 
2017 

Trade receivables EUR 1.224 1.16  95.689 80.209 
USD 10.039 11.267 647.857 726.226 

BP 0.244 0.180 22.249 1 . 17 
Ban  accounts EUR 0.053 0.007 4.243 0. 57 

USD 3.328 2.769 214.425 178.059 
Foreign exchange forward contracts EUR  - 0.285  - 19.528 

USD 12.050 .850 777.225 312.292 

Financial liabilities Currency Amount in foreign currency Amount in INR
31 March 

2018
31 March 

2017 
31 March 

2018
31 March 

2017 
Trade payables EUR 0.457 0.722 36.620 3.567 

USD 1.384 1.1 8 90.070 75.677 
BP 0.002 0.011 0.182 0.90  

PCFC USD 0.220 0.300 14.310 19. 52 
Buyer’s credit USD 0.206 0.357 16.630 23.1 0 

Currency wise net exposure (assets -liabilities)
Particulars Amount in foreign currency Amount in INR

31 March 
2018

31 March 
2017 

31 March 
2018

31 March 
2017 

EUR 0.820 0.73  63.312 56.627 
USD 23.607 17.081 1518.497 1098.308 

BP 0.242 0.169 22.067 13.513 

Sensitivity analysis 
Currency Amount in INR Sensitivity 

% [Loss/(Gain)] [Loss/(Gain)]
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

EUR 63.312 56.171 5.00% (3.166) (1. 32) 3.166 1. 32 
BP 1518.497 1098.529 5.00% (75.925) (55.036) 75.925 55.036 

USD 22.067 13.513 5.00% (1.103) (1.022) 1.103 1.022 
Total 1168.213 1168.213 (80.194) (57. 90) 80.194 57. 90 

( BP - reat Britain Pound, EUR- Euro, USD - US Dollar)
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40 Capital management
Risk management
The group objectives when managing capital are to 
-  safeguard it’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and bene ts 

for other sta eholders, and
- Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return 
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. Consistent with others in the industry, the company 
monitors capital on the basis of the following gearing ratio  Net debt (total borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents) divided by 
total equity and net debt (as shown in the balance sheet, including non-controlling interests).

The company’s strategy is to maintain a gearing ratio 0%.  The gearing ratios were as follows
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

oans and borrowings 0.410 0.820 
Other nancial liability 59.828 3.002 

ess  cash and cash equivalents 772.250 691.832 
Net debt  -  - 
Equity 7267.957 7099.132 
Capital and net debt 7267.957 7099.132 

earing ratio 0% 0%
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41 Additional information, as required under schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, of enterprises consolidated as 
Subsidiary / Associates / Joint Ventures.

Name of the Enterprise Net Assets, i.e., total 
assets minus total 

liabilities

Share in pro t or loss Share in other 
comprehensive income

Share in total 
comprehensive income

 As % of 
consolidated 

net assets

Amount As % of 
consolidated 
pro t or loss

Amount As % of 
consolidated 

other 
comprehensive 

income

Amount As % of 
consolidated 

total 
comprehensive 

income

Amount

1 2 3 5 6 7 8 9
Parent
Praj Industries imited 99.51% 7232.671 79.72% 31 .800 86.82% 6.960 79.86% 321.760 

Subsidiaries
Indian
1   Praj iPurity Systems 

imited, India.
13.6 % 991.570 20. 9% 80.925 5.95% 0. 77 20.20% 81. 02 

2   Praj Engineering and infra 
imited, India

0.81% 58.817 -2.30% (9.066) 1.70% 0.136 -2.22% (8.930)

Foreign
1   Praj Far East Philippines 

td., Philippines
0.75% 5 .528 2.11% 8.339 1 .97% 1.200 2.37% 9.539 

2   Praj Industries (Africa) 
Pty. imited, South Africa

0.13% 9.3 1 -1.78% (7.0 ) 8.59% 0.689 -1.58% (6.355)

3  Praj Americas Inc. USA 0.00% (0.338) 1.55% 6.137 -0.12% (0.010) 1.52% 6.127 
   Praj Far East Co., td. 
Thailand

-0.03% (2.518) -2.32% (9.162) 0.81% 0.065 -2.26% (9.097)

5   Praj Industries Namibia 
imited, Namibia

-0.17% (12.126) 0.05% 0.208 -18.72% (1.501) -0.32% (1.293)

Minority Interests in all 
subsidiaries

0.00% 0.195 -0.01% (0.032) 0.00% - -0.01% (0.032)

Inter Company Eliminations/
oodwill Amortisation

-1 .6 % (106 .18 ) 2. 7% 9.772 0.00% - 2. 3% 9.772 

Total 100.00% 7267.956 100.00% 39 .877 99.99% 8.016 100.00% 02.893 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

Pramod Chaudhari Shishir Joshipura Sachin Raole
Executive Chairman CEO and Managing Director CFO and Director- Finance  Commercial
(DIN  00196 15) (DIN  0057 970) (DIN  00 31 38)

Dattatraya Nimbolkar
Place  Pune Chief Internal Auditor and Company Secretary
Date  16 May 2018 (M. No.  ACS 660)
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Notice

Notice is hereby given that the Thirty Second Annual General Meeting of PRAJ INDUSTRIES LIMITED will be held on Monday, the  
6th August, 2018 at 10.00 A.M. at the Registered Office of the Company at “Praj Tower”, S. No. 274 & 275/2, Bhumkar Chowk- Hinjewadi 
Road, Hinjewadi, Pune – 411 057 to transact the following business:-

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.	 To receive, consider and adopt;

	 a.	 the audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2018 together with the reports of 
Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.

	 b.	 the audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2018 together with 
the report of the Auditors thereon.

2.	 To declare Dividend on Equity Shares.

3.	 To appoint a Director in place of Ms. Parimal Chaudhari (DIN: 00724911) who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers herself for 
re-appointment.

	 In this matter, to consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution;

	 “RESOLVED THAT Ms. Parimal Chaudhari (DIN: 00724911), who is liable to retire by rotation pursuant to Section 152 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions if any, and who has offered herself for re-appointment be and is hereby  
re-appointed as a Director of the Company.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS

4. 	 To ratify the remuneration of Dhananjay V. Joshi & Associates, Cost Accountants, Pune as Cost Auditors for the financial year 
ending 31st March, 2019 and in this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time 
being in force), the Company hereby ratifies the remuneration of ` 2,75,000/- as Audit fees plus out of pocket expenses at actual 
on submission of supporting bills, plus applicable taxes, payable to Dhananjay V. Joshi & Associates, Cost Accountants, Pune who 
have been appointed by the Board of Directors as Cost Auditors of the Company, to conduct the audit of the cost records of the 
Company for the financial year ending 31st March, 2019.”

5. 	 To consider and approve appointment of Ms. Mrunalini Joshi (DIN: 00957617) as Director and in this regard to consider and, if 
thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:- 

	 “RESOLVED that Ms. Mrunalini Joshi (DIN: 00957617) who was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company with effect 
from 11th August, 2017, by the Board of Directors and who holds office up to the date of 32nd Annual General Meeting under 
Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) but who is eligible for appointment and in respect of whom, the Company 
has received a notice in writing under Section 160(1) of the Act from a Member proposing her candidature for the office of Director, 
be and is hereby appointed as Director of the Company.”

6. 	 To consider and approve appointment of Ms. Mrunalini Joshi (DIN: 00957617) as an Independent Director of the Company and in 
this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:-

	 “RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”), read with Schedule IV to the Act or any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, consent of the 
Company be and is hereby accorded to the appointment of Ms. Mrunalini Joshi (DIN: 00957617) as Independent Director of the 
Company to hold office with effect from 11th August, 2017 till the conclusion of Annual General Meeting to be held for adoption of 
accounts for the financial year 2019-20 or 10th August, 2020 whichever occurs earlier.” 

7. 	 To consider and approve appointment of Mr. Shishir Joshipura (DIN: 00574970) as Director and in this regard to consider and, if 
thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:- 

	 “RESOLVED that Mr. Shishir Joshipura (DIN: 00574970), who was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company with effect 
from 2nd April, 2018 by the Board of Directors and who holds office up to the date of 32nd Annual General Meeting under Section 
161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) but who is eligible for appointment and in respect of whom, the Company has 
received a notice in writing under Section 160(1) of the Act from a Member proposing his candidature for the office of Director, be 
and is hereby appointed as Director of the Company.”
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8. 	 To consider and approve appointment of Mr. Shishir Joshipura (DIN: 00574970) as Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director 
of the Company and in this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:-

	 “RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Sections 196, 197 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”), read with Schedule V to the Act or any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, consent of the 
Company be and is hereby accorded to the appointment of Mr. Shishir Joshipura (DIN: 00574970) as Chief Executive Officer and 
Managing Director of the Company, for a period of Five (5) years with effect from 2nd April, 2018, on the terms and conditions 
including remuneration as set out in the Explanatory Statement annexed to the Notice convening this Meeting, with liberty to 
the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as “the Board” which term shall be deemed to include any Committee of the Board 
constituted to exercise its powers, including the powers conferred by this Resolution) to alter and vary the terms and conditions and/ 
or remuneration, subject to the same not exceeding the limits specified under Schedule V to the Act or any statutory modification(s) 
or re-enactment thereof.”

9. 	 To consider and approve appointment of Dr. Shridhar Shukla (DIN: 00007607) as Director and in this regard to consider and, if 
thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:- 

	 “RESOLVED that Dr. Shridhar Shukla (DIN: 00007607) who was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company with effect from 
12th April, 2018 by the Board of Directors and who holds office up to the date of 32nd Annual General Meeting under Section 161(1) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) but who is eligible for appointment and in respect of whom, the Company has received 
a notice in writing under Section 160(1) of the Act from a Member proposing his candidature for the office of Director, be and is 
hereby appointed as Director of the Company.”

10. 	 To consider and approve appointment of Dr. Shridhar Shukla (DIN: 00007607) as Independent Director of the Company and in this 
regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:-

	 “RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”), read with Schedule IV to the Act or any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, consent of the 
Company be and is hereby accorded to the appointment of Dr. Sridhar Shukla (DIN: 00007607) as Independent Director of the 
Company to hold office for a period of Five (5) years with effect from 12th April, 2018. 

	 FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient 
to give effect to this Resolution.”

By Order of the Board of Directors

		  Dattatraya Nimbolkar
Place: Pune	 Chief Internal Auditor & 
Date: 12th June, 2018	  Company Secretary

Notes:-

a)	 A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (“the Meeting”) is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and 
vote on a poll instead of himself/ herself and the proxy need not be a member of the Company. The instrument appointing the proxy 
should, however, be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less than forty-eight hours before the commencement 
of the Meeting.

	 A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of 
the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of 
the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other 
person or shareholder. Proxy is not entitled to vote at a meeting if the member appointing the proxy votes on e-voting platform 
made available by the Company.

b)	 The business set out in the Notice will be transacted through electronic voting system and the Company is providing facility for 
voting by electronic means.

c)	 Corporate members intending to send their authorised representatives to attend the Meeting are requested to send to the Company 
a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorising their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.

d)	 Brief resume of Directors proposed to be appointed / re-appointed, nature of their expertise in specific functional areas, names 
of Companies in which they hold directorships and memberships / Chairmanships of Board Committees, shareholding and 
relationships between Directors inter-se as stipulated under Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, are as follows;
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Name of 
Director and 
(DIN)

Date of Birth 
(No. of Equity 
Shares held)

Qualification 
(Relationship with 

other Directors)

Nature of Expertise Name of 
Companies 
in which he/

she holds 
Directorship*

Name of Committees 
of the Companies 
of which he/she 

holds Chairmanship/
Membership**

Ms. Parimal 
Chaudhari  
(DIN 00724911)

01/08/1956

14,400,000 
Equity shares of 
` 2/- each.

Post Graduate 
degree in 
Journalism & 
Communications 
from Pune 
University and 
MS in Television-
Radio-Film (TRF) 
from Syracuse 
University, USA.

Wife of  
Mr. Pramod 
Chaudhari

Communication and human 
resource development. As 
Managing Trustee of Praj 
Foundation, she steers the CSR 
activities.

Praj Industries 
Ltd.

Stakeholders’ 
Relationship 
Committee of Praj 
Industries Ltd.

Ms. Mrunalini 
Joshi  
(DIN 00957617)

10/02/1967

No. of shares 
held : Nil 

Science graduate Ms. Mrunalini Joshi has 15 years 
of rich business experience 
in the packaging machinery 
industry. In addition to market 
research for various industries, 
she has expertise in international 
marketing, branding and corporate 
communication. She is also 
actively involved in several social 
initiatives around Pune district. 

(i)	� Praj 
Industries 
Ltd.

(ii)	� Praj HiPurity 
Systems Ltd.

(iii) 	� Nichrome 
India 
Limited	

Member of Audit 
Committee of Praj 
HiPurity Systems 
Ltd.

Mr. Shishir 
Joshipura  
(DIN 00574970)

22/01/1962

No. of shares 
held : Nil

Graduate 
Mechanical 
Engineer from 
BITS Pilani and 
an Advanced 
Management 
Graduate from 
Harvard Business 
School.

Mr. Shishir possesses a strong 
business and leadership record. 
He is passionate about smart 
manufacturing and regularly 
speaks on topic at various forums. 
He co-chairs the CII Innovation 
Council for Western Region and 
is a Member of the CII National 
Committee on Capital goods, 
Smart Manufacturing, Trades and 
Fairs. He is also the Founding 
Director for Alliance for Energy 
Efficient Economy (AEEE) – an 
industry think tank and policy 
advocacy organisation for energy 
efficiency in India. 

(i)	� Praj 
Industries 
Ltd.

(ii)	� Praj HiPurity 
Systems Ltd.

Nil

Dr. Shridhar 
Shukla  
(DIN 00007607) 

05/01/1962

No. of shares: 
Nil

Ph.D. in Computer 
Engineering North 
Carolina State 
University, USA, 
M.S. in Electrical 
Engineering , 
Virginia Tech 
USA., B. Tech 
in Electrical 
Engineering, IIT 
Bombay 

Dr. Shridhar Shukla is a software 
entrepreneur with a technology 
and academic background since 
1995; business expertise in building 
and running software companies; 
expertise in infrastructure software 
products and services; created, 
established and grew multiple lines 
of business; organization building, 
software R&D, software sales and 
marketing; interest in improving 
education.

Nil Nil

*	 Directorship includes Directorship in Indian Public Companies including Praj Industries Limited.
**	� Memberships / Chairmanship of only Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee have been considered for this 

purpose.
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e)	 A Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, relating to the Special Business to be transacted at the 
Meeting is annexed hereto.

f)	 Members/Proxies attending the meeting are requested to submit the attendance slip at the venue of the meeting.
g)	 In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of names will be entitled to vote.
h)	 Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Statement are open for inspection by the members at the 

Registered Office of the Company on all working days, (Saturdays and Sundays are weekly offs), during business hours up to the 
date of the Meeting.

i)	 (i) 	 The Company has notified closure of Register of Members and Share Transfer Books from Tuesday, the 31st July, 2018 to 
Monday, the 6th August, 2018 (both days inclusive) for determining the names of members eligible for dividend on Equity 
Shares, if declared at the Meeting. 

 	 (ii) 	 The Dividend, if any declared, shall be payable to those shareholders whose names stand registered;
		  a.	 As beneficial owner as at the end of business hours on 30th July, 2018 as per the lists to be furnished by National 

Securities Depository Limited and Central Depository Services (India) Limited in respect of the shares held in the 
electronic form and

		  b.	 As member in the register of members of the Company/ Registrar & Share Transfer Agent, after giving effect to valid 
share transfers in physical form lodged with the Company as at the end of the business hours on 30th July, 2018.

		  c.	 The dividend on Equity Shares, if declared at the Meeting, will be credited / dispatched on or after 13th August, 2018 
before statutory time limit.

j)	 Members holding shares in electronic form are requested to intimate any change in their address or bank mandates to their 
Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form are 
requested to advise any change in their address or bank mandates to the Company / Link Intime India Private Limited, Share 
Transfer Agent of the Company (Link). 

k)	 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has transferred the unpaid or unclaimed 
dividends (including interim dividends) as and when declared upto the financial year 2009-10 on due dates, to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund (the IEPF) established by the Central Government. Pursuant to the provisions of Investor Education 
and Protection Fund (Uploading of information regarding unpaid and unclaimed amounts lying with Companies) Rules, 2012, 
the Company has uploaded the details of unpaid and unclaimed amounts lying with the Company as on 11th August, 2017 (date 
of previous Annual General Meeting) on the website of the Company (www.praj.net), as also on the website of the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs. Further, pursuant to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 
2016, the Company has transferred 105,596 shares to Investor Education and Protection Fund on 29th November, 2017. 

l)	 Members who hold shares in physical form in multiple folios in identical names or joint holding in the same order of names are 
requested to send the share certificates to Link, for consolidation into a single folio.

m)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every 
participant in securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore requested to submit their PAN to their 
Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can 
submit their PAN to the Company / Link. 

n)	 Members holding shares in single name and physical form are advised to make nomination in respect of their shareholding in the 
Company. 

o)	 Non-Resident Indian Members are requested to inform Link, immediately of: 
	 (i) 	 Change in their residential status on return to India for permanent settlement. 
	 (ii) 	 Particulars of their bank account maintained in India with complete name, branch, account type, account number and address 

of the bank with PIN code number, if not furnished earlier. 
p)	 To further Company’s environment friendly agenda and to participate in MCA’s Green Initiative, members are requested to register / 

update their e-mail address with their Depository Participants. Members who are holding shares in physical form are requested to 
send their e-mail address at investorsfeedback@praj.net for updation.

q)	 The notice of 32nd Annual General Meeting and instructions for remote e-voting, along with the attendance slip and Proxy Form, is 
being sent by electronic mode to all members whose email addresses are registered with the Company/Depository Participant(s) 
unless a member has requested for a hard copy of the same. For members who have not registered their email addresses, physical 
copies of the aforesaid documents are being sent by the permitted mode.

r)	 Members are requested to notify their queries, if any, on financial statements etc. latest by 3rd August, 2018 to facilitate the 
answering thereto. The queries be sent on e-mail at investorsfeedback@praj.net.

By Order of the Board of Directors

		  Dattatraya Nimbolkar
Place: Pune	 Chief Internal Auditor & 
Date: 12th June, 2018	  Company Secretary
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Instructions and other information relating to e-voting are as under:

(i)	 In compliance with Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and sections 108 
and 110 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Management and Administration) 
Rules, 2014, the Company is pleased to offer remote e-voting facility to the members to cast their votes electronically on all 
resolutions set forth in the Notice convening the 32nd Annual General Meeting to be held on Monday, the 6th August, 2018 at 10.00 
a.m. The Company has engaged the services of Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) to provide the e-voting facility. 
The facility for voting through ballot paper will also be made available at the Annual General Meeting and members attending the 
Annual General Meeting , who have not already cast their votes by remote e-voting, shall be able to exercise their right at the Annual 
General Meeting through ballot paper. 

	 These details and instructions form an integral part of the Notice for the Annual General Meeting to be held on Monday, the 6th 
August, 2018.

(ii) 	 The voting period begins on Friday, the 3rd August, 2018 at 9.00 A.M. IST and ends on Sunday, the 5th August, 2018 at 5.00 P.M. IST. 
During this period shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off 
date Monday, the 30th July, 2018 (cut- off date) may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL 
for voting thereafter.

(iii) 	 The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.

(iv) 	 Click on Shareholders / Members

(v) 	 Now Enter your User ID 

	 For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, 

	 For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID, 

	 Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company.

(vi) 	 Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

(vii) 	 If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier voting of any company, 
then your existing password is to be used. 

(viii) 	 If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form
PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for both demat 

shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant are requested to 
use the sequence number which is printed on Postal Ballot / Attendance Slip indicated in the PAN field.

Dividend Bank Details OR 
Date of Birth (DOB)

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your demat 
account or in the company records in order to login.

If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company please enter the member id / folio 
number in the Dividend Bank details field as mentioned in instruction (iv).

(ix) 	 After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

(x) 	 Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However, members holding shares 
in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in 
the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any 
other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly 
recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

(xi) 	 For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions contained in this Notice.

(xii) 	 Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Company Name> on which you choose to vote.

(xiii) 	 On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the 
option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to 
the Resolution.

(xiv) 	 Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.
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(xv) 	 After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to 
confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

(xvi) 	 Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

(xvii) 	You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page.

(xviii) 	If a demat account holder has forgotten the changed password then Enter the User ID and the image verification code and click on 
Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

(xvix)	Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app m-Voting available for android based mobiles. The m-Voting app 
can be downloaded from Google Play Store. Apple and Windows phone users can download the app from the App Store and the 
Windows Phone Store respectively. Please follow the instructions as prompted by the mobile app while voting on your mobile.

(xx)	 Note for Non–Individual Shareholders and Custodians

Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are required to log on to www.evotingindia.com 
and register themselves as Corporates.

A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and password. The Compliance User would 
be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the accounts they would 
be able to cast their vote. 

A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be 
uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting manual 
available at www.evotingindia.com, under help section or write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

Since the Company is required to provide members the facility to cast their vote by electronic means, shareholders of the Company, 
holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of Monday, the 30th July, 2018 and not casting their 
vote electronically, may only cast their vote at the Annual General Meeting.

Mr. Sunil Nanal, Partner KANJ & Co., L.L.P. (Membership No. FCS 5977), has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting 
process in a fair and transparent manner who, after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, shall first count the votes cast at the meeting 
and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote- e-voting in the presence at least two witnesses, not in the employment of the 
Company and shall make, not later than 48 hours of the conclusion of AGM, a Consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast in 
favour of or against, if any to the Chairman of the Company or a person authorised by him in this behalf, who shall countersign the same 
and declare the result of the voting forthwith.

The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid-up equity capital of the Company as on 30th July, 2018.

The results shall be declared on or after the AGM of the Company. The results declared along with the Scrutinizers’ Report shall be placed 
on the Company’s website www.praj.net and on the website of CDSL within two days of the passing of the resolutions at the 32nd Annual 
General Meeting of the Company on Monday, the 6th August, 2018, and communicated to the BSE Ltd. and National Stock Exchange of 
India Ltd. within the prescribed period.

Any person who becomes a member of the Company after despatch of the notice of the meeting and holding shares as on the cut-off 
date i.e. 30th July, 2018, may obtain the USER ID and Password from the R & T Agents of the Company i.e. Link Intime India Private Limited 
(Link) . Members may call Link on 020- 26160084 or may send email at bhagavant.sawant@linkintime.co.in.

By Order of the Board of Directors

		
Dattatraya Nimbolkar

	 Chief Internal Auditor & 
Place: Pune	  Company Secretary
Date: 12th June, 2018 	 (M. No.: ACS4660)
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STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 (1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:-

The following Statement sets out all material facts relating to the Special Business mentioned in the accompanying Notice:

Item No. 4

The Board, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has approved the appointment of Dhananjay V. Joshi & Associates, Cost 
Accountants, Pune, the Cost Auditors to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial year ending 31st March, 
2019 for a total remuneration of ` 2,75,000/- as Audit fees plus out of pocket expenses at actual on submission of supporting bills and 
taxes as may be applicable. 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration 
payable to the Cost Auditors has to be ratified by the shareholders of the Company. 

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives is, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or 
otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 4 of the Notice. 

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 4 of the Notice for approval by the shareholders.

Item No. 5 & 6: 

Ms. Mrunalini Joshi (DIN: 00957617) was appointed by the Board at its meeting held on 11th August, 2017 as an Additional Director 
of the Company with effect from 11th August, 2017. The Board of Directors has received a notice from the shareholder proposing the 
candidature of Ms. Mrunalini Joshi as Director to be appointed under the provisions of Section 149 and 152 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Ms. Mrunalini Joshi is a Science graduate by education, with a rich business experience spanning over 15 years in the packaging 
machinery industry. In addition to market research for various industries, she has expertise in international marketing, branding and 
corporate communication. She is also actively involved in several social initiatives around Pune district. 

The Company has received from Ms. Mrunalini Joshi; 

(i)	 Consent in writing to continue to act as Director in Form DIR-2 pursuant to Rule 8 of the Companies (Appointment & Qualification 
of Directors) Rules, 2014.

(ii)	 Intimation in Form DIR- 8 in terms of Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 to the effect that she is not 
disqualified under sub-section 2 of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives is, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or 
otherwise, except, Ms. Mrunalini Joshi, in the resolution set out at Item Nos. 5 & 6 of the Notice. 

The Resolutions as set out at Item Nos. 5 & 6 seeks the approval of members for the appointment of Ms. Mrunalini Joshi as Independent 
Director, not liable to retire by rotation.

Item No. 7 & 8

Mr. Shishir Joshipura (hereinafter referred to as “SJ”) (DIN: 00574970) was appointed by the Board at its meeting held on 14th March, 2018 
as an additional director with effect from 2nd April, 2018. The Board of Directors has received a notice from the shareholder proposing the 
candidature of SJ as Director to be appointed under the provisions of Section 149 and 152 of the Companies Act, 2013.

SJ is a Graduate Mechanical Engineer from BITS Pilani and an Advanced Management Graduate from Harvard Business School. He has 
over 35 years of rich experience in varied fields of engineering.

SJ possesses a strong business and leadership record. He is passionate about smart manufacturing and regularly speaks on topic at 
various forums. He co-chairs the CII Innovation Council for Western Region and is a Member of the CII National Committee on Capital 
goods, Smart Manufacturing, Trades and Fairs. He is also the Founding Director for Alliance for Energy Efficient Economy (AEEE) – an 
industry think tank and policy advocacy organisation for energy efficiency in India. 

The Company has received from SJ;

(i)	 Consent in writing to continue to act as Director in Form DIR-2 pursuant to Rule 8 of the Companies (Appointment & Qualification 
of Directors) Rules, 2014 .

(ii)	 Intimation in Form DIR- 8 in terms of Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 to the effect that he is not 
disqualified under sub-section 2 of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013 

The Resolutions as set out at Item No. 7 & 8 seeks the approval of members for the appointment of SJ as Director, not liable to retire by 
rotation.

Pursuant to the recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration Committee and subsequent approval of Audit Committee, the Board, 
subject to the approval of the members, appointed SJ also, as Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director of the Company for a period 
of Five (5) years with effect from 2nd April, 2018. 
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Brief terms of appointment of SJ, in terms of agreement dated 2nd April 2018 entered into with him, including remuneration are as follows;

1.	 Powers to be exercised by SJ as Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director 

	 A.	 SJ shall be vested with substantial powers of management and shall have the authority for general conduct and management 
of the whole of the business and affairs of the Companies except in the matters which may be specifically required to be done 
by the Board either by the Act or by the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Companies. He shall also exercise 
and perform such powers and duties as the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter called as “the Board”) may 
from time to time determine and also which he may consider necessary or proper or in the interest of the Companies, and 
in particular but without in any way restricting the general powers and authorities herein before conferred on him, he shall 
be solely responsible for the operating performance including Regulatory Compliances, Finance, Human Capital, Investor 
Relationship and Sustainability of Companies. SJ shall have the following powers to be exercised on behalf of the Companies 
namely:-

		  (i)	 To manage, conduct and transact all the business affairs and operations of the Companies including power to enter 
into contracts and to vary and rescind them. 

		  (ii)	 To enter into and become party to and to sign and execute all deeds, instruments, contracts, receipts and all other 
documents or writings on behalf of the Companies whether or not required to be executed under its common seal or 
not otherwise provided for in the Articles of Association of the Companies for ensuring sustainability of operations. 

2. 	 Annual Remuneration;

	 B.	 Remuneration

		  SJ as from date of joining till as long as he performs the services and complies with the terms and conditions provided by 
this Agreement shall be entitled to and paid the following remuneration during the term of this agreement:

	 (a)	 Salary

		  Starting basic salary of SJ will be ` 10, 81,500 (Rupees Ten Lakhs Eighty One Thousand and Five Hundred only) per month. 

		  First increment will fall due after 15 months i.e. on 1st July 2019. The quantum of revision will depend on Individual and Group 
performance of Companies. 

	 (b)	 Commission on Profits: 

		  SJ will not be eligible for any Commission on Profits for Financial Year 2018/19.

		  From Financial Year 2019/20 onwards, in addition to salary, SJ will be eligible for Commission on Profits not exceeding 0.25% 
of Consolidated Profit after Tax (PAT) for respective Financial Year. However actual amount of Commission on Profits payable 
to SJ will be recommended by Nomination and Remuneration Committee within overall limits of 0.25% of Consolidated PAT 
as specified above. 

		  The quantum of commission as recommended by Nomination and Remuneration Committee will be finally approved by the 
Board within the overall limits approved by the shareholders. The Commission will be paid after approval of Audited Accounts 
by the Shareholders, for respective Financial Year. 

 	 (c) 	 Variable Performance Pay

		  SJ will not be eligible for any Variable Performance Pay for Financial Year 2018/19. From Financial Year 2019/20 onwards, in 
addition to salary, SJ shall be eligible for Variable Performance Pay up to 20% of CTC [basic salary + 150% of the basic salary 
towards cost of perquisites as defined in (d) below] per year depending on the performance of the Companies to be evaluated 
in terms of EVA achieved by the Companies for respective Financial Years. Modalities for Variable Performance Pay and 
computation thereof shall be mutually agreed upon and the amount finalized shall be recommended by the Chairman to the 
Committee and the Board for approval. 

	 (d)	 Perquisites

		  The following perquisites shall be allowed in addition to above so however that the total cost of perquisites to the Company 
shall not exceed 150% of basic salary as mentioned in 2(a) above. 

		  (i)	 House Rent Allowance / Rent Free Accommodation

			   House Rent Allowance equivalent to 60% of basic salary given in para 2(a) above, or alternatively the Company shall 
provide SJ rent free unfurnished residential accommodation, provided that the rent of such accommodation that is 
borne by the Company shall not exceed 60% of the basic salary given in para 2(a) above.
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		  (ii)	 Medical Reimbursement

			   Medical expenses incurred for SJ and his family subject to the ceiling of 10.50% basic salary as per para 2 (a) above in a 
year shall be allowed to be reimbursed on the production of bills or a written undertaking regarding the actual incurring 
of such expenditure. 

		  (iii)	 Leave Travel Concession

			   Reimbursement of expenses incurred by SJ or his family for proceeding on leave to any destination in India once in a year 
shall be allowed. The expenses to be reimbursed may be in the nature of traveling, lodging, boarding and other incidentals. 
The said reimbursement shall be subject to a ceiling of one month’s basic salary as per para 2(a) above.

		  (iv)	 Leave and Leave Encashment

			   SJ shall be entitled to 30 days leave for each year of service. The leave can be accumulated up to 90 days and can be 
encashed beyond accumulation over 90 days.

		  (v)	 Housing Expenses

			   SJ shall be reimbursed for all expenses incurred on watchman’s salary, gardener’s salary, electricity expenses, 
corporation taxes and other domestic assistance at his residence subject to a ceiling of 30% of basic salary given in 
para 2(a) above.

		  (vi)	 Provident Fund

			   The Company shall contribute to a statutory or recognized provident fund on behalf of SJ to the extent that such 
contribution is not taxable in the hands of SJ under the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961 as subsisting from time to 
time. Presently it is 12% of basic salary.

		  (vii)	 Superannuation

			   The Company shall contribute ` 1,50,000 (Rupees One Lac and fifty thousand only) per annum to a recognized or 
statutory superannuation fund or annuity fund on behalf of SJ.

		  (viii)	 An amount representing excess of 15% of SJ’s basic salary over ` 1,50,000/- should be paid to him as an ex-gratia on 
an annual basis.

		  (ix)	 Gratuity

			   Gratuity shall be payable to SJ on the termination of this Agreement in the event of his resignation or his death @ half 
month’s basic salary for each completed year of service and as per prevailing rules.

		  (x)	 National Pension Scheme:

			   The Company shall contribute 10% of SJ’s  basic salary to National Pension Scheme. 

			   For the purposes of the perquisites mentioned at Clause (i) to (ix) above the term “family” means spouse, dependent 
child of SJ.

	 (e)	 Other Benefits

		  (i)	 Club Fees

			   Membership fees of a maximum of two clubs in Pune shall be allowed to be reimbursed to SJ in respect of his personal 
membership. No admission fees and life membership fees shall be reimbursed. Fees for obtaining credit cards are not 
covered by this clause.

		  (ii)	 Personal Accident Insurance

			   Insurance premium not exceeding ̀  58,165/- per annum for insuring accidental / medical risks of SJ shall be reimbursed 
to him / paid by the Company. 

		  (iii)	 Car, Driver, and Telephone

			   The Company shall provide chauffeur driven car for official and local personal purposes. The Company shall provide 
and pay for all running, maintenance, repairs and upkeep expenses of Car.

			   The Company shall reimburse all telephone expenses incurred on the telephone at the residence of SJ. Personal long 
distance calls on telephone shall be billed by the Company to and recovered from SJ.
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		  (iv)	 Reimbursement of expenses and credit cards

			   SJ shall be reimbursed at actual all traveling, entertainment and other out of pocket expenses actually incurred by him 
while conducting and in connection with or for the business of the Company. This shall not constitute his remuneration.

			   SJ’s international travel shall be by Business Class (as per prevailing policy of the Company) and domestic travel by 
Economy Class.

			�   The Company shall procure at its own cost one domestic and one international credit card in the personal name of SJ 
and shall reimburse him for all expenses incurred by him through such credit cards for and while conducting and in 
connection with the business of the Companies. Such facility and reimbursement shall not constitute his remuneration.

3.	 Applicability of all the policies of the Company:

	 Notwithstanding anything contained herein above and though not specifically mentioned in this Agreement, SJ shall always be 
governed by all the Company Policies applicable to other Senior employees of the Company and shall abide by the same. 

4.	 Inadequacy or Absence of Profits

	 If the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company may pay SJ by way of salary, perquisites and other 
allowances, not exceeding the amount based on the effective capital of the Company, subject to the overall ceiling limit prescribed 
under Section II of Part II of Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

5. 	 Sitting Fees

 	 SJ shall not be entitled for any remuneration for attending any of the meetings of the Board of the Companies. 

6. 	 Confidentiality, Secrecy and Non-competition

	 A. 	 SJ shall not, during the Term or at any time thereafter, divulge or disclose to any person, firm, company, body corporate or 
concern whomsoever or make any use whatever for his own or for whatever purpose, of any confidential information or 
knowledge obtained by him during his employment as to the business or affairs of the Companies or as to any trade secrets 
or secret processes of the Companies and he shall during the continuance of his employment hereunder, also use his best 
endeavors to prevent any other person, firm, company, body corporate or concern from doing so. Further, SJ shall not, at least 
for two years after termination of the agreement, work for Company’s customers/competitors.

	 B.	 SJ acknowledges that the Company shall be entitled to injunctive reliefs to restrain him from committing a breach of Clause 
6 A above. 

	  C. 	 Position as Director

 		  SJ acknowledges that he shall be a director on the Board by virtue of his being the Managing Director and hence, if SJ ceases 
to be Managing Director for any reason whatsoever, he shall automatically, without any act or application either on part of 
the Company or SJ, deemed to have ceased to be a director of the Companies. Accordingly, SJ ‘s office as director shall not 
be liable to retirement by rotation.

7.	 Termination

7.1	 Either Party may terminate this Agreement without being bound to assign any reason by giving six months’ notice in writing to the 
other. The Company shall have the option to pay SJ six months remuneration in lieu of notice. However, SJ has no such option.

 	 This Agreement shall automatically stand terminated upon the happening of any of the following events:-

	 (i)	 SJ commits any act of insolvency;

	 (ii)	 If SJ suffers from any legal disability which renders his continuance as a director on the Board illegal or undesirable;

	 (iii)	 If SJ suffers any physical or mental disability which prevents him from performing his obligations hereunder for more than 
six months;

	 (iv)	 If the Board resolves to revoke the appointment of SJ as Managing Director on the grounds that SJ has committed a material 
breach of the provisions of this Agreement or any other sufficient cause which renders SJ’s continuance in office as not being 
in the interest of the Companies. 

7.2	 SJ acknowledges that he has wide supervisory and managerial functions and he is not a workman within the meaning of the 
Industrial Disputes Act or under any other law.

7.3	 SJ further acknowledges that in the event that SJ contending that the Company has unlawfully terminated this Agreement, SJ 
shall only be entitled to claim damages but shall not be entitled to claim any injunctive or other interlocutory reliefs against the 
Company.	
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No Director or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and/ or their relatives, except SJ in his personal capacity for whom the 
Resolutions relate, is interested or concerned in the Resolutions.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolutions as set out at Item No 7 & 8 respectively of the Notice for approval by the shareholders.

Item No. 9 & 10: 

Dr. Shridhar Shukla (DIN: 00007607) was appointed by the Board vide Circular Resolution dated 12th April, 2018 as an additional director 
with effect from 12th April, 2018. The Board of Directors has received a notice from the shareholder proposing the candidature of  
Dr. Shridhar Shukla as Director to be appointed under the provisions of Section 149 and 152 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Dr. Shridhar Shukla is a Ph. D. in Computer Engineering, North Carolina State University, USA, M. S. in Electrical Engineering, Virginia Tech, 
USA, and B. Tech. in Electrical Engineering, Indian Institute of Technology, Bombay.

Dr. Shridhar Shukla, a software entrepreneur with a technology and academic background since 1995; business expertise in building and 
running software companies; expertise in infrastructure software products and services; created, established and grew multiple lines of 
business; organization building, software R&D, software sales and marketing; interest in improving education.

The Company has received from Dr. Shridhar Shukla;

(i)	 Consent in writing to continue to act as Director in Form DIR-2 pursuant to Rule 8 of the Companies (Appointment & Qualification 
of Directors) Rules, 2014.

(ii)	 Intimation in Form DIR- 8 in terms of Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 to the effect that he is not 
disqualified under sub-section 2 of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives is, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or 
otherwise, except, Dr. Shridhar Shukla, in the resolution set out at Item Nos. 9 & 10 of the Notice. 

The Resolutions as set out at Item Nos. 9 & 10 seeks the approval of members for the appointment of Dr. Shridhar Shukla, as Independent 
Director, not liable to retire by rotation.

By Order of the Board of Directors

		  Dattatraya Nimbolkar
Place: Pune	 Chief Internal Auditor & 
Date: 12th June, 2018	  Company Secretary
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Form No. MGT-11
Proxy form

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN	 : 	 L27101PN1985PLC038031
Name of the Company	 : 	 PRAJ INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Registered Office: “Praj Tower”, S.No. 274 & 275/2, Bhumkar Chowk- Hinjewadi Road, Hinjewadi, Pune – 411 057

Name of the member (s):                                                                       

Registered address: 

E-mail Id: 

Folio No./Client Id :

DP ID:

I/We, being the member (s) of the above named Company and holding…………. shares , hereby appoint  

1)	 ________________	 of	 ___________	 having e-mail id	 _____________________________	 or failing him

2)	 ________________	 of	 ___________	 having e-mail id	 _____________________________	 or failing him

3)	 ________________	 of	 ___________	 having e-mail id	 _____________________________

and whose signatures are appended below as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Thirty 
Second Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Monday, the 6th August, 2018 at 10.00 a.m. at “Praj Tower”, S. No. 274 & 275/2, 
Bhumkar Chowk- Hinjewadi Road, Hinjewadi, Pune – 411 057 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated 
below: 

**I wish above proxy to vote in the manner as indicated in the box below;
Description of Resolutions For ** Against**
1. 	 Receive, consider and adopt;
	 a.	 the audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2018 

together with the reports of Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.
	 b.	 the audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended  

31st March, 2018 together with the report of the Auditors thereon.
2. 	 Declaration of Dividend on Equity Shares.
3. 	 Appointment of Ms. Parimal Chaudhari (DIN: 00724911) who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers 

herself for re-appointment.
4. 	 Ratification of remuneration of Dhananjay V. Joshi & Associates, Cost Accountants, Pune as Cost Auditors 

for the financial year ending 31st March, 2019.
5. 	 Appointment of Ms. Mrunalini Joshi (DIN: 00957617) as Director.
6. 	 Appointment of Ms. Mrunalini Joshi (DIN: 00957617) as Independent Director.
7. 	 Appointment of Mr. Shishir Joshipura (DIN: 00574970) as Director.
8. 	 Appointment of Mr. Shishir Joshipura (DIN: 00574970) as Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director.
9. 	 Appointment of Dr. Shridhar Shukla (DIN: 00007607) as Director.
10. 	 Appointment of Dr. Shridhar Shukla (DIN: 00007607) as Independent Director.

Affix
Revenue
Stamp

15 paise

Signature of shareholder

Signed this __________ day of ______________2018.

_______________________	 ___________________	 ________________

Signature of first Proxy holder	 Signature of second Proxy holder	 Signature of third Proxy holder 

Note: 
1.	 Please put a tick mark ‘’ in the appropriate column against the respective resolutions. If you leave the ‘For’ or ‘Against’ column blank 

against any or all the resolutions, your Proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she thinks appropriate.
2.	 This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, not less 

than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting. 
3.	 Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the meeting in person if he so wishes.










